CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION





Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy - Tel: (+39) 06 57051 - Fax: (+39) 06 5705 4593 - E-mail: codex@fao.org - www.codexalimentarius.net

ALINORM 10/33/24

JOINT FAO/WHO FOOD STANDARDS PROGRAMME CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Thirty-third Session Geneva, Switzerland, 5-9 July 2010

REPORT OF THE FORTY-SECOND SESSION OF THE CODEX COMMITTEE ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES

Xian, China 19 – 24 April 2010

NOTE: This report contains Codex Circular Letter CL 2010/11-PR

CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION





Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy - Tel: (+39) 06 57051 - Fax: (+39) 06 5705 4593 - E-mail: codex@fao.org - www.codexalimentarius.net

CX 4/40.2

CL 2010/11-PR May 2010

TO: - Codex Contact Points

- Interested International Organizations

FROM: Secretariat,

Codex Alimentarius Commission

Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla,

00153 Rome, Italy

SUBJECT: DISTRIBUTION OF THE REPORT OF THE FORTY-SECOND SESSION OF THE CODEX

COMMITTEE ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (ALINORM 10/33/24)

The report of the Forty-Second Session of the Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues will be considered by the 33rd Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission (Geneva, Switzerland, 5 - 9 July 2010).

PART A: MATTERS FOR ADOPTION BY THE 33RD SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION:

- 1. Draft and Draft Revised Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides at Step 8 (paras 28-85 and Appendix II); and
- 2. Proposed Draft Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides at Step 5/8 with omission of Steps 6 and 7 (paras 28-85 and Appendix III)

Governments and interested international organizations wishing to submit comments on the above draft and proposed draft MRLs, including the implications they may have for their economic interest, should do so in writing, in conformity with the Procedures for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Related Texts (*Codex Alimentarius Procedural Manual*), **preferably by email**, to the Secretariat, Codex Alimentarius Commission, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy (fax: +39 06 57054593; e-mail, codex@fao.org) **before 11 June 2010**.

- 3. Proposed Draft Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides at Step 5 (paras 28-85 and Appendix IV);
- 4. Proposed Draft Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds at Step 5 Proposals for Three Commodity Groups: Tree Nuts, Herbs and Spices (para. 105 and Appendix X); and
- 5. Proposed Draft Principles and Guidelines for the Selection of Representative Commodities for the Extrapolation of Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides for Commodity Groups at Step 5 (para. 116 and Appendix XI)

Governments and interested international organizations wishing to submit comments on the above proposed draft MRLs and related texts, including the implications which they may have for their economic interest, should do so in writing in conformity with the Procedures for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Related Texts (*Codex Alimentarius Procedural Manual*), **preferably by email**, to the above address **before** 11 June 2010.

PART B: OTHER MATTERS FOR ACTION BY THE 33RD SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

6. Codex Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides Recommended for Revocation and Draft Codex Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides recommended for Withdrawal (paras 28 – 85 and Appendices V and VIII)

Governments and interested international organizations wishing to submit comments on the proposed revocations on Codex MRLs or discontinuation of work on draft MRLs should do so in writing, **preferably by email**, to the above address **before 11 June 2010**.

PART C: REQUEST FOR COMMENTS AND INFORMATION ON:

7. *Concern Forms (paras 34, 44 and 83)*

Member governments that are listed in paras 34, 44 and 83 should submit concern forms together with necessary data, **preferably by email**, to: **1**) Ms Yong Zhen YANG, Agricultural Officer and JMPR Secretary, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, Rome 00153, Italy (Fax:+39 06 57053224, E-mail: YoungZhen.Yang@fao.org); **2**) Dr Angelika TRITSCHER, WHO JMPR Secretary, Appia Avenue 20, 1211 Geneva 27, Switzerland (Fax: +41 22 791 4848, E-mail: tritschera@who.int); **3**) Dr Xiongwu QIAO, Shanxi Academy of Agricultural Sciences, 2 Changfeng Street, Taiyuan, Shanxi Province, 030006, P.R. China (Fax: +86 351 7126215, E-mail: ccpr_qiao@agri.gov.cn); and **4**) Secretariat, Codex Alimentarius Commission, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy (Fax: +39 06 57054593; E-mail: codex@fao.org) **before 11 June 2010**.

Those countries and observers specified under individual compounds in ALINORM 10/33/24, Appendix XII concerning matters related to the future JMPR meetings (GAPs, residue evaluation, intake assessment, etc.) on specific pesticide/commodity(ies) to be considered at subsequent years by JMPR, are invited to send information or data **one year before** JMPR considers these compounds at the addresses indicated above.

8. Proposed Draft Revision of the Guidelines on the Estimation of Uncertainty of Results for the Determination of Pesticide Residues at Step 3 (para. 123 and Appendix XIII)

Governments and interested international organizations wishing to submit comments on the above proposed draft texts should do so in writing in conformity with the Procedures for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Related Texts (*Codex Alimentarius Procedural Manual*), **preferably by email**, to:

1) Dr Xiongwu QIAO, Shanxi Academy of Agricultural Sciences, 2 Changfeng Street, Taiyuan, Shanxi Province, 030006, P.R. China (Fax: +86 351 7126215, E-mail: ccpr_qiao@agri.gov.cn); 2) Codex Contact Point, Codex Australia, Product Integrity, Animal and Plant Health, Australian Government Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry, GPO Box 858 Canberra ACT 2601, Australia (Fax: +61 2 6272 3103, E-mail: ann.backhouse@daff.gov.au); and 3) the Secretariat, Codex Alimentarius Commission, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy (Fax: +39 06 57054593; E-mail, codex@fao.org) **before 17 September 2010**.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

The summary and conclusions of the 42nd Session of the Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues are as follows:

MATTERS FOR ADOPTION BY THE 33RD SESSION OF THE COMMISSION

Adoption of MRLs and other related texts

- Adoption of draft and draft revised MRLs at Step 8, including proposed draft MRLs at Step 5/8, for pesticide/commodity combinations (paras 28 85 and Appendices II and III);
- Adoption of proposed draft MRLs at Step 5 for pesticide/commodity combinations (paras 28 85 and Appendix IV);
- Adoption of the proposed draft revision of the *Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds* for three commodity groups at Step 5 (para. 105 and Appendix X).
- Adoption of the proposed draft revision of the *Principles and Guidance for the Selection of Representatives Commodities for the Extrapolation of MRLs to Commodity Groups* at Step 5 (para. 116 and Appendix XI).

Revocation of MRLs

• Revocation of Codex MRLs for pesticide/commodity combinations (paras 28 – 85 and Appendix V);

Discontinuation of work

Discontinuation of work on the establishment of MRLs for pesticide/commodity combinations (paras 28

 85 and Appendix VIII).

Approval of new work

• The pilot project in which JMPR would conduct an independent, parallel review along with a global joint review team and recommend MRLs before national governments establish MRLs in 2011 (para. 202).

MATTERS OF INTEREST TO THE COMMISSION

The Committee:

- agreed to retain several draft and proposed draft MRLs at Step 7 awaiting for JMPR evaluation (paras 28 85 and Appendix VI);
- agreed to return several draft MRLs to Step 6 for further comments and consideration at its next session (paras 28 85 and Appendix VII);
- agreed to retain the proposed draft revision of the *Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds* for eight commodities at Step 7, awaiting finalization of the revision of other commodity groups in compliance with the decision of the earlier session of this Committee (para. 96 and Appendix IX);
- agreed to return the *draft Guidelines on the estimation of uncertainty of results for the determination of pesticide residues* to Step 3 for additional comments and consideration at its next session (para. 123 and Appendix XIII);
- agreed to return the *Risk Analysis Principles applied by the Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues* for additional comments, redrafting, and consideration at its next session (paras 150 152);

- agreed not to revise all EMRLs for POPs and consider the status of Codex MRLs for lindane at the next session of the Committee (paras 131-133);
- agreed if the OECD requests any input on further developments of the calculator, the Codex Secretariat would circulate this request to all Codex Member Countries (para. 138);
- agreed to continue to identify priority minor uses and specialty crops for MRL setting and to prepare proposals for definitions of minor use and specialty crops for consideration at its next session (para. 163);
- agreed on the priority list of pesticides to be evaluated by JMPR, for adoption by the 33rd Session of the Commission (para. 186 and Appendix XII); and
- agreed to retain the *Guidelines on the Portion of Commodities to which Codex MRLs apply and which is analyzed (CAC/GL 41-1993)* as a single document (para. 190), and consider the status of a list of analytical methods for pesticide residues on the IAEA website at its next session (para. 194)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Paragraphs
INTRODUCTION	1
OPENING OF THE SESSION	2-4
DIVISION OF COMPETENCE	5-6
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA (AGENDA ITEM 1)	7
In-session Working Group on Methods of Analysis and Sampling	8
APPOINTMENT OF RAPPORTEURS (AGENDA ITEM 2)	9
MATTERS REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE BY THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND/OR ITS SUBSIDIARY BODIES (AGENDA ITEM 3)	10-11
MATTERS OF INTEREST TO THE COMMITTEE ARISING FROM THE JOINT FAO/WHO MEETINGS ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (JMPR) (AGENDA ITEM 4)	12-27
Report on Items of General Consideration by the 2009 JMPR (Agenda Item 4a)	12-26
Report on 2009 JMPR responses to specific concerns raised by CCPR (Agenda Item 4b)	27
CONSIDERATION OF MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (Agenda Item 5).	28-85
Carbaryl (008)	28
Fenthion (039)	29-30
Malathion (049)	31-32
Paraquat (057)	33-34
Chlorpyrifos-methyl (090)	35-38
Methomyl (094)	39
Carbofuran (096)	40-41
Phorate (112)	42
Cypermethrin (including alpha- and zeta-cypermethrin) (118)	43-44
Oxamyl (126)	45
Triadimefon (133)	46
Procymidone (136)	47-48
Prochloraz (142)	49
Triazophos (143)	50
Carbosufuran (145)	51
Benalaxyl (155)	52-53
Cyfluthrin/ beta-cyfluthrin (157)	54
Triadimenol (168)	55
Buprofezin (173)	56-58
Hexythizox (176)	59-60
Bifenthrin (178)	61
Tebuconazole (189)	62

Fenpyroximate (193)	63
Haloxyfop (194)	64-66
Fenbuconazole (197)	67-69
Esfenvalerate (204)	70
Methoxyfenozide (209)	71-73
Metalaxyl-M (212)	74
Indoxacarb (216)	75-76
Boscalid (221)	77-79
Zoxamide (227)	80
Prothioconazole (232)	81
Fluopicolide (235)	82-83
Metaflumizone (236)	84
Spirodiclofen (237)	85
CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS (AGENDA ITEM 6)	86-118
Draft Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds at Step 7: <i>Bulb Vegetables; Fruiting Vegetables, other than Cucurbits; Berries and Other Small Fruits; Edible Fungi; Citrus Fruits; Pome Fruits; Stone Fruits; and Oilseeds</i> (Agenda Item 6a)	86-96
Draft Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds at Step 7: Unresolved issues in commodity groups of <i>Fruiting Vegetables</i> , <i>other than Cucurbits</i> ; <i>Pome Fruits</i> ; <i>and Oilseeds</i> (Agenda Item 6b)	97
Proposed draft Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds at Step 4: Other Commodity Groups (Agenda Item 6c)	98-106
Proposed draft Principles and Guidelines for the Selection of Representative Commodities for the Extrapolation of Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides for Commodity Groups at Step 4 (Agenda Item 6d)	107-118
MATTERS RELATED TO METHODS OF ANALYSIS FOR PESTICIDE RESIDUES (AGENDA ITEM 7)	119-124
Proposed draft revision of the Guidelines on the Estimation of Uncertainty of Results for the Determination of Pesticide Residues at Step 4 (Agenda Item 7a)	119-123
Discussion Paper on the Use of K_{ow} (n -octanol-water partition coefficient) for the Estimation of Processing Factors in Primary Processed Foods (Agenda Item 7b)	124
DISCUSSION PAPER ON THE EXTRANEOUS MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PERSISTENT ORGANIC POLLUTANTS (POPS) FALLING WITHIN THE STOCKHOLM CONVENTION AND THE TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE CODEX COMMITTEE ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (AGENDA ITEM 8)	125-133
DISCUSSION PAPER ON THE CALCULATION METHOD FOR THE ESTIMATION OF MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES BEING DEVELOPED THROUGH THE OECD (AGENDA ITEM 9)	
REVISION OF THE RISK ANALYSIS PRINCIPLES APPLIED BY THE CODEX COMMITTEE ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (AGENDA ITEM 10)	
DISCUSSION PAPER ON THE GUIDANCE TO FACILITATE THE ESTABLISHMENT OF MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES FOR MINOR USE AND SPECIALTY CROPS (AGENDA ITEM 11)	153-163
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	

ESTABLISHMENT OF CODEX PRIORITY LIST OF PESTICIDES (AGENDA ITEM 12)	164-186
General matters	164-166
Scheduling of chemicals	167-173
Periodic re-evaluations	174-175
Periodic re-evaluations - chemicals no longer supported	176-180
Evaluations	181-182
JMPR revised timeframes	183
Format of the schedule - Priority List of Pesticides Table	184-185
Conclusions	186
OTHER BUSINESS AND FUTURE WORK (AGENDA ITEM 13)	
Analysis of the References to Pesticide Residues in CODEX STAN 229-1993 and Various Sections of Volume 2 of the Codex Alimentarius (Agenda Item 13)	187-194
Achieving Globally Harmonized MRLs through Codex (Agenda Item 13a)	195-202
Other matters	203-205
DATE AND PLACE OF THE NEXT SESSION (AGENDA ITEM 14)	206

LIST OF APPENDICES

		Pages
APPENDIX I	LIST OF PARTICIPANTS	26
Appendix II	DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION AT STEP 8)	42
APPENDIX III	PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION AT STEP 5/8)	43
APPENDIX IV	PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION AT STEP 5)	48
APPENDIX V	CODEX MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES RECOMMENDED FOR REVOCATION	50
APPENDIX VI	PROPOSED DRAFT AND DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (RETAINED AT STEP 7)	53
APPENDIX VII	PROPOSED DRAFT AND DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (RETURNED TO STEP 6)	55
APPENDIX VIII	DRAFTS CODEX MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES WITHDRAWN	56
APPENDIX IX	DRAFT REVISION OF THE CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS – PROPOSAL FOR EIGHT COMMODITY GROUPS: Bulb Vegetables; Fruiting Vegetables, other than cucurbits; Berries and other Small Fruits; Edible Fungi; Citrus Fruits; Pome Fruits; Stone Fruits; and Oilseeds (RETAINED AT STEP 7):	57
APPENDIX X	PROPOSED DRAFT REVISION OF THE CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS – PROPOSAL FOR THREE COMMODITY GROUPS: <i>Tree Nuts</i> , <i>Herbs</i> and <i>Spices</i> (RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION AT STEP 5)	78
Appendix XI	PROPOSED DRAFT PRINCIPLES AND GUIDANCE FOR THE SELECTION OF REPRESENTATIVE COMMODITIES FOR THE EXTRAPOLATION OF MRLS TO COMMODITY GROUPS (RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION AT STEP 5)	93
APPENDIX XII	PRIORITY LIST OF CHEMICALS SCHEDULED FOR EVALUATION AND RE-EVALUATION BY JMPR	97
Appendix XIII	PROPOSED DRAFT REVISION OF THE GUIDELINES ON THE ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY OF RESULTS FOR THE DETERMINATION OF PESTICIDE RESIDUES (RETURNED TO STEP 3)	106

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

(Used in this Report)

CAC Codex Alimentarius Commission

CCFA Codex Committee on Food Additives

CCGP Codex Committee on General Principles

CCMAS Codex Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling

CCNFSDU Codex Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses

CCPR Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues

CCRVDF Codex Committee on Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods

CLI CropLife International

EFSA European Food Safety Authority

EWG Electronic Working Group

EC European Community

FAO Food and Agricultural Organization of the United Nations

GEMS/Food Global Environment Monitoring System - Food Contamination Monitoring and

Assessment Programme

JECFA Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives

JMPR Joint FAO/WHO Meetings on Pesticide Residues

OECD Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development

USA United States of America

WHO World Health Organization

WTO World Trade Organization

ARfD Acute Reference Dose

ADI Acceptable Daily Intake

CXL Codex Maximum Residue Limit for Pesticide

DIE Daily Intake Estimate

GAP Good Agricultural Practice in the Use of Pesticides

EMRL Extraneous Maximum Residue Limit

HR Highest residue in edible portion of a commodity found in trials used to estimate a

maximum residue level in the commodity

IESTI International Estimated Short-Term Intake

MRL Maximum Residue Limit

INTRODUCTION

1. The Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues (CCPR) held its 42nd Session in Xian, China, from 19 to 24 April 2010 at the kind invitation of the Government of China. Professor Xiongwu Qiao, Vice-Director of the Shanxi Academy of Agricultural Sciences chaired the session, assisted by Dr Weili Shan, the Director of Residue Devision of Institute for Control of Agrochemicals, Ministry of Agriculture, as Vice-chairperson. The Session was attended by 190 delegates representing 51 Member Countries, one International Government and 7 Non-governmental Organizations. The list of participants is attached as Appendix I to this Report.

OPENING OF THE SESSION

- 2. Madam Yuxiang Zhang, Chief Economist of the Ministry of Agriculture of the People's Republic of China, opened the session. She welcomed the participants and emphasized the important role and achievements of this Committee in ensuring the safety of agricultural products traded internationally. Madam Zhang also drew the attention of delegates to activities of the Chinese government in ensuring food security and food safety in China.
- 3. Ms Victoria Sekitoleko, FAO Representative Office in China also welcomed delegates. She thanked the Government of China for its support in hosting two important Codex Committees, namely this Committee and the Committee on Food Additives and welcomed the recent developments on food safety in China.
- 4. Mr Yinliang Yao, vice-governor of ShaanXi Province and Prof Zongmao Chen, Academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering and the former CCPR chairperson, also welcomed the participants.

Division of Competence¹

- 5. The Committee noted the division of competence between the European Community (EC) and its Member States, according to paragraph 5, Rule II of the Procedure of the Codex Alimentarius Commission, as presented in CRD 2.
- 6. Due to exceptional circumstances associated with air traffic problems in European airports, the Committee agreed that the EU common positions would be presented by the official of the General Secretariat of the Council of the European Union, integrated in the Delegation of Spain, until the other members of the Spain Delegation and the Delegation of the EU would be able to come to the session.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA (Agenda Item 1)²

7. The Committee agreed to consider Agenda Item 13 (a) *Achieving Globally Harmonized MRLs through Codex* before Agenda Item 12 *Establishment of Codex Priority Lists of Pesticides* and adopted the Provisional Agenda as the Agenda for the Session.

In-session working group on methods of analysis and sampling

8. The Committee noted that the Chairperson of the in-session working group on Methods of Analysis and Sampling, Dr Josef Brodesser, was not able to attend the session and agreed that the insession working group would be chaired by Australia and co-chaired by China.

APPOINTMENT OF RAPPORTEURS (Agenda Item 2)

9. The Committee appointed Mr David Lunn (New Zealand) and Ms Kathy Monk (United States of America) to act as rapporteurs.

² CX/PR 10/42/1.

1

CRD 2 (European Union Division of Competence)

MATTERS REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE BY THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND/OR ITS SUBSIDIARY BODIES (Agenda Item 3)³

10. The Committee noted that matters arising from the 32nd Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission were presented for information purposes only or would be discussed in more detail by the current session of the CCPR under the relevant Agenda Items.

11. The Committee also noted matters arising from the 31st Session of the Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling in relation to the revision of the Guidelines for Measurement of Uncertainties that might be relevant when the Committee considered the proposed draft revised Guidelines on the Estimation of Uncertainty of Results for the Determination of Pesticide Residues (Agenda Item 7a) and the identification of methods of analysis for health related substances (including pesticides) in the Standard for Natural Mineral Waters that has been endorsed by CCMAS and forwarded to the 33rd Session of the Commission for adoption. It was further noted that ISO and AOAC methods proposed by the CCMAS for pesticides apply to organochlorine pesticides and PCBs.⁴

REPORT ON ITEMS OF GENERAL CONSIDERATION BY THE 2009 JOINT FAO/WHO MEETINGS ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (JMPR) (Agenda Item 4 (a))⁵

2.1 Transparency in the Maximum Residue Level estimation process - further considerations

- 12. The FAO JMPR secretary recalled that the 41st Session of the Committee requested the 2009 JMPR to use the OECD statistical calculation method when estimating maximum residue levels, and if not available to continue using the NAFTA calculator method. The JMPR was also requested to provide a brief explanation of derivation of the maximum residue levels when the calculator was not used.
- 13. In response to the CCPR request, the FAO JMPR secretary explained that the 2009 JMPR had continued to use the NAFTA calculator method, and that additional explanation on how the value was derived for each pesticide/commodity maximum residue level was provided to the CCPR.
- 14. The Committee was advised that the JMPR applied expert judgement informed by available tools such as statistical approaches to estimate maximum residue levels. Additional factors are taken into account by the JMPR as part of the application of expert judgement.
- 15. Examples of how the JMPR uses expert judgement have been included in the 2009 JMPR Report and these indicate that evaluation of residue data is a complex task that requires the consideration of other factors and parameters in addition to the numerical residue values.
- 16. Regarding the issue of transparency, the Delegation of the USA recognized the efforts which have been made by the JMPR to provide a much more detailed explanation of the basis for the JMPR MRL recommendations, noting that this information is very useful for national authorities as they consider the most appropriate MRL in their situation and it is very useful to the CCPR risk managers who can now more clearly understand the basis of the JMPR MRL recommendations.
- 17. In regard to the use of an MRL calculator as a tool in MRL harmonization, the Delegation of the USA noted there still seems to be some lack of recognition of the importance of the use of an agreed tool as a potential aid in harmonization of MRLs, not because it dictate a result, but because it provides as starting point and a presumption that unless there is a good reason not to use the result of

•

³ CX/PR 10/42/2, CRD 11 (Information from the Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling on the consideration of measurement uncertainty, prepared by the Codex Secretariat).

⁴ ALINORM 10/33/23, paras 34-56 and 99-109.

Section 2 of the 2009 JMPR Report, CRD 3 (comments from China), CRD 4 (prepared by JMPR), CRD 5 (Corrigenda to the 2009 JMPR report prepared by JMPR), CRD 15 (prepared by the European Union), CRD 18 (comments from Paraguay).

the calculator, the result should be used and, if not used, the reason should be documented for all to see and understand.

- 18. In regard to the use of an MRL calculator, the FAO JMPR secretary emphasized that the calculator tool is very helpful, but that currently no appropriate international calculator has been available to be used by JMPR and, in regard to transparency that the JMPR will continue to strive to improve the explanations of the MRL derivations.
- 19. The Delegation of the EU welcomed the development of the OECD MRL calculator and the exploration of its use by JMPR, and supported the view of JMPR that MRL estimates cannot solely be based on automatic calculation using any currently available 'statistical' method.
- 20. The Delegation of Australia while commending the JMPR for the explanation and detail provided on this issue, considered that the issue of transparency was more than adequately addressed and did not require further discussion by the Committee.
- 21. As regards the use of a statistical calculation method, Australia is aware that a new revision of the OECD Calculator is currently being tested by regulators in OECD member countries, and will be brought to this Committee, once JMPR has had an opportunity to use it, following OECD approval.

2.2 The OECD guidance document on livestock feeding

22. The Committee was informed that the JMPR agreed to use the latest available version of the OECD feed table with some modifications for indicating the Codex crop group of each commodity. The revised table has been included in the FAO Manual Second Edition and will be used by the Meeting in 2010. The detailed procedure is described in the updated FAO Manual.

2.3 Guidance for data submission for estimation of residue levels in/on spices

- 23. The Committee noted that the monitoring residue data submitted to the JMPR for estimation of residue levels in/on spices were insufficient for evaluation in past years as the guidance given by the JMPR might have been misinterpreted.
- 24. In order to assist collection and submission of the appropriate information, three important principles were re-emphasized and indicated in section 2.3 of the 2009 JMPR report. Comprehensive information on data requirements is also available in the second edition of the FAO Manual (section 3.6).

2.4 Update of the FAO manual on the submission and evaluation of Data on pesticide residues for the estimation of maximum residue levels in food and feed

- 25. The Committee was informed that the FAO Manual on the submission and evaluation of Data on pesticide residues for the estimation of maximum residue levels in food and feed has been updated recently. The second edition of the FAO Manual describes the basic principles currently applied by the FAO Panel in the evaluation of pesticide residues for recommending maximum residue levels. The Manual was published and is also available at the FAO website http://www.fao.org/agriculture/crops/core-themes/theme/pests/pm/jmpr/jmpr-docs/en/
- 26. The Committee expressed its appreciation to JMPR for their work, in particular for their explanation and detail provided on how they derived the recommended MRLs, and pointed out that the work of JMPR was essential for this Committee.

REPORT ON 2009 JMPR RESPONSES TO SPECIFIC CONCERNS RAISED BY CCPR (Agenda Item 4b)⁶

27. The Committee noted that specific concerns raised by CCPR at its last meeting will be considered when discussing the relevant chemicals under Agenda Item 5.

DRAFT AND PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES IN FOODS AND FEEDS AT STEPS 7 AND 4 (Agenda Item 5)⁷

CARBARYL (008)

28. The Committee decided to recommend revocation of the temporary CXL for cherries and to withdraw the draft MRL for cherries at 20 mg/kg because there were insufficient data to support an MRL recommendation based on alternative GAP.

FENTHION (039)

- 29. The Committee noted the CXLs for cherries; citrus fruits; olive oil, virgin and olives were based on European GAPs which no longer existed.
- 30. The Committee agreed to retain these CXLs, awaiting the outcome of the periodic review by JMPR scheduled in 2017.

MALATHION (049)

- 31. The Committee noted of the CXLs for apples; grapes and citrus fruits were based on European GAPs which no longer existed.
- 32. The Committee agreed to retain these CXLs, awaiting the outcome of the periodic review by JMPR to be considered in 2014 for scheduling.

PARAQUAT (057)

- 33. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs for rice and rice straw and fodder (Dry) for adoption at Step 5/8 and to recommend the subsequent revocation of the CXL for rice.
- 34. The Committee noted the acute dietary intake concern of the EU for pulses and potatoes, and invited the EU to submit a concern form clearly outlining their concern.

CHLORPYRIFOS-METHYL (090)

- 35. The Committee decided to advance the proposed draft MRLs for chilli pepper, dry; citrus fruits; egg plant; grapes; peppers; pome fruits; potato; stone fruits; strawberry and tomato for adoption at Step 5/8 with the subsequent revocation of the associated CXLs.
- 36. The Committee decided to advance the proposed draft MRLs for barley (post harvest) currently at Step 3; edible offal (mammalian); eggs; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); milk fats; milks; poultry meat; poultry, edible offal of; wheat; wheat bran, unprocessed; wheat germ; grape pomace, dry; oats and rice for adoption at Step 5. The Committee also agreed to return the draft MRL for barley at Step 7 to Step 6 awaiting the review of alternative GAP for cereal grains by the 2012 JMPR. Therefore CXLs for cattle fat; cattle meat; cattle, edible offal of; chicken fat; chicken meat and chicken, edible offal of were retained awaiting the final adoption of the corresponding commodity MRL group.

Section 3 of the 2009 JMPR Report.

CL 2009/33-PR; CX/PR 10/42/03; CX/PR 10/42/03-Add.1; CRD 3(comments from China); CRD 13 (comments from Kenya); CRD 15 (comments from European Union); CRD 20 (comments from India)

37. The Committee agreed to recommend revocation of the CXLs for artichoke, globe; cabbages, head; mushroom; Chinese cabbage (type pe-tsai); common bean (pods and/or immature seeds); date; lettuce head; peach; radish; tea, green, black (black, fermented and dried); wheat flour; white bread and wholemeal bread as recommended by the 2009 JMPR.

38. The Committee agreed to withdraw the draft MRL for maize because GAP no longer was supported.

METHOMYL (094)

39. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRL for apple for the adoption at Step 8, noting the reservation of the EU on apple due to acute intake concerns.

CARBOFURAN (096)

- 40. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs for mandarin and oranges, sweet, sour (including orange-like hybrids): several cultivars for adoption at Step 8.
- 41. The Committee agreed to maintain the CXL for banana awaiting the 2012 JMPR evaluation of bridging study to address the acute dietary intake concerns identified by the 2009 JMPR.

PHORATE (112)

42. The Committee noted that the 2009 JMPR considered a new processing study on potatoes but the data was not sufficient to alleviate the acute intake concerns and agreed to hold the proposed MRL of 0.5 mg/kg for potatoes at Step 7 awaiting new information from the manufacturer for consideration by the 2012 JMPR.

CYPERMETHRIN (INCLUDING ALPHA- AND ZETA-CYPERMETHRIN) (118)

- 43. The Committee agreed to hold the proposed draft for asparagus at Step 7 awaiting data from Thailand and decided to advance all the remaining proposed draft MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8.
- 44. The Committee also noted that the CXLs for citrus fruits and tea, green, black were being retained under the four year rule awaiting data for evaluation by JMPR in 2011. The Committee invited the EU to submit a concern form clearly outlining their acute intake concerns.

OXAMYL (126)

45. The Committee decided to retain all the draft MRLs at Step 7 awaiting the 2012 JMPR evaluation.

TRIADIMEFON (133)

46. The Committee decided to withdraw the draft MRL and recommend revocation of the CXL for grapes due to acute intake concerns.

PROCYMIDONE (136)

- 47. The Committee was informed that the 2009 JMPR had considered the concerns raised by the EU regarding the ADI and ARfD for Procymidone and had confirmed their previous decisions. The EU expressed regret that no agreement could be reached on this issue.
- 48. The Committee noted that there was no support by the manufacturers for a periodic review and agreed to consider revocation of all CXLs at the next session.

PROCHLORAZ (142)

49. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRL for mushrooms at 3 mg/kg for adoption at Step 5/8 resulting from the alternative GAP evaluation by the 2009 JMPR with the subsequent revocation of the CXL of 2 mg/kg and to withdraw the draft MRL of 40 mg/kg.

TRIAZOPHOS (143)

50. The Committee was informed that Thailand had already submitted data for soya bean (immature seeds) to JMPR and agreed to return the draft MRL for soya bean (immature seeds) to Step 6, awaiting the outcome of 2010 JMPR evaluation.

CARBOSULFAN (145)

51. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs for mandarin and oranges, sweet, sour for adoption at Step 8.

BENALAXYL (155)

- 52. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs for grapes; lettuce, head; melons, except watermelon; onion, bulb; potato; tomato and watermelon for adoption at Step 5/8, and to recommend the revocation of the CXLs for chilli pepper, dry; cucumber; grapes; hops, dry; melons, except watermelon; onion, bulb; peppers, sweet (including pimento or pimiento); potato and tomato, as proposed by the 2009 JMPR.
- 53. The Committee was informed that EU would submit data for onion; potato and tomato to support JMPR evaluation for these commodities.

CYFLUTHRIN/BETA-CYFLUTHRIN (157)

54. The Committee agreed to return the draft MRL for cabbage head to Step 6 awaiting the evaluation of additional data to be submitted by Indonesia by the 2012 JMPR, and decided to withdraw the two draft MRLs for broccoli.

TRIADIMENOL (168)

55. The Committee decided to withdraw the draft MRL and recommend revocation of the CXL for grapes in line with the decision made for Triadimefon (133).

BUPROFEZIN (173)

- 56. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs of almond hulls; almonds; apple; cherries; dried grapes (=currants, raisins and sultanas); edible offal (mammalian); fruiting vegetables, cucurbits; grapes; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); milks; nectarine; olives; peach; pear; peppers; plums (including prunes); strawberry for adoption at Step 5/8, with the subsequent revocation of the associated CXLs.
- 57. The Committee noted dietary intake concerns from EU regarding the proposed MRLs for peach and pear, and that additional data for coffee would be submitted by the manufacturer.
- 58. In response to the concern submitted by the USA as to why there was no MRL proposed for coffee, the JMPR secretariat clarified that three independent trials were not sufficient to propose an MRL for such a widely consumed commodity.

HEXYTHIAZOX (176)

59. The Committee decided to advance all the proposed draft MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8 with the subsequent revocation of the associated CXLs.

60. The Committee agreed to recommend revocation of the CXLs for common bean (pods and/or immature seeds); cucumber and currant, red, white as recommended by 2009 JMPR and to retain the CXLs for hops, dry and strawberry under the four year rule, awaiting the 2011 JMPR review of data to be submitted by the manufacturer.

BIFENTHRIN(178)

61. In response to the concern of the EU, France and Croplife international who questioned the scientific validity of the published literature used by the JMPR to set an ARfD for bifenthrin, the WHO secretary of JMPR clarified that it was very clearly in the mandate of JMPR to take all relevant available information into account. The Delegation of France disagreed with the JMPR explanation.

TEBUCONAZOLE (189)

62. The Committee noted the acute intake concern expressed by the EU and decided to retain all the draft MRLs at Step 7, awaiting the outcome of the JMPR evaluation for toxicology (2010) and residues (2011).

FENPYROXIMATE (193)

63. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRL for grapes at Step 7, awaiting the outcome of the evaluation by 2010 JMPR.

HALOXYFOP (194)

- 64. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs for coffee bean; onion, bulb; stone fruits and banana for adoption at Step 5/8, as proposed by the 2009 JMPR, and recommend the subsequent revocation of the CXL for banana.
- 65. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs for beans (dry); beans, except broad bean and soya bean; chick-pea (dry); citrus fruits; cotton seed; edible offal (mammalian); eggs; fodder beet; grapes; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); milk fats; milks; peanut fodder; peas (dry); peas (pods and succulent=immature seeds); peas, shelled (succulent seeds); pome fruits; poultry meat; poultry, edible offal of; rape seed; soya bean (dry); sugar beet and sunflower seed for adoption at Step 5 due to the intake concern expressed by the EU.
- 66. The Committee decided to withdraw all remaining draft MRLs at Step 4 and 7 as recommended by 2009 JMPR.

FENBUCONAZOLE (197)

- 67. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs for eggs; milks; poultry meat; poultry, edible offal of and tree nuts for adoption at Step 5/8, with the subsequent revocation of the associated CXLs.
- 68. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs for almond hulls; apple pomace, dry; blueberries; cranberry; edible offal (mammalian); meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); peanut; peanut fodder; peppers; peppers chili, dried; plums (including prunes) and pome fruits for adoption at Step 5 due to the issues raised by Australia as to whether an ARfD was needed.
- 69. The Committee decided to recommend revocation of the CXLs for pecan and poultry fats as recommended by 2009 JMPR.

ESFENVALERATE(204)

70. The Committee agreed to retain the draft MRLs for cotton seed; tomato and wheat at Step 7 awaiting information next year on the status of the fenvalerate phase-out.

METHOXYFENOZIDE (209)

71. The Committee decided to advance all proposed MRLs except for spinach for adoption at Step 5/8 with the subsequent revocation of the associated CXLs for cranberry; edible offal (mammalian); meat (from mammals other than marine mammals) and milks, and withdraw the proposed MRLs for spinach due to acute intake concerns for children.

- 72. The Committee noted the concern expressed by the USA that JMPR had not recommended MRLs for a number of commodities because the supporting residue data were from trials involving treatments more than 25% higher than the authorized GAP (the JMPR/OECD cut-off point) even though there were no intake risks.
- 73. The Committee agreed to the offer from Australia to help resolve the issue on the application of proportionality in selecting data for MRL estimation by preparing a discussion paper for consideration at the next session.

METALAXYL-M (212)

74. The Committee decided to retain all draft MRLs at Step 7, awaiting the outcome of the JMPR periodic re-evaluation of metalaxyl (138) for toxicology and residue in 2013.

INDOXACARB (216)

- 75. The Committee decided to advance all proposed MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8 with the subsequent revocation of the associated CXLs.
- 76. The Committee decided to request JMPR to conduct an alternative GAP evaluation for lettuce, leaf and to retain the existing CXL for this commodity in the meantime.

BOSCALID (221)

- 77. The Committee decided to advance the proposed MRL of 0.6 mg/kg for banana for adoption at Step 8 with the subsequent revocation of the associated CXL and withdraw the draft MRLs for kiwi fruit at Step 6.
- 78. The Committee also decided to advance all remaining proposed MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8 with the subsequent revocation of the associated CXLs.
- 79. The Committee noted the reservation of the EU regarding the proposed MRL for leafy vegetable in light of their higher MRL for lamb's lettuce. The EU agreed to submit their data for JMPR evaluation.

ZOXAMIDE (227)

80. The Committee decided to advance the proposed MRL for fruiting vegetables, cucurbits for adoption at Step 5/8 and to subsequently revoke the CXL for cucumber.

PROTHIOCONAZOLE (232)

81. The Committee decided to advance all the proposed MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8 with the subsequent revocation of the associated CXLs and to recommend revocation of the CXL for mammalian fats (except milk fats) as recommended by JMPR in 2009.

FLUOPICOLIDE (235)

82. The Committee decided to advance the MRLs for Brussels sprouts; chilli peppers, dry; dried grapes (=currants, raisins and sultanas); edible offal (mammalian); eggs; flowerhead brassicas (including broccoli; broccoli, Chinese and cauliflower); fruiting vegetables other than cucurbits; fruiting vegetables, cucurbits; grape pomace, dry; grapes; meat (from mammals other than marine

mammals); milks; onion, bulb; onion welsh; poultry meat; poultry, edible offal of and straw and fodder (dry) of cereal grains for adoption at Step 5/8.

83. The Committee also decided to advance the MRLs for cabbages, head; celery and leafy vegetables for adoption at Step 5 due to the intake concerns expressed by the EU and Switzerland. The Committee was advised that the Switzerland would submit a concern form clearly outlining their concerns over the JMPR ARfD and intake estimation.

METAFLUMIZONE (236)

84. The Committee decided to advance all the proposed draft MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8.

SPIRODICLOFEN (237)

85. The Committee decided to advance all the proposed draft MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8.

CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS (Agenda Item 6)

DRAFT REVISION OF THE CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS: Bulb vegetables; Fruiting vegetables, other than cucurbits; Berries and other small fruits; Edible fungi; Citrus fruits; Pome fruits; Stone fruits; and Oilseeds (Agenda Item 6a)⁸

- 86. The Committee recalled that its last session agreed to forward the proposed draft revision of the Codex Classification for eight commodity groups: Bulb vegetables; Fruiting vegetables, other than cucurbits; Berries and other small fruits; Edible fungi; Citrus fruits; Pome fruits; Stone fruits; and Oilseeds, for adoption at Step 5 and that the Electronic Working Group led by the Netherlands and the United States was to prepare proposals on how to address some unresolved issues in commodity groups of Fruiting vegetables, other than cucurbits, Pome fruits and Oilseeds (see also Agenda Item 6(b)).
- 87. The Delegation of China noted that advancing the draft would help to promote the international harmonization of trade of foods and animal feeds and speed up the process of the international harmonization of pesticide maximum residue limits and suggested that the Committee might consider the preparation of a comprehensive information card for every commodity, so as to avoid confusion caused by differences in languages and crop names. The Committee noted that this information was being developed by the International Crop Grouping Consulting Committee (ICGCC) and would shortly become available worldwide through the website.
- 88. The Delegation of the United States, as the co-chairperson of the Electronic Working Group informed the Committee that CRD 28 had been prepared and that this CRD incorporated all proposals submitted by Member governments in their written comments.
- 89. The Committee agreed to consider the revised version of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds as presented in CRD 28 and generally agreed with all new proposals in the document.

Fruiting Vegetables other than Cucurbits

90. The Committee agreed to retain Okra (including Lady's Finger) and Roselle under the Subgroup 12B Peppers while revising the title to "Pepper and pepper-like commodities" as the Group

ALINORM 09/32/24, App. IX; CX/PR 10/42/4 (Not issued); CRD 3 (comments from China); CRD 12 (comments from the United States of America); CRD 13 (Comments from Kenya); CRD 18 (comments from Paraguay); CRD 19 (comments from Mali); CRD 22 (comments from South Africa); and CRD 28 (Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds: Bulb Vegetables; Fruiting Vegetables, other than Cucurbits; Berries and other Small Fruits; Edible Fungi; Citrus Fruits; Pome

Fruits; Stone Fruits; and Oilseeds as revised by the Working Group).

-

also covered commodities other than peppers. It was noted that these commodities were minor crops and therefore, it would be unlikely that residue data would be generated for any individual commodity if they were placed in a separate subgroup. It was further noted that data available for okra in relation to applied GAPs and residues demonstrated that this commodity could be accommodated under the Subgroup 12B.

- 91. The Committee also agreed to retain Pepino and Tree melon under the Subgroup 12C Egg Plants and revised the title to "Egg plants and egg plant-like commodities" as the Group also covered commodities other than egg plants.
- 92. At the request of South Africa, the Committee agreed to include Piquant peppers (*Capsicum battacum var piquanté*) in Subgroup 12B as it was different than other peppers in the group.

Pome Fruits

93. The Committee agreed to retain Azarole, Mayhaw and Tejocote under the Group 002 Pome Fruits.

Oil seeds

94. The Committee agreed to retain Linseed, Poppy seed and Sesame seed under the Subgroup 023A while changing the name to the Sub Group to "Small seed oilseeds".

Olives

95. The Committee agreed to add a new commodity "SO 0305 Olives for oil production" in the Subgroup 023E Oilfruits and to add to the commodity FT 0305 the word "Table" before olives i.e. FT 0305 Table olives.

Status of draft the draft revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds

96. The Committee agreed to retain the eight commodity groups namely Bulb vegetables; Fruiting vegetables, other than cucurbits; Berries and small fruits; Edible fungi; Citrus fruits; Pome fruits; Stone fruits; and Oilseeds at Step 7, as amended during the session, awaiting finalization of the revision of the Classification in compliance with its previous decision⁹ that the revised individual commodity groups should not be adopted until all the revision had been completed in order to avoid problems, especially with the transfer of commodities from one group to the other (see Appendix IX).

DRAFT REVISION OF THE CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS: Unresolved issues in commodity groups of Fruiting vegetables other than cucurbits, Pome fruits, and Oilseeds (Agenda Item 6b)¹⁰

97. The Committee considered the proposals presented in the document prepared by the Electronic Working Group led by the Netherlands and the United States of America for the resolution of certain unresolved issues arising from the discussion on the commodity groups for Fruiting vegetables other than cucurbits, Pome fruits, and Oilseeds that took place at the last session of the Committee¹¹ and took decisions proposed in the document as presented under Agenda Item 6(a).

CX/PR 10/42/5; CRD 13 (comments from Kenya); CRD 14 (comments from Thailand); and CRD 19 (Comments from Mali).

⁹ ALINORM 07/31/24 para 150.

ALINORM 09/32/24 paras 140, 141, 143 and 145.

PROPOSED DRAFT REVISION OF THE CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS: Tree Nuts, Herbs and Spices (Agenda Item 6c)¹²

98. The Committee considered the additional commodity groups Tree Nuts, Herbs and Spices within the framework of the overall revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds. In this regard, the Committee agreed to consider a revised version of working document CX/PR 10/42/6 as prepared by the Electronic Working Group led by the Netherlands and the United Stated of America and presented in CRD 29 which incorporated all comments submitted to the present session of the Committee.

Tree Nuts

99. The Committee agreed to add Betel nuts in this Group.

Herbs

100. The Committee agreed to include: Phak ka yaeng (*Limnophila aromatica* Merr.), Phak paew (*Trichodesma indicum*), Covern fern (*Marsilea crenata* Prerl.) and Wild betle leaf bush (*Piper sarmentosum*) to subgroup 27A and to include the proposals made by Australia (CRD 17) relevant to Group 027 in square brackets.

Spices

101. The Committee agreed to insert the scientific name *Cucurma mangga* for commodity HH 0794 Turmeric, root under Subgroup 028D. The Committee also agreed to add a new Subgroup 028H Fruit Peels in square brackets include Citrus fruit peel under this new category. It was noted that this product was commonly traded as a spice within China and Japan and that residue levels in this type of commodity were usually higher than the levels in the corresponding citrus fruit. In addition, the Committee agreed to include in square brackets all proposals relevant to Group 028 as presented by the Delegation of Australia in CRD 17.

Other matters

- 102. The Delegation of the United States of America highlighted the importance of the early completion of the revision of the Classification so that the revised commodity groups could be implemented in international trade as soon as possible. This would assist in promoting MRL/PRs harmonization and in removing technical barriers to trade.
- 103. In this regard, the Delegation indicated that although the Committee had agreed at the beginning of the revision process that revised individual commodity groups should not be adopted until all the revisions had been completed¹³, after the resolution of the coding issues at the last session of the Committee¹⁴, it might now be possible to advance all commodity groups within a particular commodity type as they are completed. In particular the fruit types: berries and small fruits, citrus fruit, pome fruit and stone fruit, which had been completed by this session of the Committee, and the tropical fruits that could be completed by the next session of the Committee could all be advanced together.

_

CX/PR 10/42/6; CX/PR 10/42/6-Add.1 (comments from Canada, Cuba, Guatemala, Japan, CIAA, INC and IOSTA); CRD 12 (comments from the USA); CRD 13 (comments from Kenya); CRD 14 (comments from Thailand); CRD 17 (comments from Australia); CRD 25 (comments from Korea); CRD 29 (Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds: Tree Nuts, Herbs and Spices as revised by the Working Group).

ALINORM 07/30/24, para 150.

ALINORM 09/32/24, paras 133-134.

104. In view of the above, the Committee agreed that if all of the fruit types were completed by 2012, consideration would be given to advancing them to Step 8, for inclusion in the classification system.

Status of the proposed draft revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds

105. The Committee agreed to forward the proposed draft revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds for the 3 commodity groups, i.e. Tree Nuts, Herbs and Spices, to the Codex Alimentarius Commission for adoption at Step 5 (Appendix X).

106. The Committee further agreed to re-establish the Electronic Working Group led by the Netherlands and the United States of America, working in English only, to prepare new draft proposals for Assorted tropical and sub-tropical fruits-edible peel (Group 005), Assorted tropical and sub-tropical fruits-inedible peel (Group 006), Leafy vegetables (including Brassica leafy vegetables) (Group 013) and Brassica (cole or cabbage) vegetables, cabbage, Head and Flowerhead cabbages (Group 010) according to the schedule¹⁵ agreed to by the Committee.

PROPOSED DRAFT PRINCIPLES AND GUIDANCE FOR THE SELECTION OF REPRESENTATIVES COMMODITIES FOR THE EXTRAPOLATION OF MRLS TO COMMODITY GROUPS (Agenda Item 6d)¹⁶

- 107. The Committee recalled that at its 41st Session it had agreed that principles and guidance on the selection of representative crops for the extrapolation of MRLs to commodity groups should be redrafted by the Electronic Working Group led by the United States of America.
- 108. The Delegation of the United States of America, as the chairperson of the Electronic Working Group, briefly introduced the structure of document CX/PR 10/42/7 and highlighted the main issues addressed in the document.
- 109. Some Delegations noted that the Committee should concentrate on development of the principles and guidance and that each country could select representative commodities in accordance with these principles and guidance and to provide this information to the Committee as the basis for their inclusion as alternative representative commodities at the international level.
- 110. The Committee decided to consider the section outlining the principles and procedures on the guidance of the selection of representative commodities for extrapolation of MRLs to commodity groups separately from the specific tables for each commodity group.
- 111. After making an editorial amendment to the Section on Good Agricultural Practice, the Committee agreed with the text proposed in the document.
- 112. The Committee noted that the EU proposal regarding wider extrapolations beyond the members of a commodity group could be possible on a case-by-case basis and agreed that to accommodate this proposal additional work should be done on Table 1. Therefore it agreed to put all Table 1 in square brackets for further consideration at the next session.
- 113. The Delegation of the United States of America noted that it would be most efficient to concentrate on the proposals for the "Fruit Types" in order for these to be completed when the revision to the classification for "Fruit Types" is completed since having the revision to the classification without the guidance on the selection of representative commodities is of limited usefulness.

¹⁵ ALINORM 07/30/24, para 146.

CX/PR 10/42/7; CX/PR 10/42/7-Add.1 (not issued); CRD 10 (comments from Canada); CRD 13 (comments from Kenya); CRD 14 (comments from Thailand); CRD17 (comments from Australia) and CRD 30 (comments from the European Union).

114. The Committee also noted that additional work was needed on Addenda I and II, therefore it agreed that they should be developed separately from the principles and procedures.

115. The Committee agreed to ask the 2010 JMPR for their opinion on the text on the proposed principles and guidance on the selection of representative crops for the extrapolation of MRLs to commodity groups.

Status of the Draft Principles and Guidance on the Selection of Representative Commodities for the Extrapolation of MRLs to Commodity Group

- 116. The Committee agreed to forward the revised text on the draft principles and guidance on the selection of representative commodities for the extrapolation of MRLs to commodity groups to the 33rd session of the Commission for adoption at Step 5 (see Appendix XI).
- 117. The Committee agreed to return Addendum I containing detailed justification on bulb vegetables and fruiting vegetables, other than cucurbits and Addendum II containing background information regarding representative commodities to Step 2 for revision.
- 118. The Committee agreed to re-establish EWG led by the Netherlands and the United States of America, working in English only to prepare proposals for amendments in Table 1 and to revise Addenda I and II based on comments received at the current session for circulation at Step 3 and consideration by the next session of the Committee.

PROPOSED DRAFT REVISION OF THE GUIDELINES ON THE ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY OF RESULTS FOR THE DETERMINATION OF PESTICIDE RESIDUES (Agenda Item 7(a)) 17

- 119. The Committee recalled that its last session agreed to return the proposed draft Guidelines for revision by the Electronic Working Group for consideration by this session of the Committee.
- 120. The Delegation of Australia, as the Chair of the in-session Working Group on Methods of Analysis, introduced CRD 32 which contained a revised version of the Guidelines on the estimation of uncertainty of results for the determination of pesticide residues, and pointed out that 50 experts from 25 member countries participated in the work of the in-session Working Group. The Chairperson indicated that further work on resolving some content issues and consideration of the inclusion of some additional calculation examples were needed.
- 121. The Chair of the Working Group acknowledged the invaluable assistance provided by the rapporteurs Ms Donna Grant from Canada and Dr Robert Epstein fron the United States as well as the support provided by the co-chair Dr Canping Pan from China. It is further appropriate to acknowledge the considerable work by the previous chair Dr Josef Brodesser in processing the draft document to its current status.
- 122. The Committee expressed its appreciation to the Working Group for its work and generally agreed with the proposal of the Working Group.

Status of the proposed draft revision of the guidelines on the estimation of uncertainty of results for the determination of pesticide residues

123. The Committee agreed to return the revised draft Guidelines to Step 3 for comments and consideration by an Electronic Working Group chaired by Australia and co-chaired by China, open to

-

ALINORM 09/32/24, Appendix X; CX/PR 10/42/8-Add.1; CRD 3 (Comments of China); CRD 6 (Comments of New Zealand); CRD 7 (Comments of Argentina); CRD 11 (Information from CCMAS); CRD 13 (Comment from Kenya); CRD 18 (Comments of Paraguay); CRD 19 (Comments of Mali); CRD 24 (Document for consideration at the Working Group); CRD 32 (Prepared by in-session Working Group)

all Codex Members and Observers and working in English only, which would prepare a revised version for consideration by the next session of the Committee (Appendix XIII).

DISCUSSION PAPER ON THE USE OF $K_{\rm OW}(n\text{-}OCTANOL\text{-}WATER PARTITION COEFFICIENT)$ FOR THE ESTIMATION OF PROCESSING FACTORS IN PRIMARY PROCESSED FOODS (Agenda Item 7(b))

124. The Committee noted that the document was not prepared and decided to discontinue the consideration of this matter.

DISCUSSION PAPER ON THE EXTRANEOUS MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PERSISTENT ORGANIC POLLUTANTS (POPs) FALLING WITHIN THE STOCKHOLM CONVENTION AND THE TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE CODEX COMMITTEE ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (Agenda Item 8)¹⁸

- 125. The Committee recalled that at its last session it agreed to request monitoring data, including methods of analysis, for POPs which fell under the Stockholm Convention and within the mandate of CCPR not only for commodities for which Codex EMRLs were established but also for other foods. The Committee noted that this information had been compiled and summarised by an Electronic Working Group led by India and co-chaired by Australia and New Zealand.
- 126. The Delegation of India introduced the discussion paper containing the summary information and including recommendations on how to address the issues identified by the Working Group.
- 127. In this regard, the Delegation advised that the data presented did not allow any conclusion as to which residues were a result of continuing use of these chemicals (which is the concern of the Stockholm Convention) and which residues were a result of transfer from historical environmental levels in soil. The monitoring data also indicated that significant residues can still be expected in some commodities as a result of this historical use. There may be a need to keep the extraneous maximum residue limits for pesticides (EMRLs) to accommodate residues that are still occurring in some commodities and to also set new EMRLs for certain other commodities in order to facilitate their trade. The current CXLs for Lindane may also need to be replaced by EMRLs as a result of the recent proposed listing of this compound as a POP.
- 128. The Delegation of India noted that monitoring data submitted in response to CL 2009/18-PR indicated that there was unlikely to be a dietary intake concern from the presence of these residues in food.
- 129. The Joint FAO/WHO JMPR Secretariat commented that because these EMRLs had not been re-assessed by JMPR for a long time, such a statement could not be supported by the Joint FAO/WHO JMPR Secretariats.
- 130. The Committee then considered the recommendations proposed by the Working Group.

Existing EMRLs

131. The Committee agreed that, for the time being, no revision was necessary on existing EMRLs for POPs.

CX/PR 10/42/10; CRD 3 (Comments from China); CRD 8 (Comments from Mongolia); CRD 18 (Comments from Paraguay); CRD 19 (Comments from Mali); CRD 27 (Comments from Crop Life International); and CRD 31 (Comments from the European Union).

New EMRLs

132. The Committee agreed that there may be a need to set EMRLs for food items traded at the international level for which residue limits had not yet been established. In view of this, the Committee invited Codex members to submit proposals for new EMRLs to the chair of the EWG on priorities and when appropriate submit the available monitoring data to JMPR.

Lindane MRLs

133. The Committee noted that this compound had been re-evaluated by JMPR in 2002 (for toxicological) and 2003 (for residues) and that, in compliance with the 15 year rule for periodic review, it should be eligible for re-evaluation in 2017/18. Some Delegations indicated that they could provide monitoring data on Lindane. The Committee discussed the possible replacement of the existing Lindane CXLs with EMRLs and the Committee agreed to consider the status of these Codex CXLs for Lindane at the next Session of the Committee.

DISCUSSION PAPER ON THE CALCULATION METHOD FOR THE ESTIMATION OF MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES BEING DEVELOPED THROUGH THE OECD (Agenda Item 9)¹⁹

- 134. The Committee recalled that its 41st Session it was agreed to send a circular letter containing a questionnaire to all Codex Members in order to have more inclusiveness in the development of the OECD calculator and that replies to this questionnaire would be evaluated by an Electronic Working Group in order to prepare a paper for consideration by the next session of the Committee.
- 135. The Delegation of the United States, as the chair of the Electronic Working Group, informed the Committee that as the result of the input received, as well as the continuing work of the calculator group, the approach of the calculator group had substantially changed. Details of the new approach used in the OECD calculator were released only at the beginning of April and the approach will be discussed at the OECD for the first time in May. Because replies to the questionnaire were not directly applicable to evaluating the new approach, they were not discussed in detail, but were provided in the materials prepared for the meeting.
- 136. The Committee considered how to proceed further with regard to the OECD calculator.
- 137. In response to the recommendation made by Electronic Working Group to request that the OECD involves the JMPR and CCPR in the review and testing process, the FAO JMPR Secretariat clarified that the JMPR was continually striving for the development and utilization of a statistical calculation method and that JMPR experts actively took part in the development of relevant OECD Guidelines, including the calculation method.
- 138. After some discussion, the Committee agreed that, if the OECD requests any input on further developments of the calculator from the Member countries of the Codex, the Codex Secretariat would circulate this request to all Codex Member countries. Comments would be submitted to the United States with a copy to the Codex Secretariat. Further actions of the CCPR on the OECD calculator would be determined at a later stage when the final version of the calculator becomes available.

¹⁹ CX/PR 10/42/11, CRD 3 (Comments of China), CRD 18 (Comments of Paraguay), CRD 19 (Comments of Mali).

REVISION OF THE RISK ANALYSIS PRINCIPLES APPLIED BY THE CODEX COMMITTEE ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (Agenda Item 10)²⁰

139. The Committee recalled that at its 41st Session it established an Electronic Working Group led by Argentina to revise the Risk Analysis Principles Applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues for consideration by the current session of the Committee and that the revised principles would be considered by the Codex Committee on General Principles.

140. The Delegation of Argentina, speaking as the chair of the Working Group, introduced the document and highlighted the process used, changes in structure and amendments made by the Electronic Working Group in the revision of the document. The Delegation pointed out that agreement of the Committee should be reached on the content of the document and that the proposals on a new structure could be considered at a later stage.

General comments

- 141. The Delegation of Spain speaking on behalf of the EU (para. 6) indicated that the EU had a general reservation on all the text of the document. The Delegation stressed the need to keep the Periodic Evaluation Procedure, as it was the only way of reassessing new data, after 15 years, to confirm that the CXLs were still acceptable and that if the periodic evaluation is abolished and the CXLs are maintained, there would never be pressure for third parties to submit data showing that the CXLs are still acceptable. The Delegation emphasized that the EU could support retaining these CXLs if the product is not posing a risk for public health according to the most recent available scientific information.
- 142. Many Delegations supported the work done by the Working Group on the revision of the document, confirmed the decision of the last session of the Committee to retain the periodic reevaluation procedure and proposed that revocation of MRLs should not be done without a scientific basis to guarantee the concordance of the Risk Analysis Principles Applied by the CCPR with the document of Working Principles for Risk Analysis for Application in the framework of the Codex Alimentarius, General Principles of the Codex and other Codex Standards.
- 143. Some Delegations indicated that there was a need to ensure consistency of the CCPR risk analysis document with the Codex General Principles for Risk Analysis as indicated in the Codex Strategic Plan.
- 144. The Committee initially decided to consider the document section by section and made some mainly editorial changes in the first part of the document.
- 145. However it became clear that it would be more beneficial to concentrate on the most important areas of concern.
- 146. A number of countries emphasized that there was a need to retain the 15 year periodic review procedure in order to ensure the continued robustness of the Codex MRL setting process and the continued safety of CXLs.
- 147. The JMPR joint Secretariat indicated that since the use conditions of the compounds may change with time, older existing Codex MRLs may not reflect current use patterns (GAPs) and that some of the old toxicological studies and residue trials may not meet contemporary standards.

_

CX/PR 10/42/12; CX/PR 10/42/12-Add.1 (Comments from Brazil, Canada, New Zealand, Argentina, Cuba and Guatemala); CRD 3 (comments from China); CRD 4 (comments from JMPR); CRD 9 (comments from Japan); CRD 13 (comments from Kenya); CRD 14 (comments from Thailand); CRD 18 (comments from Paraguay); CRD 19 (comments from Mali); CRD 20 (comments from India); CRD 34 (comments from the European Union); CRD 37 (comments from Chile) and CRD 38 (comments from the European Union).

148. The JMPR secretariat indicated that data requirement for specific scenarios arising from periodic re-evaluation process needed specific guidance. The JMPR secretariat believed that FAO manual for data requirements would require revision accordingly, if such a specific guidance for the periodic re-evaluation is available.

- 149. After an extensive discussion on this and related issues, the Committee recognized that because of the complexity of the issues and the interrelationships between various parts of the document much more work was needed to accomplish the revision of the document.
- 150. The Committee agreed to return the Risk Analysis Principles Applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues for redrafting by the Electronic Working Group, led by Argentina and working in English and Spanish. The Committee agreed that the Electronic Working Group should revise the document taking into account written comments submitted, consideration of this matter in the last session of the Codex Committee on General Principles, and the comments made at the current session of the Committee.
- 151. In preparation for the next meeting, the EWG should clearly identify issues of concern across the document on which agreement cannot be reached by the EWG and prepare proposals on how to approach and resolve these issues in order to facilitate consideration of the document.
- 152. The revised version would be circulated for comments and consideration by the next session of the Committee.

DISCUSSION PAPER ON THE GUIDANCE TO FACILITATE THE ESTABLISHMENT OF MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES FOR MINOR USE AND SPECIALTY CROPS (Agenda Item 11)²¹

- 153. The Committee recalled that at its last session it agreed to re-establish the Electronic Working Group on Minor Uses and Specialty Crops, chaired by the United States of America and co-chaired by Australia and Kenya, which would continue to identify and address issues related to minor uses and specialty crops within the mandate of CCPR; would further elaborate the definitions of minor use and specialty crops for use by CCPR and JMPR; and would identify priority minor uses and specialty crops for MRL setting and facilitate data submissions to JMPR.
- 154. The Delegation of Kenya introduced the paper highlighting the main outcomes of the document. In this regard, the Delegation informed the Committee of priority minor uses and specialty crops that had been or would be proposed for inclusion in the Priority List for JMPR evaluation, and outlined a number of recommendations directed to CCPR and/or JMPR to facilitate and improve the MRL setting process for minor uses.
- 155. Delegations expressed their support for continuing work in this area, in particular, further discussion on the definitions of minor uses and specialty crops and the co-ordination of data submissions for priority chemical/commodities to JMPR for MRL setting. In addition, the importance of the completion of the *Guidance and Principles on the Selection of Representative Commodities for the Extrapolation of MRLs to Commodity Groups* and the revision of the *Classification of Foods and Feeds* with the inclusion of minor crops was also highlighted. Several Delegations stressed the importance of exploring mechanisms to assist multiple countries working collaboratively to develop data to support the establishment of MRLs on a minor crop including the possibility to bundling data/labels available from different countries for submission by one lead country.
- 156. The Delegation of Spain, speaking on behalf of the EU (para. 6), indicated that they supported most of the recommendations. The Delegation suggested that when considering definitions for minor

-

²¹ CX/PR 10/42/13, CRD 3 (comments from China); CRD 14 (comments from Thailand); CRD 16 (comments from Crop Life International); CRD 19 (comments from Mali); CRD 23 (comments from Australia and the OECD); and CRD 33 (comments from the European Union).

crops, the working group should take into account the information available in the EU Regulation 1107/2009. The Delegation felt that more targeted information and guidance was required in defining minor uses with respect to residue chemistry, trade, and dietary consumption.

- 157. The FAO JMPR Secretariat, in addressing the recommendations directed to JMPR explained that:
- Estimation of MRLs requires both residue data and an officially approved use-pattern for the chemical/crop combinations. Considering the diversity of approval systems in operation across the world, if necessary, the JMPR can consider an official letter covering the full requirements of GAP in place of a label.
- JMPR considers all available data provided by countries and these data do not need to originate from the country making the submission. It is the responsibility of the country submitting the data to ensure they have received appropriate authority to submit data generated by other countries.
- Acceptance of data from multiple countries is already a common practice within JMPR including combining residue trials conducted in different countries where the use-patterns of the trials match the critical GAP being evaluated.
- It is difficult for JMPR to provide guidance on when 3 trials might be accepted for a minor use, since there is no international agreement on the definition of minor use not on data requirements for minor uses.
- 158. The Committee endorsed the following recommendations presented by the Working Group:
- 159. The Committee endorsed the recommendations to encourage Codex members and observers to continue to identify and nominate chemical/uses on minor crops to the Working Group on Priorities and to submit data for JMPR evaluation including the possibility for multiple countries working collaboratively to develop data to support the establishment of MRLs on minor crops and the bundling of such data to be presented by one lead country for JMPR evaluation and with an understanding that an official letter should cover all information on the registered GAPs.
- 160. Noting that acceptance of data from multiple countries is already a common JMPR practice, the Committee endorsed the recommendations to JMPR, that bundling of data is possible provided the data were on the same compound/commodity and match the critical GAP and that an official letter would be acceptable if labels were not available.
- 161. The Committee did not endorse the recommendation for guidance on the number of residue data trials necessary to perform the evaluation noting the FAO JMPR Secretariat's observation that there was not yet an agreed international definition of minor uses nor any agreed upon data requirements for minor uses.
- 162. The Committee endorsed the recommendation that CCPR should continue to progress the work on inclusion of new commodities in the *Classification of Foods and Feeds* and for the suitable implementation of the *Principles and Guidance on the Selection of Representatives Commodities for the Extrapolation of MRLs to Commodity Groups* in order to facilitate establishment of MRLs for minor uses.
- 163. The Committee agreed to re-establish the Electronic Working Group on Minor Crops and Specialty Crops, under the chairmanship of the United States of America and co-chaired by Australia and Kenya, working in English only, to continue to identify priority minor uses and specialty crops for MRL setting, and to facilitate data submissions to JMPR, and to prepare proposals for definitions of minor use and specialty crops for use by CCPR and JMPR.

ESTABLISHMENT OF CODEX PRIORITY LISTS OF PESTICIDES (Agenda Item 12)²²

164. The report of the Electronic Working Group on Priorities was introduced by its chair, Mr Ian Reichstein (Australia). He thanked member countries and observers for their participation in the EWG noting that the number of nominations for new chemicals and additional commodities had increased significantly from previous years.

- 165. The Chair re-emphasised that the 2010 schedule was closed following the 41st session of CCPR in accordance with the decision taken at that meeting, however, the FAO JMPR Secretary confirmed that, in order to support the work of EWG on Minor Uses, it was acceptable to add a few commodities to chemicals already scheduled in 2010.
- 166. The Chair indicated that Kenya, on behalf of the COLEACP Pesticide Initiative Programme had requested the addition of a range of commodities for chemicals listed in 2010, 2011 and 2012. The Chair noted that following discussions on the 2011 schedule at this meeting, the 2011 schedule would be closed for the addition of new chemicals.

Scheduling of chemicals

- 167. The Committee was informed that fifteen new chemicals had been nominated for inclusion on the tentative schedules for 2011 (10) and 2012 (5). The Chair listed the ten chemicals scheduled for 2011 new chemical evaluations (sulfoxaflor, MCPA, emamectin-benzoate, chlorfenapyr, isopyrazam, saflufenacil, propylene oxide, flutriafol, acetamiprid and penthiopyrad), and the chemicals listed for periodic re-evaluation (etofenprox, dicofol and tebuconazole).
- 168. The Committee was informed that the twelve to thirteen chemicals nominated for the 2011 schedule for new chemical evaluation and periodic re-evaluation was in excess of the preferred ten, which is viewed as acceptable given to current JMPR resources.
- 169. The Committee was informed that the rescheduling of five chemicals to the 2012 schedule to alleviate the JMPR workload in 2011 was a short-tem solution, to the problem of excess demand for JMPR resources.
- 170. The Committee was invited to provide comments on the ongoing issue of insufficient JMPR resources to and provide a longer term solution. The Committee noted that there were three issues of concern: funding, the availability of expertise, and the timing / frequency of JMPR meetings and considered how to address these issues. Different options were discussed such as resurrecting the initiative on 'Friends of the JMPR' to identify sources for increased funding organizing two JMPR meetings per year, and increasing the number of experts at the JMPR meetings.
- 171. The FAO JMPR Secretary informed the Committee that FAO and WHO launched the Global Initiative for Food-Related Scientific Advice (GIFSA) in 2007. The main focus of GIFSA was to establish a mechanism to facilitate the provision of extrabudgetary resources for scientific advice activities. Contributions will be accepted from governments, organizations and foundations in accordance with FAO and WHO rules and can be designated for a specific purpose, such as for the JMPR. More information about GIFSA is available at the following websites of FAO:

http://www.fao.org/ag/agn/agns/advice_en.asp

and WHO: http://www.who.int/foodsafety/codex/Gifsa.pdf.

CX/PR 10/42/14-Rev., CX/PR 10/42/14-Add.1, CRD 1 (Prepared by Australia), CRD 4 (comments by JMPR Secretariat), CRD 15 (Comment from Kenya), CRD 19 (comments from Mali), CRD21 (comments from the European Community).

-

172. After some discussion the Committee agreed that the Delegation of the USA with assistance from Cameroon and Croplife will prepare a discussion paper on how to address JMPR resource issues for consideration by the next session of the Committee.

173. The Committee was informed that all five chemicals listed in the 2012 new chemical schedule as priority one (dinotefuran, cyantraniliprole, ametoctradin, fluxapyroxad and clopyralid) had been rescheduled from the 2011 new chemical schedule and that the nomination of ethaboxam was no longer supported and had been deleted from the 2012 schedule. Noting that there are at least seven chemicals listed for periodic re-evaluation in 2012, the committee was advised that the 2012 schedule had already reached its quota and technically could not accept any further nominations.

Periodic Re-Evaluations

- 174. Following the annual review of the CCPR chemical list to identify chemicals subject to the fifteen year rule for periodic re-evaluations, four chemicals (fenarimol, fenpyroximate, fenthion and quintozene) were listed on the tentative schedule for periodic re-evaluation for 2017.
- 175. The Committee noted the chemicals listed for periodic re-evaluation for the years 2011 to 2017.

Periodic Re-Evaluations – Chemicals No Longer Supported

- 176. Noting the concerns raised in the Risk Analysis Principles discussion, the EWG Chair highlighted several chemicals, listed on the periodic re-evaluation schedule, which are no longer supported by the manufacturer. These chemicals are listed in bold text to highlight their status to member countries.
- 177. The manufacturer advised that dicofol was no longer supported. However, India indicated that a data package including residue data supporting tea would be submitted but was advised by JMPR that a toxicology data package was also required.
- 178. The following chemicals were noted as having no manufacturer support: vinclozolin (159), tecnazene (115), dichlofluanid (82), dinocap (87), methidathion (51), bioresmethrin (93), bromopropylate (70), bromide ion (47), hydrogen phosphide (46), phosalone (60), azinphos-methyl (02) and permethrin (120).
- 179. Although the manufacturer has indicated no support for metalaxyl (138), Thailand has indicated that it will provide field trials in support of several commodities. In regard to metalaxyl(138), fenvalerate (119) and disulfoton (74), the USA agreed that rather than list these only as not supported, the table entry should also say 'Reviews are available from the USA', and advised the Committee that reviews may also be available for other compounds.
- 180. The Chair indicated that the work of the EWG for 2011 would commence in August with the broadcast email to all member countries and observers. In that correspondence, the Chair will highlight chemicals for which there is no manufacturer support and chemicals for which commodity listings are required.

Evaluations

- 181. The Committee noted listings of follow-up evaluations for the 2011 and 2012 schedules.
- 182. The Committee noted the significant work of the Pesticide Initiative Programme which has resulted in nominations of additional commodities for eighteen pesticides. However, it also noted that there are existing CXLs for lambda-cyhalothrin on okra as presented in fruiting vegetable, other than cucurbits and mango.

JMPR revised timeframes

183. The Committee noted that from 2010 onwards JMPR will move the deadline for the Data Directory submission for residue data from 1 September to 30 October which is after the JMPR Call for Data has been issued. Accordingly, the full submission of all residue data is postponed from its current deadline of 30 November to 20 December which is the same as the timeline for submission of toxicological data.

Format of the Schedule - Priority Lists of Pesticides Tables

Naming of manufacturers in the list of priorities

- 184. To the concern expressed by the Codex secretariat about including manufacturers names in the List of Priorities, many Delegations and observers indicated that identification of the manufacturers improved transparency and significantly facilitated communication, therefore, the Committee should identify all stakeholders responsible for the support of compounds.
- 185. After some discussion, the Committee agreed to include the names of manufactures in the Priority List of Chemicals Scheduled for Evaluation and Re-Evaluation by JMPR.

Conclusions

186. The Priority List of Chemicals Scheduled for Evaluation and Re-Evaluation by JMPR as amended during the session is presented in Appendix XII.

ANALYSIS OF THE REFERENCES TO PESTICIDE RESIDUES IN CODEX STAN 229-1993 AND VARIOUS SECTIONS OF VOLUME 2 OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS (Agenda Item 13)²³

- 187. The Committee noted that this paper was prepared by the Codex Secretariat at the request of the last session of the Committee to address references to Volume 2 of the Codex Alimentarius, which is no longer printed, and other inconsistencies in a number of documents developed by CCPR.
- 188. The Committee agreed to introduce the updated references in the relevant documents for pesticide residues as proposed by the Secretariat in the Annex to CX/PR 10/42/15.
- 189. In addition, two other matters were considered in regard to methods of analysis for pesticide residues as indicated below.

Portion of Commodities to which Codex MRLs apply and which is analyzed (CAC/GL 41-1993)

190. The Committee considered whether the *Guidelines on the Portion of Commodities to which Codex MRLs apply and which is analyzed* should be kept as a stand-alone document or should be integrated in other more relevant documents that also contain information on the edible portion of the commodity to which the pesticide residue apply. The Committee agreed that, for the time being, the Guidelines should be retained as a single document and that this question be revisited upon completion of the revision of the *Classification of Foods and Feeds*.

List of methods of analysis for pesticide residues

- 191. The Committee recalled its previous decision not to maintain a list of analytical methods for pesticide residues but to keep existing validated methods on the IAEA website.
- 192. The Secretariat drew the attention of the Committee to the need to clearly define the status of the list in order to avoid confusion in relation to the enforcement of MRLs for pesticide residues.

CX/PR 10/42/15, CRD 18 (Comments of Paraguay), CRD 35 (Comments of member states of the European Union)

193. The Representative of IAEA recalled that the purpose of maintaining such a list was to provide a platform for comments and sharing experience regarding the methods but that the list should be considered as a resource list and was never meant to be a list of preferred or obligatory methods for Codex purposes.

194. In view of the above considerations, the Committee agreed to invite the working group on method of analysis to prepare a discussion paper for the next session, addressing the issues raised in CX/PR 10/42/15 in relation to the status of the repository list of analytical methods and to discuss the implications of maintaining the list as either a resource list or as preferred/obligatory methods.

ACHIEVING GLOBALLY HARMONIZED MRLS THROUGH CODEX (Agenda Item 13a)²⁴

- 195. The Delegation of the USA recalled that the paper "Achieving Globally Harmonized MRLs Through Codex" had been extensively considered at the last session of the Committee and that this paper proposed a pilot process in which JMPR would conduct an independent, parallel review along with a global joint review team and recommend MRLs before national governments or other regional registration authorities establish MRLs. The Delegation indicated that a paper had been prepared responding to the concerns that were raised at the last meeting and proposing to conduct a pilot project on sulfoxaflor in 2011. The Delegation presented CRD 26 containing a Project plan for consideration as new work for this Committee.
- 196. The Delegation of Spain speaking on behalf of the EU (para. 6) indicated that the EU was very much in favour of global harmonisation of MRLs and, therefore, applied administrative procedures to incorporate Codex MRLs into EU legislation, provided that these were safe for all EU consumer groups. The Delegation indicated that if a pilot project were launched with a new active substance the outcome should be thoroughly evaluated and should not act as a precedent for other future projects and before thorough evaluation is done, no changes should be made to the Procedural Manual.
- 197. The Delegation pointed out that the evaluation of the results this project must be compared to other work sharing projects without participation of JMPR (e.g. fluopyram, chlorantriniliprole), in particular attention should be paid to:
 - (1) The speed by which MRLs are set at Codex and in the member countries,
 - (2) The level of MRL harmonisation achieved at the final stage of the project, when all member countries have set national MRLs,
 - (3) The amount of duplication of work (e.g. when the risk assessment has to be redone or the residues re-evaluated),
 - (4) The burden on the budget of JMPR,
 - (5) The benefits for developing countries and minor uses.
- 198. Also the possibility should be considered that the pilot would only be done on the toxicology review and not the residues.
- 199. In reply to this intervention, the Delegation of the United States indicated that the items proposed for inclusion in the evaluation of the results of the pilot would be included.

CX/PR 10/42/16; CRD 26 (Project document prepared by the United States of America); CRD 36 (Comments from European Community).

_

200. Many Delegations supported the proposal to initiate the pilot project noting that concerns raised previously were addressed and that harmonization of MRLs was one of the main tasks of Codex.

- 201. After some discussion the Committee decided to request the 33rd session of the Commission to allow initiating the pilot project in which JMPR would conduct an independent, parallel review along with a global joint review team and recommend MRLs before national governments or other regional registration authorities establish MRLs on sulfoxaflor in 2011.
- 202. The Committee noted that CRD 26 contained the basic information required for critical review by the Executive Committee to start new work, however some information was still missing and the format was not in line with Part 2. Critical Review of the Procedures for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Related Texts presented in the Codex Procedural Manual, therefore it was requested that the Delegation of the United States revise it in compliance with the above requirements and send it to the Secretariat by May 15 2010.

OTHER MATTERS

GEMS Food database

203. On behalf of WHO, the FAO JMPR Secretary informed the Committee that WHO has identified the need for an update of the GEMS Food database which will involve the implementation of a web-based system for data submission; the collection of new data on large portion sizes to be used for acute exposure assessment, a comparison of the cluster diets with the national food consumption surveys on individuals and developing linkages between data on chemical occurrence, microbe occurrence and food composition.

Call for experts for the JMPR roster

- 204. The JMPR Secretary advised the Committee that call for toxicological and epidemiological experts for the JMPR roster, to be considered to serve on the WHO Core Assessment Group of JMPR, has been published. Qualified scientists can apply to be considered.
- 205. The application deadline is 31 July 2010 and the details are available at the website http://www.who.int/ipcs/food/jmpr/expert calls/en/index.html

DATE AND PLACE OF THE NEXT SESSION (Agenda Item 14)

206. The Committee was informed that its 43rd Session was tentatively scheduled to be held in Beijing, China, from 18 through 23 April 2011, the final arrangements being subject to confirmation by the Host Country and the Codex Secretariat.

Annex 1

SUMMARY STATUS OF WORK

Subject	Step	Action by	Reference
Draft and Revised Draft MRLs	8	Governments, 33 rd CAC	Paras 28 – 85 and Appendix II
Proposed Draft and Revised Draft MRLs	5/8	Governments, 33 rd CAC	Paras 28 – 85 and Appendix III
Proposed Draft MRLs	5	Governments, 33 rd CAC, 43 rd CCPR	Paras 28 – 85 and Appendix IV
Codex Maximum Residue Limits Recommended for Revocation	-	Governments, 33 rd CAC	Paras 28 – 85 and Appendix V
Proposed Draft and Draft MRLs Retained at Step 7	7	JMPR, Governments, CCPR (depending on the year of the JMPR clarification)	
Draft MRLs Returned to Step 6	6	Governments, 2010 JMPR, 43 rd CCPR	Paras 28 – 85 and Appendix VII
Draft Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds: Bulb Vegetables; Fruiting Vegetables, other than cucurbits; Berries and other Small Fruits; Edible Fungi; Citrus Fruits; Pome Fruits; Stone Fruits; and Oilseeds	7	CCPR (awaiting finalization of the revision of other commodities)	Para. 96 and Appendix IX
Proposed Draft Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds: <i>Tree Nuts; Herbs and Spices</i>	5	Governments, 33 rd CAC, 43 rd CCPR	Para. 105 and Appendix X
Proposed draft Principles and Guidance for the Selection of Representative Commodities for the Extrapolation of Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides for Commodity Goups	5	Governments, 33 rd CAC, 43 rd CCPR	Para 116 and Appendix XI
Addendum 1 on detailed justification on bulb vegetables and fruiting vegetables, other than cucurbits and Addendum 2 containing background information regarding representative commodities	2/3	EWG led by the Netherlands and the USA, Governments, 43 rd CCPR	Paras 117 – 118
Proposed Draft Revision of the Guidelines on the Estimation of Uncertainty of results for the determination of Pesticide Residues (CAC/RCP 59-2006)	3	Governments, EWG led by Australia and co-chaired by China, 43 rd CCPR	Para. 160 and Appendix X

Subject	Step	Action by	Reference
Revision of the CCPR Risk Analysis Principles	Proce- dure	EWG led by Argentina, Governments, 43 rd CCPR	Paras 139 – 150
Discussion papers:			
The application of proportionality in selecting data for the establishment of MRLs	-	Australia, 43 rd CCPR	Para. 73
The Guidance to Facilitate the Establishment of Codex MRLs for Minor Use and Specialty Crops	-	EWG led by the USA and co-chaired by Australia and Kenya, 43 rd CCPR	Paras 153 – 163
The status of the repository list of analytical methods	-	EWG led by Australia and co- chaired by China, 43 rd CCPR	Para. 194
New work:	•		
Priority List of Pesticides (New Pesticides and Pesticides under Periodic Review)	1/2/3	33 rd CAC, Governments, EWG led by Australia, 43 rd CCPR	Paras 186 - 207 and Appendix XII
The pilot project in which JMPR would conduct an independent, parallel review along with a global joint review team and recommend MRLs before national governments establish MRLs	-	USA, 64 th CCEXEC, 33 rd CAC, 43 rd CCPR	Para. 202
Discontinuation of work:			
Discontinuation of Work on the Proposed Draft and Draft Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides	-	Governments, 33 rd CAC	Paras 28 – 85 and Appendix VIII

APPENDIX I

LIST OF PARTICIPANTS

Chairperson Prêsident Presidente

Dr Xiongwu QIAO

Shanxi Academy of Agricultural Sciences 2 Changfeng Street, Taiyuan, Shanxi Province, 030006, P.R. China Phone: +86 351 7581865

Fax: +86 351 7126215 E-mail: ccpr_qiao@agri.gov.cn

ALGERIA/ALGÉRIE/ARGELIA Ali BOUDIFA

12 Boulevard Colonel Amirouche, Alger - Algérie

Phone: 00 213 7 95 50 01 93 Fax: 00 213 21 93 42 49 E-mail: boudifali@yahoo.fr

ANGOLA/ANGOLA/ANGOLA Maria PINTO

Eugs Quinica-Responsaid del labonaionio de Qualidado do

Dinistenio do Correicio Meios Biotecnologicos Rua Comandante Jika, Largo António Jacinto Ministério do Conenao C.P 527

Phone: 244 923355415 Fax: 244 222 32 37 24

E-mail: mamuelahung@yahoo.com.bn

ARGENTINA/ARGENTINE/ARGENTINA

Dr Laura Ester Bernardi BONOMI

Asesora Juridica del SENASA, Servicio Nacional de Sanidad

y CalidadAgroalimentaria

Avenida Paseo Colón 439 2do. Piso Frente

Capital Federal

Phone: (54-11) 4342-2502 Fax: (54-11) 4121-5069 E-mail: lbonomi@senasa.gov.ar

Prof Augusto PIAZZA

Asesor

Cámara de Sanidad Agropecuaria y Fertilizantes

Alsina 1441, 2º Piso, Oficina 206,

Capital Federal

Phone: (54)11-5238-3588 Fax:(54)11-5238-3588

E-mail: piazza@sirconsultora.com

Ing Agron. Juan Andres ARAKELIAN

Cámara de la Industria Argentina de Fertilizantes y

Agroquímicos Rivadavia 1367-7° B Capital Federal

Phone: 54-11-4381-2742 Fax: 54-11-4383-1562

E-mail: andresarakelian@ciafa.org.ar

AUSTRALIA/AUSTRALIE/AUSTRALIA

Mr Ian REICHSTEIN

Director

National Residue Survey

Australian Government Department of Agriculture, Fisheries

and Forestry

GPO Box 858, CANBERRA ACT 2601

Australia

Phone: 61 2 6272 5668 Fax: 61 2 6272 4023

E-mail: ian.reichstein@daff.gov.au

Dr Rajumati BHULA

Program Manager Pesticides

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority

18 Wormald Street, Symonston ACT 2609

Australia

Phone: 61 2 6210 4826 Fax: 61 2 6210 4776

E-mail: raj.bhula@apvma.gov.au

Mr Kevin BODNARUK

Horticulture Australia Limited

26/12 Philip Mall, West Pymble NSW 2073

Australia

Phone: +61 2 94993833 Fax: +61 2 94996055 E-mail: akc con@zip.com.au

Mr William MURRAY

Grains Research and Development Corporation

22 Thornley Close, Ferntree Gully,

Victoria 3156, Australia Phone: 61 3 9763 8396

E-mail: wjmurray@bigpond.net.au

Mr Alan NORDEN

MANAGER, MINOR USE

Australian Pesticide and Veterinary Medicines Authority P.O.BOX 6182, KINGSTON ACT 2604

Australia

Phone: +61 2 6210 4769 Fax: +61 2 6210 4776

E-mail: alan.norden@apvma.gov.au

Dr Pieter SCHEELINGS

Principal Scientist

Queensland Health Forensic and Scientific Service

39 Kessels Road, COOPERS PLAINS QLD 4108, Australia

Phone: 61 7 3274 9095 Fax: +61 7 3274 9186

E-mail: pieter_scheelings@health.qld.gov.au

BAHRAIN/BAHREÏN/BAHREIN

Mr Abdulnabi AL-NATIE

SR.CHEMIST P.O.Box 42 Phone: 17279287 Fax: 17279294

E-mail: anatie@health.gov.bh; alnatie2007@hotmail.com

BELIZE/BELIZE/BELICE

Mrs Delilah CABB

Coordinator of the Sanitary and Phytosanitary Enquiry Point

Corner of Hummingbird Highway And Forest Drive, P.O. Box 169, Belmopan,

Belize, Central America Phone: (501) 822-0197 Fax: (501) 822-0271 E-mail: bahasps@btl.net

BRAZIL/BRASIL/BRASIL

Mr Luis RANGEL

Federal Inspector

Esplanada Dos Ministerios Bloco D Anexo A Sala 342,

Brasilia, Brasil

Phone: 55 61 32182445 Fax: 55 61 32255341

E-mail: luis.rangel@agricultura.gov.br

Mr Arlindo BONIFACIO

Federal Inspector

Esplanada Dos Ministerios Bloco D Anexo A Sala 327,

Brasilia, Brasil Phone: 55 61 32182445 Fax: 55 61 32255341

Email: arlindo.bonifacio@agricultura.gov.br

Mr Carlos VENANCIO

Federal Inspector

Esplanada Dos Ministerios Bloco D Anexo B Sala 448,

Brasilia, Brasil

Phone: 55 61 3218-2329 Fax: 55 61 32269799

E-mail: carlos.venancio@agricultura.gov.br

Mrs Ana CAROLINA LAMY

Federal Inspector

Esplanada Dos Ministerios Bloco D Anexo A Sala 327,

Brasilia, Brasil

Phone: 55 61 32182445 Fax: 55 61 32255341

E-mail: ana.lamy@agricultura.gov.br

Mrs Wanda GIMENEZ

Regulatory

Basf Croplife-Brazil

Avenida Brigadeiro Faria Lima, 3600

Phone: 55 11 30432760 Fax: 55 11 30432285

E-mail: wanda.gimenez@basf.com

Mr Rogerio Pereira Da SILVA

Coordinator for Codex Alimentarius Matters Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock and Food Supply

Esplanada dos Ministerios, Bloco D,

Sala 349 - CEP 70023-700 – Brasilia-DF,Brazil

Phone: 55 61 3218-2968 Fax: 55 61 3225-4738

E-mail: rogerio.silva@agricultura.gov.br

CAMEROON/CAMEROUN/CAMERÚN

Dr Charles Shey NYING

Technical Staff

Laboratoire Nationale d'Analyse Diagnostique des Intrants et

Produits Agricoles. DRCQ - MINADER, B.P.2082 Messa Yaoundé Phone: +237 75667000 E-mail: nyingcha@yahoo.com

Mr Gadii DJIDERE

Ingénieur des Travaux du Génie Sanitaire Chef de Service de l'Hygiène du Milieu Direction de la Promotion de la Santé

MINSANTE Yaoundé, Phone: +237 76528988

CANADA/CANADA/CANADÁ Dr Peter CHAN

Director General

Health Evaluation Directorate, Pest Management Regulatory

Agency Health Canada

2720 Riverside Dr, Ottawa, Ontario, KIAOK9

Phone: (613) 736-3510 Fax: (613) 736-3909

E-mail: peter.chan@hc-sc.gc.ca

Mrs Donna GRANT

Chemist, Pesticide Residues Canadian Food Inspection Agency 3650-36 Street, N.W, Calgary, Alberta,

Canada T21 211 Phone: 403-299-7600 Fax: 403-221-3293

E-mail: donna.grant@inspection.gc.ca

CHILE/CHILI/ CHILE

Mrs Soledad Ferrada CHAMORRO

Head International Negotiation Subdepartment.

International Affairs Division

Agricultural and Livestock Service (SAG)

Bulnes 140. Fifth Floor.Santiago

Phone: 56 2 3451427 Fax: 56 2 3451578

E-mail: soledad.ferrada@sag.gob.cl

Mrs Maria Elvira Lermanda FUCHSLOCHER

Afipa A.G.Manager

Felix De Amesti 124 of.31 Las Condes Santiago Chile

Phone: 56 2 2066792 Fax: 562 2079286 E-mail: info@afipa.cl

CHINA/CHINE/CHINA

Mr Yanqiu ZHANG

Director General

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture,

No.22 Maizidian Street Chaoyang District

Beijing, 100125, P.R. China Phone: 86-10-5919 4195 Fax: 86-10-6502 5929

E-mail: zhangyanqiu@agri.gov.cn

Mrs Yaping LIU

Vice-Director

Pesticide Management Division, Crop Production Management Department, Ministry of Agriculture

No.11 Nongzhannanli, Chaoyang District,

Beijing, 100125, P.R. China Phone: 86-10-5919 1433 Fax: 86-10-5919 1875 E-mail: pmd@agri.gov.cn

Dr Yehan CUI

Director

Development Center for Science and Technology, Ministry

of Agriculture

No. 20 Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District,

Beijing, 100125, P.R. China Phone: 86-10-5919 5082 Fax: 86-10-5919 4550 E-mail: cuiyehan@agri.gov.cn

Ms Xiaohua FANG

Bureau of Quality and Safety Supervision of agricultural

products, Ministry of Agriculture

No.11, Nongzhannanli, Chaoyang District,

Beijing, 100125, P.R. China Phone: 86-10-5919 2313 Fax: 86-10-5919 3315

E-mail: fangxiaohua@agri.gov.cn

Mrs Ying JI

Director

Registration and Regulation Division, Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No.22 Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: 86-10-5919 4106 Fax: 86-10-5919 4063 E-mail: jiying@agri.gov.cn

Prof Guangxue LIU

Professor

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No.22 Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: 86-10-5919 4105 Fax: 86-10-5919 4107

E-mail: liuguangxue@agri.gov.cn

Dr Leiming CAI

Senior Expert

Shenyang Chemistry Research Institute 8 Shenliao Dong Lu,Tiexi District, Shenyang, 110031, P.R. China Phone: 86-24-6235 3468

Fax: 86-24-6235 3478

E-mail: caileiming@sinachem.com

Dr Canping PAN

Professor

China Agricultural University

Yuanmingyuan Road, Haidian District,

Beijing, 100193, P.R.China Phone: 86-10-6273 1978 Fax: 86-10-6273 3620 E-mail: panc@cau.edu.cn

Dr Jieping SHI

Professor

State food and Drug Administration

A38 Beilishi Street

Beijing, 100810, P. R. China Phone: 86-10-883 30509 Fax: 86-10-8837 0947 E-mail: shijp@sfda.gov.cn

Dr Jianping SUN

Professor

State food and drug administration

A38 Beilishi Street

Beijing, 100810, P.R. China Phone: 86-10-8833 0549 Fax: 86-10-8837 0947 E-mail: sun-jp@sfda.gov.cn

Dr Shuangcheng MA

Professor

National Institute for Control of pharmaceufical&Biological

products

NO.2 Tiantanxili, Chongwen district,

Beijing, 100050, P.R. China Phone: 86-10-6511 3805 Fax: 86-10-6709 5842 E-mail: masc@nicpbp.org.cn

Dr Wei WANG

Professor

Inner Mongolia Institute for Food and Drug Control NO.60 University West Street, Saihan District,

Huhehaote City,

Inner Mongolia, Autonomous Region, P. R. China

Phone: 86-471-6922 967 Fax: 86-471-6922 967

E-mail: wangwei6922967@126.com

Ms Hong MIAO

Associate professor

Department of Monotoring and Control for Contaminants and

Residues

CDC. P. R.China

NO.7 Nanli Panjiayuan, Chaoyang District,

Beijing, P. R. China Phone: 86-10-8777 6914 Fax: 86-10-6771 1813

E-mail: miaohong0827@163.com

Ms Lihua ZHU

National Institute of Nutrition and Food Safety,

CDC. P. R.China

No.7, Panjiayuannanli, Chaoyang District,

Beijing, P. R. China Phone: 86-10-8777 6914 Fax: 86-10-6771 1813

E-mail: zhulihua2011@yahoo.com.cn

Mrs Shaofen LI

Engineer

General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection

and Quarantine

No. 9, Madian Dong Lu, Haidian District,

Beijing, P. R. China Phone: 86-10-8226 1892 Fax: 86-10-8226 1892 E-mail: spszrc@agsiq.gov.cn

Mr Songxue WANG

Associated Researcher

Academy of State Administration of Grain

No 11, Baiwanzhuang Street,

Xicheng District,

Beijing, 100037, P.R. China Phone: 86-10-5852 3708 Fax: 86-10-5852 3599 E-mail: wsx@chinagrain.org

Mr Zhiguang ZHU

Professor

Standard and Quality Center State Administration of Grain

No 11, Baiwangzhuang Street, Xicheng District,

Beijing, 100037, P. R. China Phone: 86-10-5852 3389 Fax: 86-10-5852 3407 E-mail: lybzzzg@gmail.corn

Mrs Yanyang ZHANG

Section Chief

Department of Food Production Supervision,

General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection

and Ouarantine

No 9, Madiandonglu, Haidian District, Beijing, P.R. China

Phone: 86-10-8226 2232 Fax: 86-10-8226 2213 E-mail: zhangyy@agsiq.gov.cn

Dr Qiang WANG

Professor

Institute of Quality and Standard for Agricultural Products, Zhejiang Academy of Agricultural Science No.198, Shiqiao Road, Jianggan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang, 310021, P.R.

China

Phone: 86-577-8640 4355 Fax: 86-577-8640 1834

E-mail: qiangwang2003@sina.com

Dr Teresa Manyan CHOI

Principal Medical Officer

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

43/F, Queensway Government Offices,

66 Queensway, Hong Kong

Phone: (852)28675185 Fax: (852)28933547

E-mail: tmychoi@fehd.gov.hk

Dr Sik Man CHOI

Senior Chemist

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department, HKSAR

43/F, Queensway Government Offices,

66 Queensway, Hong Kong

Phone: (852)28675022 Fax: (852)28933547

E-mail: smchoi @fehd.gov.hk

Dr Hei Shing CHU

Chemist

Government Laboratory, HKSAR 7-11/F, Ho Man Tin Government Offices, 88 Chung Han Street, Homantln, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Phone: (852)25382017 Fax: (852)25515632

E-mail: hschu@govtlab.gov.hk

Dr Clare HO

Senior Chemist

Government Laboratory, HKSAR 7-11/F, Ho Man Tin Government Offices, 88 Chung Han Street, Homantln, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Phone: (852)25382012 Fax: (852)25515632 E-mail: cho@govtlab.gov.hk

Mr Stephen LAI

Agricultural Officer

Agriculture, Fisheriors and Cooperation Department, HKSAR 5/F, Cheung Sha Wan Government Offices, 303 Cheung, Sha

Wan Road, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Phone: (852)21507013 Fax: (852)27369904

E-mail: stephen_yh_lai @afcd.gov.hk

Ms Joan YAU

Scientific Officer

Center for Food Safety, Food and Environmental Hygiene

Department, HKSAR

43/F, Queensway Government Offices,

66 Queensway, Hong Kong

Phone: (852)28675608 Fax: (852)28933547

E-mail: jcwyau@fehd.gov.hk

COSTA RICA/COSTA RICA/COSTA RICA

Mr Roger Ruiz ZAPATA

Jefe Laboratorio de Residuos de Plaguicidas Servicio Fitosanitario del Estado

Ministerio de Agriculturay Ganaderia

Apdo. 70-3006 Heredia,

Costa Rica

Phone: (506) 2260-4925 Fax: (506) 2260-4925 E-mail: rruiz@sfe.go.cr

FRANCE/FRANCIA

Dr Véronique SOLERE

Gestionnaire du risque

Ministere de l'alimentation de l'agriculture et de la peche –

Direction generale de l'alimentation

251 Rue de Vaugirard 75732

Paris Cedex 15

Phone: 33 1 49 55 58 92 Fax: 33 1 49 55 59 49

E-mail: veronique.meunier-solere@agriculture.gouv.fr

Dr Xavier G SARDA

Evaluateur Scientifique

Afssa, Dive, Ursc, 10 Rue Pierre Curie,

94704 Maisons-Alfort Cedex. Phone: 33 1 49 77 21 66

Fax: 33 1 49 77 21 60 E-mail: x.sarda@afssa.fr

GERMANY/ALLEMAGNE/ALEMANIA Dr Eberhard SCHÜLE

Senior Chemist/LAB MANAGER

Chemisches und Veterinäruntersuchungsamt Stuttgart /Schaflandstrasse 3/2 / D-70736 Fellbach/Germany

Phone: 0049-(0)711-34261126 Fax: 0049-(0)711-588176

E-mail: eberhard.schuele@cvuas.bwl.de

GHANA/GHANA/GHANA

Mr Cheetham Lawrence MINGLE

Senior Regulatory Officer Food and Drugs Board

P.O. Box Ct 2783,

Cantonments Accra, Ghana Phone: 0233-24408080666 E-mail: tawa_gh@yahoo.com

Samuel Kofi FRIMPONG

Assistant Standards Officer Ghana Standards Board, P. O. Box Mb 245, Accra. Ghana

Phone: 0233-21-506991-4 Fax: 0233 02 500231, 500092

E-mail: sfrimpong@ghanastandards.org

Mr Ernest ASSIBEY

Assistant Agricultural Officer

P. O. Box M 37, Accra - Ghana

Phone: +233-244 8772

E-mail: sieversaty@yahoo.com

Paul OSEI-FOSU

Head, Pesticide Residue Laboratory Ghana Standards Board,

P.O. Box MB 245, Accra

Phone: 0233-21-500065/66, 506994

Fax: 023321500231

E-mail: posei@ghanastandards.org

INDIA/INDE/INDIA

Dr Debabrata KANUNGO

Additional Director General, DGHS Ministry of Health, Govt. of India MSO West Block No.1, Rk Puram, New Delhi, 110066, India Phone: 91-11-26101268

Fax: 91-11-26189307 E-mail: dkanungo@nic.in, kanungo294@rediffmail.com

Dr V.K. SRIVASTAVA

Deputy Director (Plant Pathology) Directorate of Plant Protection, Quarantine & Storage, NH-4, Faridabad-121 001, India Phone: 91-129.2412149 Fax: 91-129-2412125 E-mail: drvksri@gmail.com

Dr T.P. RAJENDRAN

Asst. Director General (Plant Protection) Indian Council of Agricultural Research,

New Delhi-110 114 Phone: 96-11-2338 4414 Fax: 96-11-2338 4414 E-mail: adgpp.icar@nic.in

Dr K.K. SHARMA

Network Coordinator, AINP on Pesticide Residues, IARI,

New Delhi

Room No. 203, LBS Building, IARI,

New Delhi - 110 012 Phone: 9868510292 Fax: 011-25846396

E-mail: kksaicrp@yahoo.co.in

INDONESIA/INDONÉSIE/INDONESIA

Dr I Nyoman Oka TRIDJAJA

Director of Quality and Standardization

D.G. of Processing and Marketing for Agric. Products, MOA,

Republic of Indonesia

Jl. Harsono Rm, No. 3, Ragunan, Jakarta Selatan, Indonesia Postal Code: 12550

Phone: 62-21-7815881 Fax: 62-21-7811468 E-mail: ntridjaja@yahoo.com

man: manajaja@janee.e.

Ms Niza NEMARA Head of Food Division

National Quality Control Laboratory of Drug and Food, National Agency for Drug and Food Control Republic of

Indonesia

Jl. Percetakan Negara 23, Jakarta Pusat. 10560.

Phone: +62 21 4245075

Fax: +62 21 4245150,+62 21 4201427 E-mail: panganppomn@gmail.com, nnemara@yahoo.com

Prof Sri NOEGROHATI

Faculty of Pharmacy, Gadjah Mada University, Sekip Utara, Jogyakarta 55281 Phone: 62 8122743383 Fax: 62 274 543120

E-mail: srinoegrohati@yahoo.com, sri noegrohati@ugm.ac.id

Mr Zainul ABIDIN

Deputy Head of Centre of Permit and Investment Service

Jl. Harsono Rm No.3, Ragunan, Jakarta Selatan, Indonesia Postal Code: 12550 Phone: (+621) 78839619/08158257393

Fax: (+621) 78836171

E-mail: zainul_deptan@yahoo.com

Dr Mohammad DANI

Head Of Centre Of Permit And Investment Service Jl. Harsono Rm No.3, Ragunan, Jakarta-Selatan

Indonesia Postal Code: 12550 Phone: (+6221) 78939619 Fax: (+6221) 78836171 E-mail: mdani@cbn.net.id

Mrs Yulia PURWANTI

Centre of Permit and Investment Service Jl. Harsono Rm No.3, Ragunan, Jakarta Selatan, Indonesia Postal Code: 12550

Phone: (+621) 78839619 Fax: (+621) 78836171

E-mail: yulia_pungki@yahoo.com; yulia@deptan.go.id

ISRAEL/ISRAEL/ISRAEL

Mrs Rina ASHKENAZY

Head, Chemistry Department, Ministry Of Agriculture, Plant Protection and Inspection Services P.O.B 78 Bet Dagan 50250, Israel

Phone: 972-3-9681562 Fax: 972-3-9681682 E-mail: rinaa@moag.gov.il

JAPAN/JAPON/JAPÓN Mr Kenji ASAKURA

Director

Plant Products Safety Division, MAFF 1-2-1, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku,

100-8950, Tokyo Phone: 81-3-6744-2026 Fax: 81-3-3580-8592

E-mail: kenji asakura@nm.maff.go.jp

Dr Noriko SARUTA

Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare Department of Food

1-2-2, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku,

Tokyo 100-8916 Japan Phone: 81-3-3595-2341 Fax: 81-3-3501-4868

E-mail: saruta-noriko@mhlw.go.jp

Ms Atsuko HORIBE

Deputy Director

Agricultural Chemicals Office, MAFF 1-2-1, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku,

100-8950, Tokyo Phone: 81-3-3502-5969 Fax: 81-3-3501-3774

E-mail: horibe atsuko@nm.maff.go.jp

Mr Kiyoyasu ISHIKAWA

Deputy Director

Animal Products Safety Division, MAFF 1-2-1, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku,

100-8950, Tokyo Phone: 81-3-6744-2104 Fax: 81-3-3501-8275

E-mail: kiyoyasu ishikawa@nm.maff.go.jp

Mr Makoto IRIE

Section Chief

Agricultural Chemicals Office, Maff 1-2-1, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku, 100-8950, Tokyo

Phone: 81-3-3502-5969 Fax: 81-3-3501-3774

E-mail: makoto_irie@nm.maff.go.jp

Mr Satoru IGAWA

Risk Assessment Division

Food Safety Commission Secretariat, Cabinet Office Akasaka Park Bld. 22nd F. Akasaka 5-2-20, Minato-ku,

Tokyo 107-6122, Japan Phone: 81-3-6234-1093 Fax: 81-3-3584-7391

E-mail: satoru.igawa@cao.go.jp

KENYA/KENYA/KENYA

Dr Henry Kibet ROTICH

Chief Manager R&D

Popo Road.Off Mombasa Road, P.O.Box 54974-00200,

Nairobi

Phone: 254 727043763 Fax: 254 20604031 E-mail: rotichh@kebs.org

Dr Peter Musyoka KIOKO

Senior Assistant Director of Veterinary Services

Veterinary Research Laboratories

Phone: +254 722897402 Fax: +254 20 631273

E-mail: pmkioko2003@yahoo.com

Ms Lucy NAMU

Chief Analytical Chemist,

Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service P.O.Box 49592, 00100 Nairobi, Kenya

Phone: 002543536171 Fax: 2540203536175 E-mail: lnamu@kephis.org

Dr Paul Njuguna NGARUIYA

Registration Officer,

Pest Control Products Board

P. O. Box 13794-00800, Nairobi, Kenya

Phone: +254 20 4446115 Fax: + 254 20 4449072 E-mail: pcpboard@todays.co.ke

LEBANON/LIBAN/LÍBANO

Mr Imad NAHHAL

Head of Plant Protection Department Bir Hassan, Embassies Street,

Beirut-LEBANON

Phone: 961-1-849639 Fax:961-3-849627

E-mail: imadnahhal@gmail.com

LESOTHO/LESOTHO/LESOTHO

Mr Tjelele ESAIAH

Senior Plant Protection Officer P.O. Box 829, Maseru. Lesotho.

Southern Africa

Phone: 0266 2231 2395 Fax: 00266 2231 0362 E-mail: etjelele@yahoo.co.uk

MADAGASCAR/ MADAGASCAR/ MADAGASCAR

Mr Rakotondravony Herve FRANCIS

Engineer, President du Comite National du Codex Alimentarius,

Chimiste au Laboratoire de Controle des Pesticides

Ministere de Agriculture Phone: 261 32 02 588 86 Email: spcplabo@moov.mg

MALAWI/ MALAWI/ MALAWI

Mr Evasio KAPEYA

Registrar of Pesticides Box 52300, Limbe, Malawi Phone: 265 1 471 312 Fax: 265 1 471 419 E-mail: ekapeya@live.com

MALAYSIA/MALAISIE/MALASIA

Mrs Nursiah Binti Mohamad Tajol AROS Director

Pesticide Control Division, Department Of Agriculture, 4-6th Flr, Wisma Tani, Jalan Sultan Salahuddin, 50632 Kuala Lumpur,

Malaysia Phone: 603-20301472 Fax: 603-26917551

E-mail: nursiah@doa.gov.my

Dr Ooi Cheng KEAT

General Manager

Palm Oil Research And Technical Service Institute Of

MPOB

Levels 2, N0.18, Yuanshan Road, Xinzhuang Industrial Park, Minhang, Shanghai, 201108, P.R. China

Phone: 86-21-6442 3303-217 Fax: 86-21-6442 3866 E-mail: ooi@mpob.gov.my

MALDIVES/MALDIVES/MALDIVAS

Mr Ibrahim SHABAU

Director

Ministry of Fisheries & Agriculture Phone: 960 779 6141/+960 3322625

Fax: 960 332 3558

E-mail: ibrahim.shabau@fishagri.gov.mv

MALI/MALI/MALÍ

Mr Sékouba KEITA

Chef de Division

BPE 2362

Phone: + (223)20 22 07 54; Cell: + (223)7 9156031 Fax: + (223) 2022 07 47 E-mail: sekokake@yahoo.fr

MOROCCO/MAROC/MARRUECOS

Dr Mohamed BENZINE

Chef Departement Produits Frais 72, Angle Rue Mohamed Smiha Et Rue Moulay Mohamed El Baamrani

Casablanca

Phone: +212-5-22-30 5104 Fax: +212-5-22-30 5168 E-mail: benzine@eacce.org.ma

Mr Ahmed ZOUAOUI

Chief De Service Pesticides,

Laboratoire Officiel d' Analyses et de RecherchesChimiques

(L.O.A.R.C)

No25 Rue Nichakra Rahal

Casablanca Maroc

Phone: +212522302196198

Fax: +212522301972

E-mail: zouaouiloarc@yahoo.fr zouaouiloarc@yahoo.fr

Mr Machraa DRISS

Engineer

Chief of food hygiene Ministry of health Phone: 212661956807

Fax: 212 537671298

Email:machraadriss@yahoo.fr

MYANMAR/MYANMAR

Ms Shereen AHAD

Food Chemist Office No.47,

Food and Drug Administration,

Ministry of Health, Naypyitaw Phone: 067-431134

Fax: 067-4311.

E-mail: minshamin@gmail.com

NEW ZEALAND/NOUVELLE-ZÉLANDE/NUEVA ZELANDIA

Mr Warren HUGHES

Senior Manager (ACVM Standards), ACVM Group New Zealand Food Safety Authority

PO Box 2835, Wellington, New Zealand 6140

Phone: +64 4 894 2560 Fax: +64 4 894 2566

E-mail: warren.hughes@nzfsa.govt.nz

Ms Nikki JOHNSON

Director

Market Access Solutionz Ltd. P.O. BOX 10629 Wellington Phone: 64 4 473-6040

Fax: 64 4 473-6041

E-mail: nikki@solutionz.co.nz

Mr David LUNN

Principal Advisor (Residues - Plants) New Zealand Food Safety Authority

P.O. Box 2835 Wellington Phone: +64 4 894-2654 Fax: +64 4 894-2675

E-mail: Dave.Lunn@nzfsa.govt.nz

Dr Henry PAK

Technical Manager Avocado Industry Council Ltd, PO Box 13267, Tauranga 3141, New Zealand

Phone: 64 7 571 6147 Fax: 64 7 571 6145

E-mail: henrypak@nzavocado.co.nz

NIGERIA/NIGÉRIA/NIGERIA Mrs Mojisola Olufemi AMORE

Deputy Director

Chemical Import Control Division

National Agency for Food & Drug Administration & Control

Head Quarters; Plot 2032, Olusegun Obasanjo Way, Wuse Zone 7,

Abuja, Nigeria

Phone: +234-8023137385 E-mail: amore.m@nafdac.gov.ng

Dr Uwemedimo G. UDOMA

Head, Regulations Unit (Foods, Pesticides, Medicines

Regulations)

National Agency for Food and Drug Administration and

Control (NAFDAC)

Head Quarters; Plot 2032, Olusegun Obasanjo Way, Wuse Zone 7,

Abuja, Nigeria

Phone: +234-8191272098 E-mail: udoma.g@nafdac.gov.ng

Mr Anthony ITSEUMAH

Head quality control unit

National Food Reserve Agency Federal

Ministry Of Agriculture

Abuja, Nigeria

Phone: +234 8033 142093 E-mail: antoitseumah@yahoo.com

Mrs Stella Nonyem ORAKA

Assistant Chief Agric Officer Nigeria Agricultural Quarantine Service

Federal Ministry or Agriculture

Abuja Nigeria

Phone:+234 8033 323526 E-mail:stellaoraka@yahoo.com

Dr Melton Musa SUNDU

Veterinary Officer

Nigeria Agricultural Quarantine Service

Federal Ministry Agriculture

Abuja, Nigeria

Phone: +234 8615 52355

E mail: meltonmusa@yahoo.com

PAKISTAN/ PAKISTAN/ PAKISTÁN

Mr Zardari M AKBAR

Director Technical

Jinnah Avenue, Malir Halt, Karachi

Phone: 92-21-99248669 Fax: 92-21-99248669

E-mail:m akbarzardari@yahoo.com

PERU/PÉROU/PERÚ

Mr Genaro LIRA

Director (E) De La Subdireccion De Insumos Agrícolas

Servicio Nacional De Sanidad Agraria

Av. La Molina 1915, Lima 12 Phone: 51-1-3133308

Fax: 51-1-3133308

E-mail: glira@senasa.gob.pe

REPUBLIC OF KOREA/RÉPUBLIQUE DE CORÉE/REPÚBLICA DE COREA

Dr Geon Jae IM

Rural Development Administration, National Academy of Agricultural Science

Department of Agro-Food Safety,

Chemical Safty Division

249 Seodun-dong, Gwonseon-gu,

Gyeonggi-do, 441-707, Republic of Korea

Phone:82-31-290-0511 Fax: 82-31-290-0506 E-mail: gunjim@korea.kr

Dr Jin Bae KIM

Rural Development Administration 249 Seodun-dong, Gwonseon-gu,

Gyeonggi-do, 441-707,

Republic of Korea

Phone: 82-31-290-0587

Fax: 82-31-290-0508 E-mail: jinbkim@korea.kr

Dr Moo Hyeog IM

Korea Food & Drug Administration 194 Tongil-ro, Eunpyung-gu, Seoul,

122-704, Republic of Korea Phone: 82-2-380-1690 Fax: 82-2-382-4892 E-mail: imh0119@korea.kr

Dr Jae Ho OH

Korea Food & Drug Administration, Food Chemical Division,

Food Safety Evaluation Department 194 Tongil-ro, Eunpyung-gu, Seoul,

122-704, Republic of Korea

Phone: 82-2-380-1674 Fax: 82-2-355-6037 E-mail: chopin68@korea.kr

Dr Hyung Wook CHUNG

Korea Food & Drug Administration 194 Tongil-ro, Eunpyung-gu, Seoul, 122-704, Republic of Korea

Phone: 82-2-380-1706 Fax: 82-2-382-4892 E-mail: mynet7@korea.kr

Ms Seung Yun JUNG

Ministry of Health & Welfare, Food Policy Division

Jongro-gu, Gye-dong, Seoul,

Republic of Korea Phone: 82-2-2023-7792 Fax: 82-2-2023-7780 E-mail: sy0511@korea.kr

Ms Hyun Mee DO

Ministry for Food, Agriculture, Forestry and

Fisheries,

Food safety & Sanitation Division

88 Gwanmun-ro, Gwacheon-si, Gyeonggi-do,

422-719, Republic of Korea Phone:82-2-500-2109

Fax: 82-2-503-0020 E-mail: hmdo@korea.kr

Mr Jae Eok NOH

Ministry for Food, Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries.

National Agricultural Products Quality

Management Service

560 Dangsan-dong-3-ga, Yeongdeungpo-gu,

Seoul, 150-043, Republic of Korea

Phone: 82-2-2165-6112 Fax: 82-2-2165-6006 E-mail: gregno@naqs.go.kr

Ms In Hwa JEONG

Ministry for Food, Agriculture, Forestry and

Fisheries,

National Agricultural Products Quality

Management Service

310 Jungang-ro, Manan-gu, Anyang-si, Gyeonggi-do, 430-016, Republic of Korea

Phone: 82-31-463-1568 Fax: 82-31-446-0903 E-mail: dlsghk22@naqs.go.kr

Mr Dong-Gyu KIM

Researcher

Toxicology & Chemistry Division/ Livestock Products Safety & Inspection Department

(430-824) 480, Anyang 6-dong, Manan-gu, Anyang-City,

Gyeonggi-do, Republic of Korea Phone: +82-31-467-1984 Fax: +82-31-467-1872; E-mail: kims@nvrqs.go.kr

Dr Joong-Keun LEE

Head Researcher

Dept. of Food & Drug Industry Food Safety Team

57-1 Noryangjin-Dong, Gongjak-Gu,

dgkim@korea.kr

Seoul, Korea 156-800 Phone: +82-2-2194-7488; Fax: +82-2-827-0715 E-mail: leejk@khidi.or.kr

Mr Hee Dong WOO

Researcher

Dept. of Food & Drug Industry Food Safety Team

57-1 Noryangjin-dong, Gongjak-gu,

Seoul, 156-800, Korea Phone: 82-2-2194-7447 Fax: 82-2-827-0715 E-mail: whd23@khidi.or.kr

Ms Mi Gyung LEE

Professor

Dept. of Food Science & Biotechnology,

College of National Science, Andong National University 388 Songcheon-dong, Andong-si, Gyeongbuk 760-749, Republic of Korea

Phone: 82-54-820-6011 Fax: 82-54-820-6264 E-mail: leemig@andong.ac.kr

Mr In Ho BAEG

Korea Ginseng Corporation Safety Research

Cente

302 Shinseong-dong, Yuseong-gu, Daejeon

305-805, Republic of Korea Phone: 82-10-5421-2992 E-mail: ginsengking@kgc.or.kr

Mr Yong Jae LEE

Korea Ginseng Corporation

302 Shinseong-dong, Yuseong-gu, Daejeon

305-805, Republic of Korea Phone: 82-42-870-3152 Fax: 82-42-870-3142 E-mail: yongjae95@kgc.or.kr

Mr K.W. Yang

DongBu HiTek

Product development Team Manager DonBu HiTek, 891-10 KangNam-Gu,

DaeChi-dong, Seoul, Korea Phone: 82-(0)2-3483-1777 Fax: 82-(0)2-565-8534 E-mail: kwyang@dongbu.com

RWANDA/RWANDA/RWANDA

Mr Ernest UZARIBARA

Agricultural Products Standards Officer

Rwanda Bureau of Standards P.O. Box 7099 Kigali-Rwanda Phone: +250-7886 81090

Fax: +250-252-583 305

E-mail: ernestu2002@yahoo.co.uk; ernest@rbs.org.rw

SAMOA/SAMOA/SAMOA

Ms Gladys FUIMAONO

Principal Officer,

Fair Trading and Codex Alimentary Division Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Labour

P.O. Box 862.Apia.Samoa Phone: 685 20441 Fax: 685 20443

E-mail: codex.samoa@mcil.gov.ws

SENEGAL/SÉNÉGAL/SENEGAL

Mr Alhousseynou Moctar HANNE

Chef De Bureau Quarantaine Des Plantes / Gestionnaire

Du PNI/ SPS

BP 20054Thiaroye / DAKAR : SENEGAL Phone: (221) 776407517/ 338340397 Fax: (221) 338532252 / 338342854 E-mail: almhanne@yahoo.fr / almhanne@hotmail.com

SERBIA/SERBIE/SERBIA

Ms Snezana SAVCIC-PETRIC

Head of Department for Plant Protection and Plant Nutrition

Products

Serbia, 11070 New Belgrade, Omladinskih Brigada 1 Street Phone: + 381 11 2600 081 Fax: + 381 11 2600 081

E-mail: snezana.savcicpetric@minpolj.gov.rs

SIERRA LEONE/SIERRA LEONE/SIERRA LEONA

Dr Ibrahim SHAMIE

Head Crop Protection

Youyi Building, Freetown, Sierra Leone Phone: 232 785 42939/77542939

E-mail: imo1shamie@yahoo.co.uk/slnppo.com

SINGAPORE/SINGAPOUR/SINGAPUR

Dr Paul King Tiong CHIEW

Director, Laboratories Department

Agri-Food& Veterinary Authority of Singapore

10 Perahu Road Singapore 718837

Phone: (65) 6795 2828 Fax: (65)68619491

E-mail: paul_chiew@ava.gov.sg

Dr Yuan Sheng WU

Assistant Director,

Food & Nutrition Chemistry Laboratories Department

Agri-Food& Veterinary Authority of Singapore

10 Perahu Road Singapore 718837

Phone: (65) 6795 2807 Fax: (65)68619491

E-mail: wu_yuan_sheng@ava.gov.sg

Mr Poh Leong LIM

Senior Scientist, Pesticide Residue Section

Laboratories Department

Agri-Food& Veterinary Authority of Singapore

10 Perahu Road Singapore 718837

Phone: (65) 67952818 Fax: (65)68619491

E-mail: lim_poh_leong@ava.gov.sg

SOUTH AFRICA/AFRIQUE DU SUD/SUDÁFRICA

Dr Nolwazi MKIZE

Agricultural Management Advisor Private Bag X 343, Tshwane, 0001

Phone: +2712319 7910 Fax: +2712319 7179

E-mail: nolwazim@daff.gov.za

Ms Renusha R. CHANDA

Assistant Director: Food Control Privae Bag X828, Pretoria, South Africa, 0001

Phone: +27123133161 Fax: +27123123161

E-mail: chandr@health.gov.za

SPAIN/ESPAGNE/ESPAÑA

Mr Cesar CORTES

Head of Unit

General Secretariat of the Council of the European Union

Rue De La Loi 175, 1048 Brussels, Belgium

Phone: +32 2 281 6114 Fax: +32 2 281 6198

E-mail: cesar.cortes@consilium.europa.eu

SUDAN/SOUDAN/SUDÁN

Mrs Nour Elsayed Mukhtar MOHAMED

Agrochemist .Head of Comformity Assesment Dept Sudanese Standard and

Metrology Org

Khartoum. Baladia Street P.O.Box13573

Phone: 2491 83775247 Fax: 2491 83774852

E-mail: nourssmo2009@hotmail.com

Ms Ula Abdelaziz Makkawi ABDELRHMAN

Senior Quality Control Inspector Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry

P.O. BOX 285 Phone: 2499 18075475 Fax: 83-781748

E-mail: ula 123@live.com

Mr Omer Ibrahim Ali ELTINGARI

Pesticide Department .Head Office- Ministry of Agriculture

and Forestry

Khartoum North P.O.Box14 Phone: 2499 12801114 Fax: 2491 85339423

E-mail: omerltingari@yahoo.com

Mr Galaleldin Izzeldin AWAD

Agrochemist - Technical administration

Pestcides Lap, Sudanese Standrad & Metrology Organization

Khartoum. Baladia Streetp.O.Box13573

Phone: 2491 83775247 Fax: 2491 83774852 E-mail: galal15@hotmail.com

SWITZERLAND/SUISSE/SUIZA

Ms Lucia Verena KLAUSER

Schwarzenburgstrasse 165, CH-3003 Bern

Phone: +4131 322 95 69 Fax: +4131 322 95 74

E-mail: lucia.klauser@bag.admin.ch

Dr Thomas MUELLER

Global Product Registration Manager Fungicides Syngenta Crop Protection AG, Schwarzwaldallee 215, 4058 Basel, Switzerland

Phone: 41 61 323 8035 Fax: 41 61 323 8970

E-mail: thomas.mueller@syngenta.Com

UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA /RÉPUBLIQUE-UNIE DE TANZANIE/ REPÚBLICA UNIDA DETANZANÍA

Dr Bakari KAONEKA

Principal Research Scientist Tropical Pesticide Research Institute P.O Box 3024, Arusha, Tanzania Phone: 255 27 250 8813-5

Fax: 255 27 250 8217 E-mail: kaonekab@yahoo.com

Mr Mathias MISSANGA

Standards Officer

Tanzania Bureau of Standards

P. O. Box 9524 Dar Es Salaam, Tanzania

Phone: +255 22 2450206 Fax: +255 22 2450959 E-mail: obuzeva@yahoo.com

THAILAND/THAÏLANDE/TAILANDIA Mr Somchai CHARNNARONGKUL

Director General, Department of Agriculture 50 Phaholyothin Rd., Chatujak, Bangkok, 10900, Thailand Phone: +662 579 9636 Fax: +662 940 5528

E-mail: somchaic@moac.go.th, somchaic@hotmail.com

Mrs Manthana MILNE

Director of Agricultural Production Science Research and

Development Office, Department of Agriculture 50 Phaholyothin Rd., Chatujak, Bangkok, 10900, Thailand Phone: 662 579 3577

Fax: 662 940 5736 E-mail: manthana.m@doa.in.th

Ms Prapassara PIMPAN

Senior Scientist, Pesticide Research Group, Department of

Agriculture

50 Phaholyothin Rd., Chatujak, Bangkok, 10900, Thailand Phone: 662 9405442 ext.2310

Fax: 622 561 4695

E-mail: ppimpan04@yahoo.com

Ms Chitra SETTAUDOM

Senior Expert In Food Standard, Food and Drug Administration Tiwanont Rd, Taladkwan, Nonthaburi, 11000, Thailand Phone: 6625907140

Fax: 6625918446

E-mail: schitra@fda.moph.go.th

Mr Pisan PONGSAPITCH

Senior Expert in Agricultural Commodity and Food Standards

National Bureau of Agricultural Commodity and Food

Standards

50 Phaholyothin Rd., Chatujak, Bangkok, 10900, Thailand Phone: 662 561 2277 ext 1421

Fax: 662 561 3357

E-mail: pisanp@yahoo.com, pisan@acfs.go.th

Ms Jitpaka SUNTUDROB

Medical Scientist, Department of Medical Sciences

Tiwanont Rd, Taladkwan, Nonthaburi, 11000, Thailand Phone: 662 951 0000 -996 Fax: 662 951 1023

E-mail: jitpaka.s@dmsc.mail.go.th

Mr Charoen KAOSUKSAI

Deputy Secretary General, Foods Processing Club. FTI

Thailand

Queen sirikit National Convention Center Zone C, 4th Floor, 60 New Rachadapisek Rd., Klongtoey, Bangkok, 10110

Thailand

Phone: 662 976 3088 Fax: 662 297 62265

E-mail: charoen@cpram.co.th

Ms Vipaporn SAKULKRU

Technical Officer, Thai Food Prosessors' Association

170/21-22 9th Floor, Ocean Tower 1Bld., New Ratchadapisek Rd., Klongtoey,

Bangkok, 10110, Thailand Phone: 662 261 2684 Fax: 662 261 2996

E-mail: vipaporn@thaifood.org

Uganda/Ouganda/Uganda

Mr Geoffrey ONEN
Senior Government Analyst

Government Chemist and Analytical Laboratory

P. O. Box 2174 Kampala Phone: 256-414-250474 Fax: 256-414-250470

E-mail: onengff1@yahoo.com/ onengff@hotmail.com

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA/ÉTATS-UNIS D'AMÉRIQUE/ESTADOS UNIDOS DE AMÉRICA

Ms Lois ROSSI

Director of Registration Division, Office of Pesticide Programs,

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Mail Code 7505P 1200 Pennsylvania Ave. N.W Washington,

D.C, 20460

Phone: 703-305-5447 Fax: 703-305-6920 E-mail: rossi.lois@epa.gov

Dr Robert EPSTEIN

Deputy Administrator, Agricultural Marketing Service,

United States Department of Agriculture

1400 Independence Avenue, SW.

Washington, DC 20250 Phone: 202-720-5231 Fax: 202-720-6496

E-mail: Robert.Epsteinams.@USDA.gov

Mrs Doreen CHEN

Analyst

US Codex Office

US Department of Agriculture, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20250-3700

Phone: 202 720 4063 Fax: 202 720-3157

E-mail: doreen.chen-moulec@fsis.usda.gov

Prof Daiel KUNKEL

Associate Director, IR-4 Headquarters

500 College Road East, Suite 201 W,

Princeton NJ 08540

Phone: 732 - 932 - 9575x 4616

Fax: 609.514.2612

E-mail: kunkel@aesop.rutgers.edu

Ms Cynthia BAKER

President, Exigent

370 South Main Street, Yuma,

Arizona 85364

Phone: (928) 819-1554 Fax: (928) 373-1822

E-mail: cbaker@gowanco.com

Dr Parthapratim BASU

Special Assistant, OPHS, FSIS, USDA

14th & Independence Ave, SW, Washington, DC 20250, U.S.A

Phone: 202-690-6558 Fax: 202-690-2364

E-mail: pat.basu@fsis.usda.gov

Dr Lori BERGER

Executive Director

California Specialty Crops Council 4500 S. Lapina Suite 214 Tulare,

CA 93274 U.S.A. Phone: 559.799.8266 Fax: 559.688.5527

E-mail: lori@specialtycrops.org

Mr William BRYANT

500 Union Street STE701 Seattle WA Bryant Christie Inc. 98101 USA

Phone: 206 292 6340 Fax: 206 292 6341

E-mail: billb@ bryantchristie.com

Dr Jamin HUANG

Senior Regulatory Manager, Bayer Crop Science,

P.O. Box 12014, 2 T.W. Alexander Drive Research Triangle Park, North Carolina,

USA 27709

Phone: 919-549-2634 Fax:919-549-2475

E-mail: jamin.huang@bayercropscience.com

Dr Young LEE

US Food and Drug Administration Director Regulatory Scientist

5100 Paint Branch Pkway (HFS-317), College Park, MD 20740

Phone: 1-301-436-1943 Fax: 1-301-436-2632

E-mail: Young.Lee@fda.hhs.gov

Ms Barbara MADDEN

Minor Use Officer, Registration Division,

Office of Pesticide Programs,

United States Environmental Protection Agency

7505p 1200 Pennsylwania Ave, Nw

Washington, Dc 20460 Phone: 703 305 6463 Fax: 703 605 0781

E-mail: madden.barbara@epa.gov

Ms Kathy MONK

Senior Regulatory Specialist, Registration Division, Office of Pesticide Programs,

United States Environmental Protection Agency Mail Code 7505P 1200 Pennsylvania Ave. N.W

Washington, D.C,20460 Phone: 703-308-8071 Fax: 703-305-6921

E-mail: monk.kathy@epa.gov

Mr Sven-Erik NIELSEN

Bryant Christie Inc.

500 Union Street STE701 Seattle WA98101 USA

Phone: 206 292 6340 Fax: 206 292 6341

E-mail: svenerik@bryantchristie.com

Mr Peter OLSON

Foreign Agriculture Service, US Dept. of Agriculture

Stop 1011, Room 5965, 1400 Independence Ave, SW

Washington, DC, 20050 Phone: 202-720-0639 Fax: 202-690-0677

E-mail:peter.olson@fas.usda.gov

Dr Jason SANDAHL

Foreign Agriculture Service, US Dept. of Agriculture

Senior International Program Manager

1400 Independence Avenue, Washington DC, 20250 Phone: 703-201-4108 Fax: 202-720-1320

E-mail: Jason.Sandahl@fas.usda.gov

URUGUAY/URUGUAY/URUGUAY

Mrs Otilia Betty Mandl ROBAINA

Presidenta Comité Nacional Del Codex

Constituyente 1476

Phone: 598 2 309 84 10 INT 136

Fax: 598 2 309 8410

E-mail: bmandl@mgap.gub.uy

VIET NAM/VIET NAM/VIET NAM

Dr Le Hong KHANH

Senior Officer

02, Ngoc Ha, Ba Dinh, Ha Noi, Viet Nam

Phone: 84. 4. 444592126 Fax: 84. 4. 37346401 E-mail: lhkhanh@gmail.com

ZAMBIA/ZAMBIE/ ZAMBIA

Mr P. MULENGA

CPA-Environmental Health Services

Ministry of Health PO Box 30205 Lusaka Zambia

Phone: 260253040 Fax: 260253344

E-mail: mulengaphillip@yahoo.com

INTERNATIONAL GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS INTERNATIONAL ATOMIC ENERGY AGENCY (IAEA)

Dr Peter Josef BRODESSER

Food Safety Specialist

Wag ramer Stresses 5, 1400 Vienna, Austria

Phone: 43-1-2600-26058 E-mail: J.Brodesser@iaea.org

ORGANISATION FOR ECONOMIC COOPERATION AND DEVELOPMENT (OECD)

Ms Sylvie PORET

Principal administrator Phone: 33 1 45 24 89 45 Fax: 33 144 30 63 99

E-mail: Sylvie.Poret@oecd.org

INTERNATIONAL NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS CROP LIFE INTERNATIONAL

Dr Michael KAETHNER

Head of Developmental Affairs Alfred-Nobel-Str.50, D-40789 Monheim, Germany

Phone: +49 2173 387521 Fax: +49 2173 383572

E-mail: michael.kaethner@bayercropscience.com

Yanjing LIU

Registration & Regulatory Affairs Manager for China Room 1108, Cyber Mode, No. 2 Zhong Guan Cun South

Avenue, Haidian District,

Beijing, China

Phone: 86-10-82515675 ext 82 Fax: 86-10-82513132 ext 83 E-mail: christina.liu@fmc.com

Dr Philip BRINDLE

Sr. Manager, Global MRLs & Import Tolerances, BASF

Crop Protection

26 Davis Drive, P.O. Box 13528, Research Triangle Park,

NC 27709, USA Phone: 1 919 547 2654 Fax:1 919 547 2850

E-mail: philip.brindle@basf.com

Mr Kazuhish GOH

Executive Officer

2-5, Nihonbashi 1-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-8236, Japan

Phone: 81 03 3274 8415 Fax: 81 03 3281 5462

E-mail: goh-kazuhisa@nichino.co.jp

Dr Mitsuhiro ICHINARI

Assistant to President, Development Dept., Summit Agro

International Ltd.

Harumi Island Triton Square Office Tower Z, 1-8-12,

Harumi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, 104-6223 Japan Phone: 81 3 6221 3039 Fax: +81 3 6221 3035

E-mail: mitsuhiro.ichinari@summit-agro.co.jp

Ms Heidi IRRIG

Regulatory Residue Manager Post Office Box 18300–Greensboro,

NC 27419-8300 Phone: 1336-632-7243 Fax: 1336-632-5688

E-mail: heidi.irrig@syngenta.com

Mr Yukihiro KANAGUCHI

Manager, Regulatory Affairs Dept., Agro Products Div. Nippon Soda Co., Ltd. 2-1, Ohtemachi 2-Chome, Chiyoda-ku,

Tokyo 100-8165, Japan Phone: +81 3 3245 6324 Fax: +81 3 3245 6289

E-mail: y.kanaguchi@nippon-soda.co.jp

Mr Yukio KIMURA

Manager

2-5, Nihonbashi 1-chome, Chuo-ku,

Tokyo 103-8236, Japan Phone: +81 3 3274 3383 Fax: +81 3 3281 5462

E-mail: kimura-yukio@nichino.co.jp

Ms Miki MATSUI

Manager

345 Oyamada-cho, Kawachinagano,

586-0094, OSAKA, Japan Phone: +81 721 56 9014 Fax: +81 721 56 9090

E-mail: matsui-miki@nichino.co.jp

Mary Jean MEDINA

Regional Regulatory Affairs Manager -AP

15/F, K Tower Bldg, Tower A, 209 Sukhumvit 21 (Asoke)

Rd., Klontoey Nua, Wattana,

Bangkok, Thailand Phone: 662-6644322 Fax: 662-6641326

E-mail: jean.medina@fmc.com

Mr Yoshihiro NISHIMOTO

Manager Of Registration & Regulatory Affairs

27-1, Shinkawa 2-Chome, Chuo-Ku,

Tokyo 104-8260, Japan Phone: 81-3-5543-5692 Fax: 81-3-5543-5695

E-mail: nishimotoy@sc.sumitomo-chem.co.jp

Dr Ann ORTH

Senior Global Regulatory Manager

701 Princeton South Corporate Center, Ewing,

NJ 08628

Phone: 609-963-6779 Fax: 609-963-6782 E-mail: ann.orth@fmc.com

Mr Scott RAWLINS

Director, Governmental Relations and Trade 4515 Falls of Neuse Road Raleigh,

North Carolina 27609 Phone: 919-256-9324 Fax: 919-256-9308

E-mail: scottr@manainc.com

Mr Toshio SHIMOMURA

Consultant

Zeoonh,1-3-1 Otemachi Chiyoda-ku,

Tokyo Japan

Phone: +81 3 6271 8289 Fax: +81 3 5218 2536

E-mail: shimomura-toshio-q1@zennoh.or.jp

Dr Daisuke SATO

Manager, Regulatory Affairs, Development Dept., Summit

Agro International Ltd.

Harumi Island Triton Square Office Tower Z, 1-8-12,

Harumi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, 104-6223 Japan Phone: 81-3-6221-3034 Fax: 81-3-6221-3035

E-mail: daisuke.sato@summit-agro.co.jp

Ms Natalie SHEVCHUK

Global Regulatory Operations Manager FMC Corporation, 1735 Market Street,

Philadelphia, PA19103 Phone: 215-299-6680 Fax: 215-299-6468

E-mail: natalie.shevchuk@fmc.com

Dr Ying SONG

Manager, Global Registration & Regulatory Affairs DuPont Crop Protection, Stine-Haskell Research Center, 1090 Elkton Rd., P.O. Box 30,

Newark, DE 19714 Phone: 302-451-4546 Fax: 302-351-7183

E-mail: ying.song-1@usa.dupont.com

Mr Koji TAKEHARA

Manager, Regulatory Affairs, Agricultural Division, Nissan Chemical Industries, Ltd.

7-1, 3-chome, Kanda-Nishiki-cho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 101-

0054, Japan

Phone: 81-3-3296-8151 Fax: 81-3-3296-8016

E-mail: takehara@nissanchem.co.jp

Mr Yoshihiro WADA

Manager, SDS Biotech K.K.

1-1-5, Higashi-Nihombashi, Chuo-ku,

Tokyo 103-0004, Japan Phone: 81-3-5825-5516 Fax: 81-3-5825-5501

E-mail: yoshihiro wada@sdsbio.co.jp

Mr Hiroo WAKIMORI

Chemical Regulatory Affairs Lead Ginza Sannou Bldg. 4-10-10, Ginza, Chuo-ku, Tokyo

1040061

Phone: 81 3 6226 6080 Fax: +81 3 3546 6191

E-mail: hiroo.wakimori@monsanto.com

Mr Wing YU

Residue Scientist

199 Benson Road, Middlebury,

CT 06749, U.S.A. Phone: 203 573 3363 Fax: 203 573 3660

E-mail: wing.yu@chemtura.com

Mr Kenneth CHISHOLM

Vice President, Development

Nichino America Inc., 4550 New Linden Hill Rd, Suite 501,

Wilmington, DE 19808, USA Phone:1-302-636-9001 Fax: 1-302-636-9122 E-mail: kchiz@nichino.net

INTERNATIONAL NUT AND DRIED FRUIT COUNCIL FOUNDATION (INC)

Dr Gabriele LUDWIG

Boule, 2, Planta 4, 43201 Reus, Tarragona, Spain (INC,

Spain)

Phone: (+34) 977-331-416; Fax: (+34) 977-315-028 Almond Board of California 1150 9th Street, Suite 1500, Modesto, CA 95354, USA

ABC phone: (+1)-209-765-0578 E-mail: gludwig@almondboard.com

INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY OF CITRICULTURE (ISC)

Mr James R.CRANNEY

President, California Citrus Quality Council California Citrus Quality Council 210 Magnolia Ave.,Suite 3,Auburn, CA 95603

Phone: (530)885-1894 Fax: (530)885-1546

E-mail:jcranney@calcitrusquality.org,

cprice@calcitrusquality.org

INTERNATIONAL SPECIAL DIETARY FOODS INDUSTRIES (ISDI)

Mr Jacky CAI

Member

Rue de l'Association 50-1000 Brussels, Belgium

Phone: +32 2 209 11 43 Fax: +32 2 219 73 42 E-mail: secretariat@isdi.org

INTERNATIONAL UNION OF PURE AND APPLIED CHEMISTRY (IUPAC)

Dr Caroline HARRIS

Exponent International Ltd., the Lenz, Hornbeam Park, Harrogate HG2 8re, UK

Phone: 44 1425 883201 Fax: 44 1423 810431

E-mail: charris@ok.exponent.com

CCPR SECRETARIAT

Mr Jiming YE

Deputy Director

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4081 Fax: +86 10 6502 5929 E-mail: yejiming@agri.gov.cn

Dr Weili SHAN

Director

Residue Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No.22 Maizidian Street Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4253 Fax: +86 10 5919 4107 E-mail: shanweili@agri.gov.cn

Ms Oiu JIAN

Deputy Director

Residue Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No.22 Maizidian Street Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Tel: +86 10 5919 4033 Fax: +86 10 5919 4107 E-mail: jianqiu@agri.gov.cn

Ms Lifang DUAN

Chemist

Residue Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4105 Fax: +86 10 5919 4107 E-mail: duanlifang@agri.gov.cn

Mr Wencheng SONG

Environmental Specialist

Residue Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4105 Fax: +86 10 5919 4107

E-mail: songwencheng@agri.gov.cn

Ms Dongmei QIN

Professor

Residue Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4078 Fax: +86 10 5919 4107

E-mail: qindongmei@agri.gov.cn

Mr Yong GONG

Senior Agronomist

Residue Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4077 Fax: +86 10 5919 4107 E-mail: gongyong@agri.gov.cn

Ms Guangyan ZHU

Senior Agronomist

Residue Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4077 Fax: +86 10 5919 4107

E-mail: zhuguangyan@agri.gov.cn

Ms Zuntao ZHENG

Chemist

Residue Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4078 Fax: +86 10 5919 4107 E-mail: zjuzzt@hotmail.com

Ms Mengmeng QU

Environmental Specialist

Environmental Fate and Effect Division Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22 Maizidian Street Chaoyang District,

Beijing, 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4056 Fax: +86 10 5919 4111

E-mail: qumengmeng@agri.gov.cn

Mr Junhua SONG

Quality Control Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22 Maizidian Street Chaoyang District,

Beijing, 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4101 Fax: +86 10 6507 1072 E-mail: junesong@agri.gov.cn

Dr Hongjun ZHANG

Deputy Director

Bioaacy Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22 Maizidian Street Chaoyang District,

Beijing, 100125, P.R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4095 Fax: +86 10 5919 4110

E-mail: zhanghongjun@agri.gov.cn

Ms Wei ZHANG

Bioaacy Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22 Maizidian Street Chaoyang District,

Beijing, 100125, P.R. China Phone:+ 86 10 5919 4136 Fax:+86 10 5919 4907 E-mail: weizhang@agri.gov.cn

Ms Min LI

Health Effect Division

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

No. 22 Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District,

Beijing, 100125, P.R. China Phone: + 86 10 5919 4062 Fax: +86 10 5919 4244 E-mail: limin@agri.gov.cn

Ms Changjie KE

CCPR Secretariat

Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture

Room 906, No. 18, Maizidian Street,

Chaoyang District

Beijing, 100125, P. R. China Phone: +86 10 5919 4255 Fax: +86 10 5919 4252 E-mail: ccpr@agri.gov.cn

Mr Zhiyong ZHANG

Institute of Food Safety, Jiangsu Academy of Agricultural

Sciences

No.50, Zhongling Street, Xiaolingwei, Xuanwu District,

Nanjing, Jiangsu, 210014, P. R. China

Phone: +86 25 8439 0401 Fax: +86 25 8439 0401 E-mail: yuzzy@163.com

FOOD AND AGRICULTURE
ORGANIZATION OF THE UNITED
NATIONS (FAO) ORGANISATIONDES
NATIONS UNIES POUR L'ALIMENTATION
ET L'AGRICULTURE /ORGANIZACIÓN
DE LAS NACIONES UNIDAS PARA LA
AGRICULTURA Y LA LIMENTACIÓN

Ms Yongzhen YANG

FAO JMPR Secretary

00153, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

Rome, Italy

Phone: +39 0657054246 Fax: +39 06 57053224

E-mail: Yongzhen.Yang@fao.org

CODEX SECRETARIAT

Dr Jeronimas MASKELIUNAS

Food Standards Officer

Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

00153 Rome, Italy

Phone: +39 06 5705 3967 Fax: +39 06 5705 4593

E-mail: Jeronimas.Maskeliunas@fao.org

Ms Gracia BRISCO

Food Standards Officer

Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

00153 Rome, Italy

Phone: +39 06 5705 2700 Fax: +39 06 5705 4593

E-mail: Gracia.Brisco@fao.org

Dr Hidetaka KOBAYASHI

Food Standards Officer

Secretariat, Codex Alimentarius Commission Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Nutrition and Consumer Protection Division Vialle delle Terme di Caracalla – 00153 Rome, Italy

Phone: (+39) 06 570 53218 Fax: (+39) 06 570 54593

E-mail: Hidetaka.Kobayashi@fao.org

APPENDIX II

DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (Recommended for adoption at Step 8)

	Commo	<u>dity</u>	MRL (mg/kg)	<u>Step</u>	<u>Note</u>
221	Boscalid	l			
	FI 327	Banana	0.6	8	
96	Carbofu	ıran			
	FC 4	Oranges, Sweet, Sour (including	g 0.5	8	
		Orange-like hybrids): several cultivars			
	FC 206	Mandarin	0.5	8	Based on the use of carbosulfan.
145	Carbosi	ılfan			
	FC 4	Oranges, Sweet, Sour (including	g 0.1	8	
		Orange-like hybrids): several cultivars			
	FC 206	Mandarin	0.1	8	
94	Methom	nyl			
	FP 226	Apple	0.3	8	

APPENDIX III
PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES
(Recommended for adoption at Step 5 and 8 with omission of Steps 6 and 7)

	Commod	lity	MRL (mg/kg)		Step	Note
155	Benalax	yl				
	VO 448	Tomato	0.2		5/8	
	VR 589	Potato	0.02 (*)		5/8	
	VC 432	Watermelon	0.1		5/8	
	VC 46	Melons, except watermelon	0.3		5/8	
	VL 482	Lettuce, Head	1		5/8	
	FB 269	Grapes	0.3		5/8	
	VA 385	Onion, Bulb	0.02 (*)		5/8	
221	Boscalid		,			
	AS 650	Rye straw and fodder, Dry	50		5/8	
	AS 654	Wheat straw and fodder, Dry	50		5/8	
	FS 12	Stone fruits	3		5/8	
	PO 111	Poultry, Edible offal of	0.02		5/8	
	AS 647	Oat straw and fodder, Dry	50		5/8	
	AS 640	Barley straw and fodder, Dry	50		5/8	
	AS 81	Straw and fodder (dry) of cerea			5/8	Except straw and fodder of
		grains				barley, oats, rye and wheat.
	DF 14	Prunes	10		5/8	The dried fruit.
	SO 88	Oilseed	1		5/8	
	TN 675	Pistachio nuts	1		5/8	
	PF 111	Poultry fats	0.02		5/8	
	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.02		5/8	
	GC 647	Oats	0.5		5/8	
	VR 75	Root and tuber vegetables	2		5/8	
	GC 650	Rye	0.5		5/8	
	TN 85	Tree nuts	0.05 (*)		5/8	Except pistachio.
	GC 654	Wheat	0.5		5/8	1 1
	AM 660	Almond hulls	15		5/8	
	FP 226	Apple	2		5/8	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.2		5/8	
	PE 112	Eggs	0.02		5/8	
	VC 45	Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits	3		5/8	
	FB 275	Strawberry	3		5/8	
	VO 50	Fruiting vegetables other than	3		5/8	Except fungi, mushroom and
	, 0 00	cucurbits	5		2,0	sweet corn.
	VL 53	Leafy vegetables	30		5/8	5 W 5 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
	VA 35	Bulb vegetables	5		5/8	
	VB 40	Brassica (Cole or Cabbage)	5		5/8	
	72.10	Vegetables, Head Cabbage, Flowerhead Brassicas	J		270	
	FB 18	Berries and other small fruits	10		5/8	Except strawberries and grapes.
	GC 640	Barley	0.5		5/8	t
	FI 341	Kiwi fruit	5		5/8	
	VP 60	Legume vegetables	3		5/8	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other than		(fat)	5/8	
		marine mammals)	- 0.7	()	2,0	

	Commod	-	MRL (mg/kg)		Step	<u>Note</u>
	ML 106	Milks	0.1		5/8	
	HS 444	Chilli peppers, dry	10		5/8	
	FB 269	Grapes	5		5/8	
173	Buprofe					
	FB 269	Grapes	1		5/8	
	AM 660	Almond hulls	2		5/8	
	TN 660	Almonds	0.05 (*)	5/8	
	FP 226	Apple	3		5/8	
	FS 13	Cherries	2		5/8	
	VC 45	Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits	0.7		5/8	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other that marine mammals)	n 0.05 (*)	5/8	
	DF 269	Dried grapes (=currants, raisins and sultanas)	2		5/8	
	ML 106	Milks	0.01 (*)	5/8	
	FT 305	Olives	5	,	5/8	
	FS 247	Peach	9		5/8	
	FP 230	Pear	6		5/8	
	VO 51	Peppers	2		5/8	
	FS 14	Plums (including prunes)	2		5/8	
	FB 275	Strawberry	3		5/8	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.05 (*)	5/8	
	VO 444	Peppers Chili	10	,	5/8	
	FS 245	Nectarine	9		5/8	
90		rifos-Methyl				
	FB 275	Strawberry	0.06		5/8	
	VO 448	Tomato	1		5/8	
	VO 440	Egg plant	1		5/8	
	HS 444	Chilli peppers, dry	10		5/8	
	FC 1	Citrus fruits	2		5/8	
	FS 12	Stone fruits	0.5		5/8	
	VO 51	Peppers	1		5/8	
	VR 589	Potato	0.01 (*)	5/8	
	FP 9	Pome fruits	1	,	5/8	
	FB 269	Grapes	1		5/8	
118		ethrins (including alpha- and z	eta- cypermet	hrin)		
	GC 650	Rye	2	Po	5/8	
	GC 647	Oats	2	Po	5/8	
	PE 112	Eggs	0.01 (*		5/8	
	GC 80	Cereal grains	0.3	,	5/8	Except rice, barley, oats, rye and wheat.
	GC 640	Barley	2	Po	5/8	WITH 1110W.
	GC 654	Wheat	2	Po	5/8	
	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.1	(fat)	5/8	
	CM 654	Wheat bran, Unprocessed	5	PoP	5/8	
197	Fenbuco	_	-	-		
- *	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.01 (*)	5/8	
	ML 106	Milks	0.01 (*		5/8	
	PO 111	Poultry, Edible offal of	0.01 (*		5/8	
	TN 85	Tree nuts	0.01 (*		5/8	
	PE 112	Eggs	0.01 (*		5/8	
	·		0.01 (,	-70	

225	Commod		MRL (mg/kg)	Step	Note
235	Fluopico AS 81		0.2	£ /O	
	AS 81	Straw and fodder (dry) of cereal grains	0.2	5/8	
	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.01 (*)	5/8	
	VA 385	Onion, Bulb	1	5/8	
	VA 387	Onion, Welsh	10	5/8	
	HS 444	Chilli peppers, dry	7	5/8	
	VB 42	Flowerhead brassicas (includes Broccoli: Broccoli, Chinese and Cauliflower)	2	5/8	
	VB 402	Brussels sprouts	0.2	5/8	
	PE 112	Eggs	0.01 (*)	5/8	
	VC 45	Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits	0.5	5/8	
	VO 50	Fruiting vegetables other than cucurbits	1	5/8	Except mushrooms and sweet corn.
	DF 269	Dried grapes (=currants, raisins and sultanas)	10	5/8	
	AB 269	Grape pomace, Dry	7	5/8	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.01 (*)	5/8	
	PO 111	Poultry, Edible offal of	0.01 (*)	5/8	
	ML 106	Milks	0.02	5/8	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other than marine mammals)	0.01 (*) (fat)	5/8	
	FB 269	Grapes	2	5/8	
194	Haloxyfo	op –			
	VA 385	Onion, Bulb	0.2	5/8	
	SB 716	Coffee beans	0.02 (*)	5/8	
	FS 12	Stone fruits	0.02 (*)	5/8	
	FI 327	Banana	0.02 (*)	5/8	
176	Hexythia	azox			
	VO 448	Tomato	0.1	5/8	
	VC 45	Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits	0.05	5/8	Except watermelon.
	FB 269	Grapes	1	5/8	
	MF 100	Mammalian fats (except milk far	ts) 0.05	5/8	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other than marine mammals)	` '	5/8	
	FM 183	Milk fats	0.05	5/8	
	ML 106	Milks	0.05	5/8	
	FP 9	Pome fruits	0.4	5/8	
	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.05 (*) (fat)	5/8	
	FC 1	Citrus fruits	0.5	5/8	
	FS 12	Stone fruits	0.3	5/8	
	TN 85	Tree nuts	0.05 (*)	5/8	
	VO 440	Egg plant	0.1	5/8	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.05	5/8	
	DF 269	Dried grapes (=currants, raisins and sultanas)	1	5/8	
	FT 295	Date	2	5/8	
	PE 112	Eggs	0.05	5/8	
	AB 269	Grape pomace, Dry	15	5/8	
	DF 14	Prunes	1	5/8	
	PO 111	Poultry, Edible offal of	0.05	5/8	

	Commod		MRL (mg/kg)	Step	Note
216	Indoxaca				
	PO 111	Poultry, Edible offal of	0.01 (*)	5/8	
	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.01 (*) (fat)	5/8	
	FB 265	Cranberry	1	5/8	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.05	5/8	
	PE 112	Eggs	0.02	5/8	
	VC 45	Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits	0.5	5/8	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other than	n 2 (fat)	5/8	
		marine mammals)			
	FM 183	Milk fats	2	5/8	
	HH 738	Mints	15	5/8	
	FS 12	Stone fruits	1	5/8	
	ML 106	Milks	0.1	5/8	
	DF 14	Prunes	3	5/8	The dried fruit.
	VD 527	Cowpea (dry)	0.1	5/8	
236	Metaflun				
	HS 444	Chilli peppers, dry	6	5/8	
	ML 106	Milks	0.01 (*)	5/8	
	VR 589	Potato	0.02 (*)	5/8	
	VO 440	Egg plant	0.6	5/8	
	VO 448	Tomato	0.6	5/8	
	FM 183	Milk fats	0.02	5/8	
	VB 402	Brussels sprouts	0.8	5/8	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.02 (*)	5/8	
	VL 482	Lettuce, Head	7	5/8	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other than	n 0.02 (*) (fat)	5/8	
		marine mammals)			
	VO 51	Peppers	0.6	5/8	
	VL 466	Chinese cabbage (type pak-choi) 6	5/8	
209	Methoxy				
	AL 697	Peanut fodder	80	5/8	
	FI 326	Avocado	0.7	5/8	
	VP 526	Common bean (pods and/or immature seeds)	2	5/8	
	VR 508	Sweet potato	0.02	5/8	
	VR 596	Sugar beet	0.3	5/8	
	FB 275	Strawberry	2	5/8	
	VL 494	Radish leaves (including radish tops)	7	5/8	
	VR 494	Radish	0.4	5/8	
	OR 697	Peanut oil, Edible	0.1	5/8	
	SO 697	Peanut	0.03	5/8	
	FI 350	Papaya	1	5/8	
	VR 577	Carrot	0.5	5/8	
	VP 62	Beans, Shelled	0.3	5/8	
	VD 71	Beans (dry)	0.5	5/8	
	VP 64	Peas, Shelled (succulent seeds)	0.3	5/8	
	FB 20	Blueberries	4	5/8	
	ML 106	Milks	0.05	5/8	
	FC 1	Citrus fruits	0.7	5/8	
	VD 527	Cowpea (dry)	5	5/8	
	FB 265	Cranberry	0.7	5/8	

	Commod	ity 1	MRL (mg/k	<u>(g)</u>	Step	Note
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.1		5/8	
	MF 100	Mammalian fats (except milk fat			5/8	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other than	0.2	(fat)		
		marine mammals)	**-	()	, 2,0	
57	Paraqua					
	AS 649	Rice straw and fodder, Dry	0.05		5/8	
	GC 649	Rice	0.05		5/8	
142	Prochlor	az				
	VO 450	Mushrooms	3		5/8	
232	Prothioc	onazole				
	SO 495	Rape seed	0.1		5/8	
	AS 164	Fodder (dry) of cereal grains	5		5/8	
	GC 654	Wheat	0.1		5/8	
	AS 81	Straw and fodder (dry) of cereal grains	4		5/8	
	VR 596	Sugar beet	0.3		5/8	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other than	0.01		5/8	
		marine mammals)				
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.5		5/8	
	GC 640	Barley	0.2		5/8	
	VD 70	Pulses	1		5/8	Except soya bean, dry.
	ML 106	Milks	0.004	(*)	5/8	
237	Spirodic					
	DF 269	Dried grapes (=currants, raisins	0.3		5/8	
		and sultanas)				
	TN 85	Tree nuts	0.05		5/8	
	VO 448	Tomato	0.5		5/8	
	FB 275	Strawberry	2		5/8	
	FS 12	Stone fruits	2		5/8	
	FP 9	Pome fruits	0.8		5/8	
	FI 350	Papaya	0.03	` /	5/8	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other than marine mammals)	0.01	(*) (fat)	5/8	
	ML 106	Milks	0.004	(*)	5/8	
	DH 1100	Hops, Dry	40		5/8	
	VC 425	Gherkin	0.07		5/8	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.05	(*)	5/8	
	FB 21	Currants, Black, Red, White	1		5/8	
	VC 424	Cucumber	0.07		5/8	
	SB 716	Coffee beans	0.03	(*)	5/8	
	FC 1	Citrus fruits	0.4		5/8	
	AB 226	Apple pomace, Dry	4		5/8	
	AM 660	Almond hulls	15		5/8	
	VO 445	Peppers, Sweet (including	0.2		5/8	
		pimento or pimiento)				
	FB 269	Grapes	0.2		5/8	
227	Zoxamid					
	VC 45	Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits	2			

APPENDIX IV

PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (Recommended for adoption at Step 5)

	Commodi	<u>ty</u>	MRL (mg/kg)		<u>Step</u>	Note
90	Chlorpyr	ifos-Methyl				
	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.01	(fat)	5	
	GC 647	Oats	10	Po	5	
	CF 1210	Wheat germ	5	PoP	5	
	GC 654	Wheat	3	Po	5	
	PO 111	Poultry, Edible offal of	0.01 (*))	5	
	FM 183	Milk fats	0.01 (*))	5	
	ML 106	Milks	0.01 (*))	5	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other that marine mammals)	n 0.1	(fat)	5	
	PE 112	Eggs	0.01 (*))	5	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.01		5	
	GC 640	Barley	3	Po	5	
	GC 649	Rice	10	Po	5	
	AB 269	Grape pomace, Dry	5		5	
	CM 654	Wheat bran, Unprocessed	6	PoP	5	
197	Fenbucor	nazole				
	AM 660	Almond hulls	3		5	
	VO 51	Peppers	0.6		5	
	HS 444	Peppers Chili, dried	2		5	
	AL 697	Peanut fodder	15		5	
	SO 697	Peanut	0.1		5	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other that marine mammals)	n 0.01		5	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.1		5	
	FB 265	Cranberry	1		5	
	AB 226	Apple pomace, Dry	1		5	
	FS 14	Plums (including prunes)	0.3		5	
	FP 9	Pome fruits	0.5		5	
	FB 20	Blueberries	0.5		5	
235	Fluopicol	ide				
	VS 624	Celery	20		5	
	VB 41	Cabbages, Head	7		5	
	VL 53	Leafy vegetables	30		5	
194	Haloxyfo	p				
	ML 106	Milks	0.3		5	
	SO 702	Sunflower seed	0.3		5	
	VR 596	Sugar beet	0.4		5	
	VD 541	Soya bean (dry)	2		5	
	SO 495	Rape seed	3		5	
	PO 111	Poultry, Edible offal of	0.7		5	
	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.7	(fat)	5	
	FP 9	Pome fruits	0.02 (*)		5	
	VP 64	Peas, Shelled (succulent seeds)			5	
	VP 63	Peas (pods and	0.7		5	
		succulent=immature seeds)				

Commodi	<u>ity</u>	MRL (mg/kg)	Step Note	
VD 71	Beans (dry)	3	5	
AL 697	Peanut fodder	5	5	
VP 61	Beans, except broad bean and	0.5	5	
	soya bean			
FM 183	Milk fats	7	5	
MM 95	Meat (from mammals other tha	n 0.5 (fa	t) 5	
	marine mammals)			
FB 269	Grapes	0.02 (*)	5	
AM 1051	Fodder beet	0.4	5	
PE 112	Eggs	0.1	5	
MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	2	5	
SO 691	Cotton seed	0.7	5	
FC 1	Citrus fruits	0.02 (*)	5	
VD 524	Chick-pea (dry)	0.05	5	
VD 72	Peas (dry)	0.2	5	

APPENDIX V

CODEX MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES RECOMMENDED FOR REVOCATION

155	Commod Benalaxy	-	MRL (mg/kg)	<u>Step</u>	Note
133	VO 448		0.5	CXL-D	
	FB 269		0.3	CXL-D	
		Hops, Dry	0.2	CXL-D	
		±	0.2		
		Onion, Bulb		CXL-D	
		Cucumber	0.05	CXL-D	
		Chilli peppers, dry	0.5	CXL-D	
	VC 46	Melons, except watermelon	0.1	CXL-D	
	VO 445	Peppers, Sweet (including	0.05	CXL-D	
	T.ID. 500	pimento or pimiento)	0.02 (#)	CIVI D	
221	VR 589		0.02 (*)	CXL-D	
221	Boscalid				
	TN 85	Tree nuts	0.05 (*)	CXL-D	Except pistachio
	FS 12	Stone fruits	3	CXL-D	
		Pistachio nuts	1	CXL-D	
	DF 269	Dried grapes (=currants, raisins a sultanas)		CXL-D	
	FB 269	Grapes	5	CXL-D	
	SB 716	Coffee beans	0.05 (*)	CXL-D	
	FB 18	Berries and other small fruits	10	CXL-D	Except strawberry and grapes
	FP 226	Apple	2	CXL-D	
	FI 327	Banana	0.2	CXL-D	
	AM 660	Almond hulls	15	CXL-D	
173	Buprofe	zin			
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.05 (*)	CXL-D	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other than marine mammals)	0.05 (*)	CXL-D	
	ML 106	Milks	0.01 (*)	CXL-D	
	VC 424	Cucumber	0.2	CXL-D	
8	Carbary	1			
	FS 13	Cherries	10	CXL-D	1999-2003
90	Chlorpy	rifos-Methyl			
	DT 1114	Tea, Green, Black (black, fermented and dried)	0.1	CXL-D	
	FB 269	Grapes	0.2	CXL-D	
	FS 247	Peach	0.5	CXL-D	
	CP 1212	Wholemeal bread	2 PoP	CXL-D	
	FC 4	Oranges, Sweet, Sour (including Orange-like hybrids): several cultivars	0.5	CXL-D	
	CP 1211	White bread	0.5 PoP	CXL-D	
	ML 106	Milks	0.01 (*)	CXL-D	
	VB 41	Cabbages, Head	0.1	CXL-D	
	CF 1211	Wheat flour	2 Po	CXL-D	
		Date	0.05	CXL-D	
		Mushrooms	0.01 (*)	CXL-D	
	VL 467	Chinese cabbage (type pe-tsai)	0.1	CXL-D	
		Lettuce, Head	0.1	CXL-D	

	Commod	lity	MRL (mg/k	<u>(g)</u>		<u>Step</u>	<u>Note</u>
	VO 440	Egg plant	0.1			CXL-D	
	VO 448	Tomato	0.5			CXL-D	
	FP 226	Apple	0.5			CXL-D	
	VO 51	Peppers	0.5			CXL-D	
	VP 526	Common bean (pods and/or	0.1			CXL-D	
		immature seeds)					
	VR 494	Radish	0.1			CXL-D	
	VS 620	Artichoke, Globe	0.1			CXL-D	
118	Cypermo	ethrins (including alpha- and z	zeta- cyperm	ethr	rin)		
	PE 112	Eggs	0.01	(*)		CXL-D	
	GC 80	Cereal grains	0.3			CXL-D	Except rice.
	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.05	(*)	(fat)	CXL-D	
197	Fenbuco	onazole					
	ML 812	Cattle milk	0.05			CXL-D	
	PE 112	Eggs	0.05	(*)		CXL-D	
	TN 672	Pecan	0.05	(*)		CXL-D	
	PF 111	Poultry fats	0.05	(*)		CXL-D	
	PM 110	Poultry meat	0.05			CXL-D	
		Poultry, Edible offal of	0.05	(*)		CXL-D	
194	Haloxyfo	op					
	FI 327	Banana	0.05	(*)		CXL-D	
176	Hexythia						
	FS 247		1			CXL-D	
		Cucumber	0.1			CXL-D	
	VO 448		0.1			CXL-D	
	FS 13	Cherries	1			CXL-D	
	VP 526		0.5			CXL-D	
		immature seeds)					
		Grapes	1			CXL-D	
	FB 279	Currant, Red, White	0.2			CXL-D	
	FC 1	Citrus fruits	0.5			CXL-D	
	FP 226	Apple	0.5			CXL-D	
	FP 230	Pear	0.5			CXL-D	
	FS 14	Plums (including prunes)	0.2			CXL-D	
216	Indoxaca						
	VC 46	Melons, except watermelon	0.1			CXL-D	
	ML 106		0.1			CXL-D	
		Meat (from mammals other that marine mammals)			(fat)	CXL-D	
	PE 112	Eggs	0.01	(*)		CXL-D	
		Cucumber	0.2			CXL-D	
		Edible offal (mammalian)	0.05			CXL-D	
		Poultry meat		(*)	(fat)	CXL-D	
	FS 247	Peach	0.3			CXL-D	
		Milk fats	2			CXL-D	
		Poultry, Edible offal of	0.01	(*)		CXL-D	
209	Methoxy						
	ML 106		0.01			CXL-D	
	MM 95	Meat (from mammals other tha	n 0.05		(fat)	CXL-D	
		marine mammals)				a	
		Edible offal (mammalian)	0.02			CXL-D	
	FB 265	Cranberry	0.7			CXL-D	

	Commod	<u>lity</u>	MRL (mg/kg)	<u>Step</u>	Note
57	Paraqua	t			
	GC 649	Rice	10	CXL-D	
142	Prochlor	az			
	VO 450	Mushrooms	2	CXL-D	
232	Prothioc	onazole			
	GC 640	Barley	0.05	CXL-D	
	AS 640	Barley straw and fodder, Dry	2	CXL-D	
	AS 654	Wheat straw and fodder, Dry	2	CXL-D	
	AS 653	Triticale straw and fodder, Dry	2	CXL-D	
	AS 650	Rye straw and fodder, Dry	2	CXL-D	
	AS 647	Oat straw and fodder, Dry	2	CXL-D	
	MO 105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.2	CXL-D	
	MF 100	Mammalian fats (except milk fat	ts) 0.01	CXL-D	
	ML 106	Milks	0.004 (*)	CXL-D	
	GC 654	Wheat	0.05	CXL-D	
	SO 495	Rape seed	0.05	CXL-D	
133	Triadim	efon			
	FB 269	Grapes	0.5	CXL-D	
168	Triadim	enol			
	FB 269	Grapes	2	CXL-D	
227	Zoxamid	le			
	VC 424	Cucumber	1	CXL-D	

APPENDIX VI

PROPOSED DRAFT AND DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (Retained at Step 7)

110	Cynorm	dity MR ethrins (including alpha- and zeta	L (mg/kg)	Source	Step.	Note
118					7	
204	Esfenva	Asparagus	0.01 (*)		/	
204	GC 654		0.05		7	
		Tomato	0.03		7	
		Cotton seed	0.1		7	
193	Fenpyro		0.03		/	
193	FB 269		1		7	
212	Metalax	÷	1		/	
212		Lettuce, Head	0.5		7	
	VR 589		0.02 (*)		7	
		Tomato	0.02 (*)		7	
		Peppers, Sweet (including pimento	0.2		7	
	VO 443	or pimiento)	0.3		/	
	VL 502	Spinach	0.1		7	
	VA 385	Onion, Bulb	0.03		7	
	SO 702	Sunflower seed	0.02 (*)		7	
	SB 715	Cacao beans	0.02		7	
	FP 226	Apple	0.02 (*)		7	
	FB 269	Grapes	1		7	
126	Oxamyl					
	VC 424	Cucumber	1		7	
	VO 51	Peppers	5		7	
	FC 1	Citrus fruits	3		7	
	VC 46	Melons, except watermelon	1		7	
112	Phorate					
	VR 589	Potato	0.5		7	
189	Tebucor	nazole				
	VC 432	Watermelon	0.1		7	
	GC 640	Barley	2		7	
	VC 46	Melons, except watermelon	0.2		7	
	VO 448	Tomato	0.5		7	
	VO 447	Sweet corn (corn-on-the-cob)	0.1		7	
	VD 541	Soya bean (dry)	0.1		7	
	GC 649	Rice	2		7	
	DF 14	Prunes	0.5		7	
	FP 9	Pome fruits	1		7	
	FS 14	Plums (including prunes)	0.2		7	excluding prunes
	SO 697	Peanut	0.1		7	
	VS 620	Artichoke, Globe	0.5		7	
		Onion, Bulb	0.1		7	
		Barley straw and fodder, Dry	30		7	
	FI 345	Mango	0.1		7	
	GC 645	_	0.1		7	
		Lettuce, Head	5		7	
	VA 384		1		7	
	VA 381	Garlic	0.1		7	

<u>Commodity</u>	MRL (mg/kg)	Source Step Note
FB 267 Elderberry	2	7
MO 105 Edible offal (mammalian)	0.5	7
VP 526 Common bean (pods and/or	2	7
immature seeds)		
VR 577 Carrot	0.5	7
VB 40 Brassica (Cole or Cabbage)	1	7
Vegetables, Head Cabbage,		
Flowerhead Brassicas		
FI 350 Papaya	2	7

APPENDIX VII

PROPOSED DRAFT AND DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (Returned to Step 6)

	<u>Commodity</u>	MRL (mg/kg)	Source	<u>Step</u>	<u>Note</u>
90	Chlorpyrifos-Methyl				
	GC 640 Barley	10 Po		6	
143	Triazophos				
	VP 541 Soya bean (immature seeds)	1		6	With the pod.
157	Cyfluthrin/beta-cyfluthrin				
	VB 41 Cabbages, Head	4		6	

APPENDIX VIII

DRAFTS CODEX MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES WITHDRAWN

	Commodi	<u>ty</u>	MRL (mg/kg)	<u>Step</u>	Note
221	Boscalid					
	FI 341	Kiwi fruit	5		MRL-W	
8	Carbar	yl				
	FS 13	Cherries	20		MRL-W	
90	Chlorpyr	ifos-Methyl				
	GC 645	Maize	3	Po	MRL-W	
157	Cyfluthri	n/beta-cyfluthrin				
	VB 400	Broccoli	2		MRL-W	
	VB 400	Broccoli	2		MRL-W	
194	Haloxyfo	р				
	OC 495	Rape seed oil, Crude	5		MRL-W	
		Rice, Husked	0.02 (*	')	MRL-W	
		Rice bran, Unprocessed	0.02 (*	*	MRL-W	
		Rice, Polished	0.02 (-	MRL-W	
	OR 541	Soya bean oil, Refined	0.02	,	MRL-W	
	OR 495	Rapeseed oil, Edible	5		MRL-W	
	OC 541	Soya bean oil, Crude	0.2		MRL-W	
	SO 495	Rape seed	2		MRL-W	
		Cattle liver	0.5			
					MRL-W	
		Cattle kidney	1		MRL-W	
		Cattle meat	0.05		MRL-W	
		Cattle milk	0.3		MRL-W	
	OC 691	Cotton seed oil, Crude	0.5		MRL-W	
	PE 840	Chicken eggs	0.01 (*	')	MRL-W	
		Fodder beet	0.3		MRL-W	
	PO 840	Chicken, Edible offal of	0.05		MRL-W	
	SO 691	Cotton seed	0.2		MRL-W	
	SO 697	Peanut	0.05		MRL-W	
	SO 702	Sunflower seed	0.2		MRL-W	
	VD 70	Pulses	0.2		MRL-W	
	VP 63	Peas (pods and	0.2		MRL-W	
		succulent=immature seeds)				
	VR 589	Potato	0.1		MRL-W	
	VR 596	Sugar beet	0.3		MRL-W	
		Chicken meat	0.01 (*	·)	MRL-W	
209	Methoxyf			,		
	VL 502		50		MRL-W	
142	Prochlora	•			,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	
		Mushrooms	40		MRL-W	
133	Triadime		10		WINE W	
133		Grapes	5		MRL-W	Based on triadimefon and
		_				triadimenol uses.
168	Triadime					
	FB 269	Grapes	5		MRL-W	Based on triadimefon and triadimenol uses.

APPENDIX IX

DRAFT REVISION OF THE CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS - PROPOSAL FOR EIGHT COMMODITY GROUPS:

Bulb Vegetables; Fruiting Vegetables, other than Cucurbits; Berries and other Small Fruits; Edible Fungi; Citrus Fruits; Pome Fruits; Stone Fruits; and Oilseeds

(Retained at Step 7)

Bulb vegetables

Class A

Type 2 Vegetables Group 009 Group Letter Code VA

<u>Bulb vegetables</u> are pungent highly flavoured foods derived from fleshy scale bulbs (in some commodities including stem and leaves), of the genera Allium of the familia Alliaceae and Lilium of the family Liliaceae.

The subterranean parts of the bulbs and shoots are protected from direct exposure to pesticides during the growing season.

The entire bulb may be consumed after removal of the parchment-like skin. The leaves and stems of some species or cultivars may also be consumed.

<u>Bulb onions</u> are bulb vegetables with mature bulbs. The entire bulb may be consumed after removal of the parchment-like skin.

<u>Green onions</u> are bulb vegetables with immature bulbs. Immature bulbs may be consumed and also leaves and stems of some species of cultivars may also be consumed.

Group 009A Bulb onions: Mature bulbs (dry)

Group 009B Green onions: immature bulbs including leaves stems and flowers

Portion of the commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analysed): Bulb onions: Whole commodity after removal of roots and adhering soil and whatever parchment skin is easily detached. Green onions: Whole vegetable after removal of roots and adhering soil.

Group 009 Bulb vegetables

Code No.	Commodity
VA 0035	Bulb vegetables

(includes all commodities in this group)

Group 009A, Bulb onions

Code No.	<u>Commodity</u>
VA 2031	Bulb Onions
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
VA 2600	Daylily
	Hemerocallis fulva (L.) L.; H minor Mill; H. citrina Baroni; H. lilioasphodelus L.
VA 2601	Fritillaria (bulb)
	Fritillaria camchatcensis (L.) Ker. Gawl.
VA 0381	Garlic
	Allium sativum L.
VA 0382	Garlic, Great-headed
	Allium ampeloprasum L., var. ampeloprasum
VA 2602	Garlic, Serpent

Allium sativum var. ophioscorodon (Link) Döll

VA 2603	Lily
	Lilium spp.
VA 0385	Onion, Bulb
	Allium cepa L. var. cepa, various cultivars
VA 0386	Onion, Chinese
	Allium chinense G. Don.;
	syn: A. bakeri Regel
-	Rakkyo, see Onion, Chinese, VA 0386
VA 0388	Shallot
	A. cepa L., var. aggregatum Don.
VA 0390	Silverskin onion
	Allium cepa L.

Group 009B, Green onions

Group 003B, Gr	een omons
Code No.	Commodity
VA 2032	Green Onions
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
VA 2605	Chives
	Allium schoenoprasum L.
VA 2606	Chives, Chinese
	Allium tuberosum Rottler ex Spreng.
VA 2607	Elegans hosta
	Hosta sieboldiana (Hook.) Engl.
VA 2608	Fritillaria (green)
	Fritillaria camchatcensis (L.) Ker. Gawl.
VA 2609	Garlic chives
	Allium sativum L. var. sativum
-	Japanese bunching onion, see Onion, Welsh, VA 0387
VA 0383	Kurrat
	Allium kurrat Schweinf. Ex K. Krause
VA 2610	Lady's leek
	Allium cernuum Roth
VA 0384	Leek
	Allium porrum L.;
	syn: A. ampeloprasum L., var. porrum (L.) Gay
-	Multiplying onion, see Onion, Welsh, VA 0387
VA 2611	Onion, Beltsville bunching
	Allium x proliferum (Moench) Schrad.
	syn: Allium cepa L. x A. fistulosum L.)
-	Onion, Egyptian, see Tree onion, VA 0391
VA 2612	Onion, fresh
	Allium fistulosum L. var. caespitosum Makino
-	Onion, green, see Spring onion, VA 0389
VA 2613	Onion, macrostem
	Allium macrostemom Bunge
VA 2614	Onion, pearl

	Allium porrum L. var. sectivum Lueder
VA 2615	Onion, potato
	Allium cepa var. aggregatum G. Don.
VA 0387	Onion, Welsh
	Allium fistulosum L.
VA 0389	Spring onion
	Allium cepa L., various cultivars, a.o. White Lisbon; White Portugal
VA 0391	Tree onion
	Allium x proliferum (Moench) Schrad. ex Willd.; Allium x wakegii Araki
	syn: A. cepa var. proliferum (Moench) Regel
	syn: A. cepa L. var. bulbiferum L.H. Bailey
	syn: A. cepa L. var. viviparum (Metz.) Alef.
VA 2616	Wild leek
	Allium tricoccum Aiton

Fruiting vegetables, other than Cucurbits

Class A

Type 2 Vegetables Group 012 Group Letter Code VO

Group 012 Fruiting vegetables, other than Cucurbits are derived from the immature and mature fruits of various plants, usually annual vines or bushes. Many plants of this group belong to the botanical family Solanaceae.

This group does not include fruits of vegetables of the botanical family Cucurbitaceae or the pods of vegetables of the Leguminosae family.

The vegetables of this group are fully exposed to pesticides applied during the period of fruit development, except those of which the edible portion is covered by husks, such as ground cherries (Physalis spp.). The latter fruiting vegetables are protected from most pesticides by the husk except from pesticides with a systemic action.

The entire fruiting vegetable or the edible portion after discarding husks or peels may be consumed in a fresh form or after processing.

Three subgroups are defined:

Group 012 A Tomatoes

Group 012 B Pepper and pepper-like commodities

Group 012 C Egg plant and egg plant-like commodities

<u>Portion of the commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analysed):</u> Whole commodity after removal of stems.

Group 012 Fruiting vegetables, other than Cucurbits

Coae No.	Commodity
VO 0050	Fruiting vegetables, other than Cucurbits
	(includes all commodities in this group)

Group 12A	iomatoes
Code No.	Commodity
VO 2045	Tomatoes
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
-	Alkekengi, see Ground cherries, VO 0441
	Physalis alkekengi L.
VO 0451	Bush tomato
	Solanum centrale Black

Cape gooseberry, (Codex Stand. 226 – 2001), see Ground cherries, VO 0441 Physalis peruviana L. VO 2700 Cherry tomato Lycopersicon esculentum var. cerasiforme (Dunal) A. Gray Chinese lantern plant, see Ground cherries, VO 0441 VO 2701 Cocona Solanum sessiliflorum Dunal. VO 2702 **Currant tomato** Lycopersicon pimpinellifolium (L.) Mill. VO 2703 Garden huckleberry Solanum scabrum Mill. VO 2704 Goji berry Lycium barbarum L. Golden berry, see Ground cherries, VO 0441 Physalis peruviana L. VO 0441 **Ground cherries** Physalis alkekengi L.; Ph. ixocarpa Brot. ex Horn.; Ph. peruviana L. Husk tomato, see Ground cherries, VO 0441 Naranjilla, see Group 006 Assorted tropical and sub-tropical fruits - inedible peel, FI 0349 Solanum quitoense Lam. Quito Orange, see Naranjilla, FI 0349 VO 2705 Strawberry tomato, see Ground cherries, VO 0441 VO 2706 **Sunberry** Solanum retroflexum Dunal. **Tomatillo** VO 2707 Physalis philadelphica Lam. Syn. Physalis ixocarpa auct. VO 0448 **Tomato** Lycopersicon esculentum Mill.; syn: Solanum lycopersicum L. **Tree tomato**, see Group 06 Assorted tropical and sub-tropical fruits – inedible peel, FT 0312 Pepper and pepper-like commodities **Group 12B** VO 0051 **Peppers** (includes all commodities in this subgroup) Bird chili peppers, see Peppers, Chili Capsicum Frutescens L. Cherry pepper, see Peppers, Chili, VO 0444 Capsicum annuum L., var. acumimata Fingerh. Chili peppers, see Peppers, Chili, VO 0444 Cluster pepper, see Peppers, Chili, VO 0444 Capsicum annuum L., var. fasciculatum (Sturt.) Irish Cone pepper, see Peppers, Chili, VO 0444 Lady's finger, see Okra, VO 0442 VO 2709 Martynia

D l	1	(A 1:11)	Tl11
Proboscidea	iouisianica ((IVIIII.)	men.

VO 0442	Okra
---------	------

Abelmoschus esculentus (L.) Moench.

- **Paprika**, see Peppers, Sweet, VO 0445

- **Pimento or Pimiento**, see Peppers, Sweet, VO 0445

Peppers, bell, see Peppers, Sweet, VO 0445

VO 0444 Peppers, Chili

Capsicum annuum L.; several pungent cultivars

Peppers, Long, see Peppers, Sweet, VO 0445

Capsicum annuum L., var. longum (D. C.) Sendt.

VO 0445 **Peppers, Sweet** (including pimento or pimiento)

Capsicum annuum, var. grossum (L.) Sendt. and var. longum (D. C.)

Sendt.

Peppers, Sweet Piquante

Capsicum battacum var. Piquanté

VO 0446 Roselle

Hibiscus sabdariffa L., var. sabdariffa L.

Group 12C Egg plant and egg plant-like commodities

VO 2046 Egg plants

(includes all commodities in this subgroup)

VO 2711 African Eggplant

Solanum macrocarpon L.

Aubergine, see Egg plant, VO 0440

VO 0440 **Egg plant**, various cultivars

Solanum melongena L.

- **Melon pear**, see Pepino, VO 0443

VO 2712 Pea Eggplant

Solanum torvum Swartz

VO 0443 Pepino

Solanum muricatum L.

VO 2713 Scarlet Eggplant

Solanum aethiopicum L.

VO 2714 Thai eggplant

Solanum undatum Jacq. Non Lam.

VO 0443 **Tree melon**, see Pepino

Berries and other small fruits

Class A

Type 1 Fruits Group 004 Group Letter Code FB

Berries and other small fruits are derived from a variety of perennial plants and shrubs having fruit characterized by a high surface: weight ratio. The fruits are fully exposed to pesticides applied during the growing season (blossoming until harvest).

The entire fruit, often including seed, may be consumed in a succulent or processed form.

Five subgroups are defined:

Group 004 A <u>Caneberries</u>: includes berries originating from canes that are erect or trailing, mainly Rubus species

Group 004 B <u>Bushberries</u>: includes berries originating from woody shrubs

Group 004 C Large shrub/tree berries: includes berries originaing from large shrubs or trees

Group 004 D Small fruit vine climbing: includes berries originating from climbing vines

Group 004 E <u>Low growing berries</u>: includes berries originating from low growing berries that are short shrubs or herbaceous plants

<u>Portion of commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analysed):</u> Whole commodity after removal of caps and stems. Currants, Black, Red, White: fruit with stem.

Group 004 Berries and other small fruits

Code No. Commodity

FB 0018 Berries and other small fruits

(includes all commodities in this group)

Subarran 004A	Come housing
0 1	Cane berries
Code No.	<u>Commodity</u>
FB 2005	Cane berries
	Rubus species (includes all commodities in this subgroup)
FB 0264	Blackberries
	Rubus fruticosus auct. aggr., several ssp.
-	Boysenberry, see Dewberries, FB 0266
	Hybrid of Rubus spp.
FB 0266	Dewberries (including Boysenberry and Loganberry)
	Rubus ceasius L.; several Rubus ssp. and hybrids
-	Korean Black Raspberry, see Raspberries, Red, Black FB 0272
	Rubus coreanus Miquel.
-	Korean Raspberry, see Raspberries, Red, Black FB 0272
	Rubus crataegifolius Bunge
-	Loganberry, see Dewberries, FB 0266
	Rubus loganobaccus L.H. Bailey, hybrid of Rubus spp.
-	Olallie berry, see Dewberries, FB 0266
FB 0272	Raspberries, Red, Black
	Rubus idaeus L.; Rubus occidentalis L.; several Rubus spp. and hybrids, including wild rasp berries Rubus molluccanus L.
-	Youngberry, see Dewberries, FB 0266
	Rubus ursinus ev. Young

Subgroup 004B	Bush berries
Code No.	<u>Commodity</u>
FB 2006	Bush berries
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
FB 0019	Vaccinium berries, including Bearberry, except Cranberry
	Vaccinium spp.; Arctostaphylos uva-ursi (L.) Spreng.
FB 0020	Blueberries
	Vaccinium corymbosum L.; Vaccinium angustifolium Ait.;
	Vaccinium virgatum Aiton; Gaylussacia spp.
FB 2240	Aronia berries

FB 2248

Salal

Aronia spp. FB 0260 **Bearberry** Arctostaphylos uva-ursi (L.) Spreng. FB 0261 **Bilberry** Vaccinium myrtillus L. FB 0262 Bilberry, Bog Vaccinium uliginosum L. FB 0263 Bilberry, Red Vaccinium vitis-idaea L. Blueberry, Highbush, see Blueberries, FB 0020 Vaccinium corymbosum L. Blueberry, Lowbush, see Blueberries, FB 0020 Vaccinium angustifolium Ait. Blueberry, Rabbiteye, see Blueberries, FB 0020 Vaccinium virgatum Aiton FB 2241 **Buffalo currant** Ribes aureum var. villosum DC. (Syn: Ribes odoratum H.Wendl) FB 2242 Chilean guava Ugni molinae Turcz. (syn: Myrtus ugni Mol.) Cowberry, see Bilberry, Red, FB 0263 FB 0021 Currants, Black, Red, White Ribes nigrum L.; R. rubrum L. FB 0278 Currant, Black, see also Currants, Black, Red, White Ribes nigrum L. FB 0279 Currant, Red, White, see also Currants, Black, Red, White Ribes rubrum L. FB 0268 Gooseberry Ribes uva-crispa L. (syn: R. grossularia L.) FB 2243 **European barberry** Berberis vulgaris L. **European Blueberry**, see bilberry FB 0261 FB 2244 Huckleberries 1. Blueberries, see above FB 0020 2. Gaylussacia spp., see Blueberries FB 0020 Red Huckleberry (Vaccinium parvifolium L.) FB 2245 **Jostaberries** Ribes x nidigrolaria Rud. Bauer & A. Bauer FB 0270 **Juneberries** Amelanchier spp. FB 2246 **Native currant** Acrotriche depressa R. Br. FB 2247 Riberries Syzygium leuhmannii FB 0273 Rose hips Rosa L., several spp.

Gaultheria shallon Pursh

FB 2249 Sea buckthorn

Hippophea rhamnoides L.

Whortleberry, Red, see Bilberry, Red, FB 0263

Subgroup 004C Large shrub/tree berries

Code No. Commodity

FB 2007 Large shrub/tree berries

(includes all commodities in this subgroup)

FB 2250 **Bayberries**

Morella spp.

FB 2251 **Buffaloberry**

Shepherdia argentea (Pursh) Nutt.

FB 2252 Che

Maclura tricuspidata Carrièra

FB 0267 Elderberries

Sambucus spp.

FB 2253 Guelder rose

Viburnum opulus L.

FB 0271 Mulberries

Morus alba L.; Morus nigra L.; Morus rubra L.

FB 2254 Phalsa

Grewia asiatica L.

Rowan, see Service berries, FB 0274

Sorbus aucuparia L.

FB 0274 Service berries

1. see Juneberries

2. Sorbus torminalis (L.) Crantz; Sorbus domestica L. S. aucuparia L.

FB 2255 Silverberry, Russian

Elaeagnus augustifolia L.

Subgroup 004D Small fruit vine climbing

Code No. Commodity

FB 2008 Small fruit vine climbing

(includes all commodities in this subgroup)

FB 2256 Arguta kiwifruit

Actinidia arguta (Siebold & Zucc.) Planch. ex. Miq.

FB 2257 Amur river grape

Vitus amurensis Rupr.

FB 0269 Grapes

Vitis vinifera L., several cultivars

FB 2258 Schisandraberry

Schisandra chinensis (Turcz.) Baill.

FB 1235 **Table-grapes**

Special cultivars of Vitis vinifera L., suitable for direct human consumption

-	Tara vine , see Arguta kiwifruit, FB 2255
---	--

FB 1236 Wine-grapes

Special cultivars of *Vitis vinifera* L., suitable for preparing juice and fermenting into wine

Subgroup 004E Low growing berries

Code No.	Commodity
FB 2009	Low growing berries

(includes all commodities in this subgroup)

-	Bakeapple, see Cloudberry, FB 0277
FB 0265	Cranberry
	Vaccinium macrocarpon Aiton
FB 0277	Cloudberry
	Rubus chamaemorus L.
FB 2259	Muntries
	Kunzea pomifera F. Muell.
FB 2260	Partridge berry

Mitchella repens L.

- **Squaw vine**, see Partridge berry, FB 2259 FB 0275 **Strawberry**

Fragaria x ananassa Duchene ex Rozier

FB 0276 Strawberries, Wild

Fragaria vesca L.; Fragaria moschata Duchene **Strawberry , Musky**, see Strawberries wild, FB 0276

Fragaria moschata Duchene

Edible fungi

Class A

Type 1 Vegetables Group 18 Group Letter Code VF

Edible Fungi are derived from lower plants. The fruiting bodies could be fully exposed to pesticides during the growing season.

The entire fruiting body may be consumed in a succulent or processed form.

<u>Portion of commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analysed):</u> Whole commodity after removal of soil and growing medium

Group 18	Edible Fungi
Code No.	<u>Commodity</u>
VF 2084	Edible fungi
	Various edible species of fungi, wild and cultivated.
VF 0449	Fungi, Edible, except Mushrooms
	According to Codex Stand. 38-1981: various edible species of fungi, mainly wild, among others <i>Boletus edulis</i> ; other <i>Boletus</i> spp, <i>Morchella</i> spp, <i>Pleurotus ostreatus</i>
VF 0450	Mushrooms
	Cultivated cultivars of <i>Agaricus spp</i> . (included Royal sun agaricus = Hime-Matsutake (<i>Agaricus brasiliensis</i>), Rodman's agaricus, White button mushroom)

TIET TORINI	Tuge ov
	syn: Psalliota spp., mainly <i>Agaricus bisporus</i> (definition Codex Stand. 55-
	1981) Recorded teach and Romann VE 2065
-	Bearded tooth, see Pom pom, VF 3065
- VE 2050	Beech mushroom , see Bunashimeji, VF 3052
VF 3050	Black poplar mushroom
VIE 2051	Agrocybe aegerita (V. Brig.) Singer
VF 3051	Blewitt
VIII 2052	Lepista nuda (Bull.) Cooke
VF 3052	Bunashimeji
VIII 0050	Hypsizygus marmoreus (Peck) H.E. Bigelow, H. tessulatus (Bull.) Singer
VF 3053	Cauliflower mushroom
	Sparassis crispa (Wulfen) Fr.
VF 3054	Сер
	Boletus edulis Bull. and other Boletus spp.
VF 3055	Chanterelle
	Cantharellus cibarius Fr. (Codex Stand. 40-1981)
VF 3056	Enoke
	Flammulina velutipes (curtis) Singer
-	Enoki mushroom, see Enoke, VF 3056
-	Hen-of-the-Woods mushroom, see Maitake, VF 3059
VF 3057	Hirmeola
	Auricularia auricular-judea (Fr.) J. Schröt (Syn. Auricularia auricular (Hook.f.)Underw.)
VF 3058	Ink mushroom
	Coprinus comatus (O.F. Müll.) Persoon
-	Jews ear mushroom, see Hirmeola, VF 3057
-	Lion's mane mushroom, see Pom pom, VF 3065
VF 3059	Maitake
	Grifola frondosa (Dicks) Gray
VF 3060	Morel
	Morchella spp.
VF 3061	Nameko
	Pholiota nameko (T. Ito) S. Ito & S. Imai and other Pholiota spp.
VF 3062	Net bearing Dictyophora
	Phallus impudicus L.
_	Oakwood mushroom, see Shiitake mushroom, VF 3067
VF 3063	Oyster mushroom
	Pleurotus ostreatus (Jacq.) P. Kumm and other Pleurotus spp., including grey- oyster mushroom, abalone mushroom
_	Paddy straw mushroom, see Straw mushroom, VF 3059
VF 3064	Pine mushroom
	Tricholoma matsutake (S. Ito & Imai) Singer
VF 3065	Pom pom
	Hericum erinaceus (Bull.) Pers.
VF 3066	Reishi mushroom
. 1 2000	Ganoderma lucidum (Curtis) P. Karst. and other Ganoderma spp.
VF 3067	Shiitake mushroom
11 3001	Simulate musin com

Lentinula edodes	(Berk.)) Pegler
------------------	---------	----------

VF 3068 Shimeji

Lyophyllum fumosum (Pers.) P.D. Orton (syn: Tricholoma conglobatum(Vitt.) Ricken)

and other Lyophyllum spp.

- Slimy mushroom, see Nameko, VF 3061

VF 3069 Straw mushroom

Volvariella volvacea (Bull.) Singer

VF 3070 Stropharia

Stropharia spp.

Stropharia rugosoannulata Farl. ex Murrill

VF 3071 Truffle

Tuber spp.

VF 3072 Wangsongi

Macrocybe gigantea (Massee) Pegler & Lodge

(syn: Tricholoma giganteum Massee)

- **Winter mushroom**, see Enoke, VF 3056

VF 3073 White jelly mushroom

Tremella fuciformis Berk.

VF 3074 Wood ears mushroom,

Auricularia polytricha (Mont.)Sacc.

Citrus fruits

Class A

Type 1 Fruits Group 001 Group Letter Code FC

Citrus fruits are produced on trees or shrubs of the family Rutaceae. Aromatic oily peel, globular form and interior segments of juice-filled vesicles characterize these fruits. The fruit is fully exposed to pesticides during the growing season. Post-harvest treatments with pesticides and liquid waxes are often carried out to avoid deterioration during transport and distribution due to fungal diseases, insect pests or loss of moisture.

The fruit pulp may be consumed in succulent form and as juice. The entire fruit may be used for preserves.

Group 001A Lemons and Limes: Hybrids and related species similar to lemons and limes

Group 001B Mandarins: Hybrids and related species similar to mandarins

Group 001C Oranges, Sweet, Sour: Hybrids and related species similar to oranges

Group 001D Pummelos: Hybrids and related species

Portion of the commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analyzed): Whole commodity.

Group 001 Citrus fruits

Code No. Commodity
FC 0001 Citrus Fruit

(includes all commodities in this group)

Subgroup 001A Lemons and Limes

Code No. Commodity

FC 0002 Lemons and Limes (including Citron)

- Citrus limon Burm.f.;
- Citrus aurantiifolia Swingle;

	- Citrus medica L.;
	Hybrids and related species similar to lemons and limes including Citrus jambhiri
	Lush Citrus limetta Risso; Citrus limettoides Tan.; Citrus limonia Osbeck.
	Synonyms: see specific fruit species
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
FC 2201	Australian blood lime, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Microcitrus australasica (F. Muell.) Swingle
	synonyms: Citrus australasica F. Muell.
FC 2202	Australian desert lime, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Eremocitrus glauca (Linl.) Swingle
	synonyms: Citrus glauca (Lindl) Burkill
FC 2203	Australian round lime, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Microcitrus australis (A. Cunn. ex Mudie) Swingle
	synonyms: Citrus australis (A. Cunn. ex Mudie) Planch.
FC 2204	Brown River finger-lime, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Microcitrus papuana Winters
	Citrus wintersii Mabb.
FC 0202	Citron, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Citrus medica L.;
	syn: Citrus cedra Link; Citrus cedratus Raf.;
	Citrus medica genuina Engl.; Citrus medica proper Bonavia
FC 0204	Lemon , see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Citrus limon Burm. f.;
	syn: Citrus medica limon L.; Citrus limonum Risso; Citrus medica limonum Hook. F.; Citrus jambhiri Lush.
FC 0205	Lime , see Codex stan. 217-1999, Amd. 1-2005, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Citrus aurantiifolia Swingle;
	syn: Limonia aurantiifolia Christm.; L. acidissima Houtt. Citrus lima Lunan.; Citrus acida Roxb.; Citrus limonellus Hassk.
FC 2205	Lime, Sweet, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Citrus limetta Risso
	syn: Citrus limettioides Tan., Citrus lumia Risso)
FC 2206	Kaffir lime
	Citrus histrix DC.
-	Mexican Lime, see Codex stan. 217-1999, see Lime, FC 0205
	Citrus aurantifolia Swingle see, Amd. 1-2005
FC 2207	Mount White-lime, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Microcitrus garrowayae (F. M. Bailey) Swingle
FC 2208	New Guinea wild lime, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Microcitrus warburgiana (F. M. Bailey) Tanaka
FC 2209	Russell River-lime, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Microcitrus inodora (F. M. Bailey) Swingle
	syn: Citrus inodora (F. M. Bailey)
FC 2210	Tahiti Lime , see Codex stan. 213-1999, Amd. 3-2005,
	see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	Citrus latifolia Tan.
FC 2211	Yuzu, see also Lemons and Limes, FC 0002
	·

Citrus junos Siebold ex Tanaka

Subgroup 001	1B Mandarins
Code No.	Commodity
FC 0003	Mandarins (including Mandarin-like hybrids)
1 0 0003	- Citrus reticulata Blanco:
	Hybrids and related species including <i>Citrus nobilis</i> Lour.:
	Citrus deliciosa Ten.; Citrus tangarina Hort.; Citrus mitis Blanco
	syn: Citrus madurensis Lour.; Citrus unshiu Marcow;
	synonyms: see specific fruit species Mandarin
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
FC 0201	Calamondin, see also Mandarins, FC 0003
10 0201	Citrus mitis Blanco;
	syn: Citrus madurensis Lour. (hybrid of Citrus reticulata Blanco.
	var. austera Swing x Fortunella sp.)
_	Clementine, see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus clementina Hort. Ex Tanaka cultivar of Citrus reticulata Blanco (possibly natural hybrid of Manderin x Orange, Sweet)
-	Cleopatra mandarin, see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus reshni Hort. Ex Tan.
-	Dancy or Dancy mandarin, see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus tangerina Hort.
-	King mandarin, see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus nobilis Lour. (= hybrid of Mandarin x Orange, Sweet)
FC 0206	Mandarin, see also see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus reticulata Blanco;
	syn: Citrus nobilis Andrews (non Lour.); Citrus poonensis Hort. Ex Tanaka; Citrus chrysocarpa Lush.
-	Mediterranean mandarin, see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus deliciosa Ten (= hybrid of Mandarin x Orange, Sweet)
-	Satsuma or Satsuma mandarin, see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus unshiu Marcow.
-	Tangelo, small and medium sized cultivars, see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Hybrids of Mandarin x Grapefruit or Mandarin x Shaddock
-	Tangerine , see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus reticulata Blanco;
	Syn: Citrus tangarina Hort. Ex Tan. Citrus ponnensis Hort., Citrus Chyrosocarpa Lush., Citrus Reshni Hort.
-	Tangors , see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus nobilis Lour. (= Hybrid of Mandarin x Orange, sweet);
-	Tankan mandarin, see Mandarins, FC 0003
	Citrus reticulate Blanco tankan Hyata (= probably hybrid of Mandarin x Orange, Sweet)
EC 2212	Unchy avenge see also Mandaring EC 0002

FC 2212 **Unshu orange,** see also Mandarins, FC 0003

Citrus reticulata Blanco ssp. unshiu (Marcow.) D.Rivera Núñez et al.

- Willowleaf mandarin, see Mandarins, FC 0003

Citrus deliciosa Ten. (= hybrid of Mandarin and Orange, sweet)

Subgroup 001C Oranges, Sweet, Sour

Commodity Code No. FC 0004 **Oranges**, **Sweet**, **Sour** (including Orange-like hybrids) several cultivars: - Citrus sinensis Osbeck: - Citrus aurantium L.; Hybrids and related species: Citrus myrtifolia Raf.; Citrus salicifolia Raf.; synonyms: see specific fruit species (includes all commodities in this subgroup) Bergamot, see Oranges, Sweet, Sour, FC 0004 Citrus aurantium ssp bergamia Bigarade, see Orange, Sour FC 0207 Citrus aurantium L. **Blood orange**, see Orange, Sweet, FC 0208 Cultivar of Citrus sinensis Osbeck Chinotto, see Orange, Sour, FC 0207 Citrus aurantium L., var. myrtifolia Ker-Gawler; syn: Citrus myrtifolia Raf. Chironja (orangelo), see Oranges, Sweet, Sour, FC 0004 Citrus sinensis x Citrus paradise (= Hybrid of Orange, Sweet x Mandarin) Ichang Bitter Orange, see Orange, Sweet, FC 0208 Citrus ichangensis Swingle Malta orange, see Blood Orange Myrtle-leaf orange, see Chinotto Orange, Bitter, (=bigarade) see Orange, Sour FC 0207 FC 0207 **Orange, Sour**, see also see Oranges, Sweet, Sour, FC 0004 Citrus aurantium L.; syn: Citrus vulgaris Risso; Citrus bigarradia Loisel; Citrus communis Le Maout & Dec. FC 0208 **Orange, Sweet**, See Codex stan. 245-2004 Amd 1-2005, see also see Oranges, Sweet, Sour, FC 0004 Citrus sinensis Osbeck: syn: Citrus aurantium sinensis L.; Citrus dulcis Pers.; Citrus aurantium vulgare Risso & Poit.; Citrus aurantium dulce Hayne Seville Orange, see Orange, Sour, FC 0207 Tachibana orange see Oranges, Sweet, Sour, FC 0004 Citrus tachibana (Makino) Tanaka Syn: Citrus aurantium L. var. tachibana Makino; Citrus depressa FC 2213 Trifoliate orange see also Oranges, Sweet, Sour, FC 0004

Subgroup 001D Pummelos

C 1 N	C 124
Code No.	Commodity

FC 0005 **Pummelo and Grapefruits** (including Shaddock-like hybrids, among others Grapefruit)

Citrus maxima (Burm.) Merr.

Poncirus trifoliate (L.) Raf.

Syn: Citrus Grandis L. Osbeck; Citrus paradisi Macf.; Citrus decumana L.

Hybrids and related species, similar to Shaddocks, including *Citrus natsudaidai* Hayata; Tangelos large sized (= hybrid, Grapefruit x Mandarin); Tangelolos: (hybrid, Grapefruit x

Tangelo): synonyms: see specific fruit species

(includes all commodities in this subgroup)

FC 0203 **Grapefruit**, see Codex stan. 219-1999 Amd 2-2005, see also Pummelo and Grapefruits, FC 0005

Hybrid of Shaddock x Orange, Sweet

Citrus paradisi Macf.;

syn: Citrus maxima uvacarpa Merr. & Lee.

Natsudaidai, see Pummelo and Grapefruits, FC 0005

Citrus natsudaidai Hayata (possibly natural hybrid of Mandarin x Shaddock)

Pomelo, see Pummelo and Grapefruits, FC 0005

FC 0209 **Pummelo**, see Codex stan. 214-1999, Amd 2-2005, see Pummelo and Grapefruits, FC 0005

Citrus maxima (Burm.) Merr.

syn: Citrus grandis L. Osbeck; Citrus aurantium decumana L.; Citrus decumana Murr.

- Shaddock, see also Pummelo and Grapefruits, FC 0005

Citrus maxima (Burm.) Merr.;

- Tangelo, large-sized cultivars, see Pummelo and Grapefruits, FC 0005

- Citrus x tangelo J.W. Ingram & H.E. Moore;

- **Tangelolo**, see Pummelo and Grapefruits, FC 0005

Hybrids of Grapefruit x Tangelo

Ugli/Uniq fruit (=tangelo), see Pummelo and Grapefruits, FC 0005

Cultivar of Tangelo, large sized fruit cultivar, see there

Citrus reticulate x Citrus paradisi

Pome fruits

Class A

Type 1 Fruits Group 002 Group Letter Code FP

Pome fruits are produced on trees and shrubs belonging to certain genera of the rose family (Rosaceae), especially the genera Malus and Pyrus. They are characterized by fleshy tissue surrounding a core consisting of parchment-like carpels enclosing the seeds.

Pome fruits are fully exposed to pesticides applied during the growing season. Post-harvest treatments directly after harvest may also occur. The entire fruit, except the core, may be consumed in the succulent form or after processing.

<u>Portion of the commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analysed)</u>: **Whole commodity after removal of stems.**

Group 002 Pome fruits

Code No.CommodityFP 0009Pome fruits

(includes all commodities in this group)

FP 0226 Apple

Malus domestica Borkhausen

FP 2220	Azarole
FF 2220	
ED 2221	Crataegus azarolus L.
FP 2221	Chinese quince
	Chaenomeles speciosa (sweet) Nakai
FP 0227	Crab-apple
	Malus spp.; among other Malus baccata (L.) Borkh. var baccata;
	M. prunifolia (Willd.) Borkh.
-	Japanese medlar, see Loquat, FP 0228
FP 0228	Loquat
	Eriobotrya japonica (Thunberg ex J.A. Murray) Lindley
FP 2222	Mayhaw
	Crataegus spp.
FP 0229	Medlar
	Mespilus germanica L.
-	Nashi pear, see Pear, Oriental
FP 0230	Pear
	Pyrus communis L.; P. pyrifolia (Burm.) Nakai; P. bretschneideri Rhd.; P. sinensis L.
-	Pear, Oriental, see Pear, FP 0230
	Pyrus pyrifolia (Burm.) Nakai
FP 0231	Quince
	Cydonia oblonga P. Miller;
	syn: Cydonia vulgaris Persoon
-	Sand pear, see Pear, Oriental
FP 2223	Tejocote
	Crataegus mexicana DC.
FP2224	Wild pear
	Pyrus elaeagrifolia Pallas

Stone fruits

Class A

Type 1 Fruits Group 003 Group Letter Code FS

Stone fruits are produced on trees belonging to the genus Prunus of the rose family (Rosaceae). They are characterized by fleshy tissue surrounding a single hard shelled seed. The fruit is fully exposed to pesticides applied during the growing season (from fruit setting until harvest). Dipping of fruit immediately after harvest, especially with fungicides, may also occur.

The entire fruit, except the seed, may be consumed in a succulent or processed form.

Group 003 A Cherries: Cherry and related species of Prunus, which produce stone fruits similar to cherry

Group 003 B Plums: Plum and related species of Prunus, which produce stone fruits similar to plum

Group 003 C Peaches: Peach, nectarine, apricot and related species of *Prunus*, which produce stone fruits similar to peach, nectarine and apricot.

Portion of the commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analysed): Whole commodity after removal of stems and stones, but the residue is calculated and expressed on the whole commodity without stem.

Group 003 Stone fruits

Code No. Commodity

FS 0012 Stone fruits

Prunus spp. (includes all commodities in this group)

Subgroup 003A	Cherries
Code No.	Commodity
FS 0013	Cherries
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
-	Capulin, see Cherry, black, FS 2230
	Prunus serotina Ehrh. subsp. capuli
FS 2230	Cherry, black (including capulin) Prunus serotina Ehrh. subsp. Serotina;
	Prunus serotina Ehrh. subsp. capuli
FS 2231	Cherry, Nanking
	Prunus tomentosa Thunb.
FS 0243	Cherry, Sour
	Prunus cerasus L.
FS 0244	Cherry, Sweet
	Prunus avium L.
-	Cherry, tart, see Cherry, Sour, FS 0243
FS 2232	Choke cherry
	Prunus virginiana L.
-	Morello, see Cherry, Sour, FS 0243
	Prunus cerasus L., var. austera L.

Subgroup 003B	Plums
Code No.	Commodity
FS 0014	Plums (including Prunes)
	Prunus domestica L.; other Prunus spp and ssp.
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
FS 0241	Bullace
	Prunus insititia L.;
	syn: Prunus domestica L., ssp. insititia (L.) Schneider
FS 0242	Cherry plum
	<i>Prunus cerasifera</i> Ehrhart, syn: <i>P. divaricata</i> Ledeboer <i>P. salicina</i> Lindl., var. Burbank
-	Chickasaw plum, see Plum, Chickasaw, FS 0248
-	Damsons (Damson plums), see Plum, Damson
-	Greengages (Greengage plums), see Plum, Greengage
FS 2233	Klamath plum,
	Prunus subcordata Benth.
-	Mirabelle, see Plum, Mirabelle
-	Myrobolan plum, see Cherry plum, FS 0242
FS 2234	Plum
	Prunus domestica L.

Plum, American, see Sloe, FS 0249 *Prunus americana* Marshall

FS 2235	Plum, beach
	Prunus maritime Marshall
FS 0248	Plum, Chickasaw
	Prunus angustifolia Marsh.;
	syn: P. Chicasaw Mich.
-	Plum, Damson, see Bullace, FS 0241
-	Plum, Greengage, see Plums, FS 0014
	Prunus insititia L., var. italica (Borkh.) L.M Neum.
-	Plum, Japanese, see Plums, FS 0014
	Prunus salicina Lindley;
	syn: P. triflora Roxb.
-	Plum, Mirabelle, see Bullace, FS 0241
	Prunus insititia L., var. syriaca;
	syn: P. domestica L., ssp insititia (L.) Schneider
FS 2236	Plumcot
	Prunus domestica x P. armeniaca
-	Prunes, see Plums, FS 0014
FS 0249	Sloe
	Prunus spinosa L.; several wild Prunus spp.

Subgroup 003A	Peaches
Code No.	Commodity
FS 2001	Peaches (including Nectarine and Apricots)
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
FS 0240	Apricot
	Prunus armeniaca L.;
	syn: Armeniaca vulgaris Lamarck
FS 2237	Japanese apricot
	Prunus mume Siebold & Zucc.
FS 0245	Nectarine
	Prunus persica (L.) Batch, var. nectarina
FS 0247	Peach
	Prunus persica (L.) Batsch;
	syn: P. vulgaris Mill.

Oilseed

Class A

Type 4 Nuts and seeds Group 023 Group Letter Code SO

Oilseed consists of seeds from a variety of plants used in the production of edible vegetable oils, seed meals and cakes for animal feed. Some important vegetable oil seeds are by-products of fibre or fruit crops (e.g. cotton seed, olives).

Some of the oilseeds are, directly or after slight processing (e.g. roasting), used as food (e.g. peanuts) or for food flavouring (e.g. poppy seed, sesame seed).

Oilseeds are protected from pesticides applied during the growing season by the shell or husk of fruit flesh.

The group Oilseed is devided into five subgroups:

023A Small seed oilseeds

023B Sunflower seeds

023C Cottonseed

023D Other oilseeds

023E Oilfruits (fruits of palm trees)

Portion of the commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analysed): Oilseeds: Unless specified, seed or kernels, after removal of shell or husk. Oilfruits: whole commodity

Group 023 Oilseed

Code No.	<u>Commodity</u>
SO 0088	Oilseed (rape seeds, sunflowerseeds, cotton seeds and other oilseeds)
	(includes all commodities in this group)
SO 0089	Oilseed, except peanut

Subgroup 023A Small seed oilseeds Code No. Commodity SO 2090 Rape seeds			
SO 2090 Rape seeds	-		
(includes all commodities in this subgroup) SO 0090 Mustard seeds (Mustard seed; Mustard seed, Field; Mustards seed, Indian) SO 3140 Borage seed Borago officinalis L. Colza, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Colza, Indian, see Mustard seed, Field, SO 0694 Canola, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0693 SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed Camelina sativa (L.) Crantz SO 3142 Hare's ear mustard seed Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort SO 3143 Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson SO 0693 Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss.	·		
SO 0090 Mustard seeds (Mustard seed; Mustard seed, Field; Mustards seed, Indian) SO 3140 Borage seed Borago officinalis L. Colza, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Colza, Indian, see Mustard seed, Field, SO 0694 Canola, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0693 SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed Camelina sativa (L.) Crantz SO 3142 Hare's ear mustard seed Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson SO 0693 Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Linumathes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss.	SO 2090	-	
(Mustard seed; Mustard seed, Field; Mustards seed, Indian) SO 3140 Borage seed Borago officinalis L. Colza, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Colza, Indian, see Mustard seed, Field, SO 0694 Canola, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0693 SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed Camelina sativa (L.) Crantz SO 3142 Hare's ear mustard seed Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort SO 3143 Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson SO 0693 Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Linuanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss.	~~~~		
SO 3140 Borage seed Borago officinalis L. Colza, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Canola, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0693 SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed Camelina sativa (L.) Crantz SO 3142 Hare's ear mustard seed Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort SO 3143 Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson SO 0693 Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss.	SO 0090		
Borago officinalis L. Colza, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Canola, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0693 SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed			
Colza, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Colza, Indian, see Mustard seed, Field, SO 0694 Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0495 Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0693 SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed Camelina sativa (L.) Crantz SO 3142 Hare's ear mustard seed Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort SO 3143 Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Linuanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed	SO 3140		
Colza, Indian, see Mustard seed, Field, SO 0694 Canola, see Rape seed, SO 0495 Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0693 SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed Camelina sativa (L.) Crantz SO 3142 Hare's ear mustard seed Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort SO 3143 Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson SO 0693 Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Linumathes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss.			
- Canola, see Rape seed, SO 0495 - Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0693 SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed	-		
Flax-seed, see Linseed, SO 0693 SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed	-		
SO 3141 Gold of pleasure seed	-		
SO 3142 Hare's ear mustard seed Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort SO 3143 Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson SO 0693 Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Limanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss.	-		
SO 3142 Hare's ear mustard seed Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort SO 3143 Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson SO 0693 Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed	SO 3141		
Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort SO 3143 Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson SO 0693 Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Linunanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed			
SO 3143 Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod) Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson SO 0693 Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed	SO 3142	Hare's ear mustard seed	
Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed		Congringia orientalis (L.) Dumort	
SO 0693 Linseed Linum usitatissimum L. SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed	SO 3143	Lesquerella seed (gaslight blodderpod)	
SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed		Lesquerella recurvata (Engelm. ex. A. Gray) S. Watson	
SO 3144 Meadow foam seed Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed	SO 0693	Linseed	
Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth. SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed		Linum usitatissimum L.	
SO 0485 Mustard seed Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed	SO 3144	Meadow foam seed	
Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L. Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed		Limnanthes alba Hartw. ex Benth.	
Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench. SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed	SO 0485	Mustard seed	
SO 0694 Mustard seed, Field Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed		Brassica nigra (L.) Koch; Sinapis alba L.	
Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed		Synonym: Brassica hirta Moench.	
Fuller SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed	SO 0694	Mustard seed, Field	
SO 0478 Mustard seed, Indian Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed		Brassica campestris L., var. sarson Prain; B. campestris L., var. toria Duthie &	
Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss. SO 3145 Perilla seed		Fuller	
SO 3145 Perilla seed	SO 0478	Mustard seed, Indian	
		Brassica Juncea (L.) Czern. & Coss.	
Perilla frutescens (L.) Britton var. frutescens	SO 3145	Perilla seed	
		Perilla frutescens (L.) Britton var. frutescens	
SO 0698 Poppy seed	SO 0698	Poppy seed	

Papaver somniferum L.

SO 0495 Rape seed

Brassica napus L.

Rape seed, Indian, see Mustard seed, Field, SO 0478

Brassica campestris L., var. toria Duthie & Fuller

SO 0700 Sesame seed

Sesamum indicum L.
Synonym: S. orientale L.

Subgroup 023B Sunflower seeds

Code No.	Commodity
SO 2091	Sunflower seeds
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
SO 3146	Jojoba seed
	Simmondsia chinensis (Link) C. K. Schneid.
SO 0695	Niger seed
	Guizotia abyssinica (L.) Cass.
SO 0699	Safflower seed
	Carthamus tinctorius L.
SO 0702	Sunflower seed
	Helianthus annuus L.
SO 3147	Tallowwood nut
	Ximenia americana L.
SO 3148	Tea oil plant
	Camellia oleifera C. Abel

Subgroup 023C Cotton seed

SO 0691 Cotton seed

Gossypium spp.; several species and cultivars

Subgroup 023D Other oilseeds

Code No.	Commodity
SO 3150	American oil palm seed
	Elaeis oleifera (Kunth) Cortés
SO 3151	Babassu seed
	Attalea speciosa Mart. Ex Spreng
SO 0690	Ben Moringa seed
	Moringa oleifera Lam.
	Synonyms: M. pterygosperma Gaertn.
-	Coconut, see Group 022: Tree nuts, TN 0665
SO 3152	Coyoli palm seed
	Acrocomia aculeata (Jacq.) Lodd. ex Mart.
-	Drumstick tree seed , see Ben Moringa seed, SO 0690
SO 3153	Grape seed
	Vitis vinifera L., several cultivars
-	Groundnut, see Peanut, SO 0697

SO 3154	Hempseed
	Cannabis sativa L. var. sativa
-	Horseradish tree seed, see Ben Moringa seed, SO 0690
SO 0692	Kapok
	Ceiba pentandra (L.) Gaertn.
-	Karite nuts, see Shea nuts SO 0701
-	Maize, see Group 020: Cereal grains
SO 3155	Melon seed
	Cucumis melo L. spp. several species and cultivars
-	Palm kernel, see Palm nut, SO 0696
SO 0696	Palm nut
	Elaeis guineensis Jacq.
SO 0697	Peanut
	Arachis hypogaea L.
SO 0703	Peanut, whole
SO 3156	Pumpkin seed
	Cucurbita pepo L.supsp. pepo
SO 0701	Shea nuts
	Butyrospermum paradoxum (Gaertn.) Hepper, subsp. parkii (G. Don.) Hepper
	Synonym: B. parkii (G. Don.) Kotsky
-	Soya bean (dry), see Group 015: Pulses, VD 0541
-	Soybean (dry), see Soya bean (dry)

Subgroup 23 E Oilfruits

Code No.	Commodity
SO 2093	Oilfruits
	(includes all commodities in this subgroup)
SO 3158	American oil palm fruit
	Elaeis oleifera (Kunth) Cortés
-	Desert date, see Group 005: Assorted topical and sub-tropical fruits - edible peel, FT 0296
SO 3159	Maripa palm fruit
	Attalea maripa (Aubl.) Mart
SO 0305	Olives for oil production
	Olea europeaea L., var, euroaea
-	Olives (Table olives), see Group 005: Assorted tropical and sub-tropical fruits - edible peel
SO 3160	Palm fruit (African oil palm)
	Elaeis guineensis Jacq.
-	Peach palm, see Group 005: Assorted topical and sub-tropical fruits - edible peel,
	Bactris gasipaes Kunth var. gasipaes .
SO 3161	Tucum fruit
	Bactris setosa Mart.

APPENDIX X

PROPOSED DRAFT REVISION OF THE CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS – PROPOSAL FOR THREE COMMODITY GROUPS:

Tree Nuts; Herbs and Spices

(Recommended for adoption at Step 5)

Tree nuts

Class A

Type 4 Nuts and seeds Group 022 Group Letter Code TN

Group 022, Tree nuts are the seeds of a variety of trees and shrubs, which are characterized by an inedible shell enclosing an oily seed.

The seed is protected from pesticides applied during the growing season by the shell and other parts of the fruit.

The edible portion of the nut is consumed in natural, dried or processed forms.

<u>Portion of the commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analysed):</u> Whole commodity after removal of shell. Chestnuts: whole in skin.

Group 022 Tree nuts

Code No.	Commodity
TN 0085	Tree nuts (includes all commodities in this group)
TN 3100	African nut Ricinodendron heudelotii (Baill.) Heckel
TN 0660	Almonds Prunus dulcis (Mill.) D. A. Webb, syn: Amygdalus communis L., Prunus amygdalus Batsch.
TN 0661	Beech nuts Fagus sylvatica L.; F. grandifolia Ehrh.
[TN XXXX	Bettel nut Aneca catechu L.]
TN 0662	Brazil nut Bertholletia excelsa Humb. & Bonpl.
TN 3101	Brazilian pine Araucaria angustifolia (Bertol.) Kuntze
TN 3102	Bunya Araucaria bidwillii Hook
-	Bur oak, see Oak nut, TN 3107

Quercus macrocarpa Michx.

Bush nut, see Macadamia nut, TN 0669

TN 0663 **Butter nut**

Juglans cinerea L.

Cajou, see Cashew nut, TN 0295

Anacarduim giganteum Hancock ex Engl.

TN 3103 Candle nut

Aleurites moluccanus (L.) Willd.

TN 0295 Cashew nut

Anacardium occidentale L.; Anacarduim giganteum Hancock ex Engl.

Castanha-do-maranhão, see Pachira nut, TN 0670

Pashira glabra Pasq.

Syn: Bombacopsis glabra (Pasq.) A. Robyns

TN 0664 Chestnuts

Castanea spp.

Chinquapin, see Chestnuts, TN 0664

Castanea pumila (L.) Mill.

TN 0665 Coconut

Cocos nucifera L.

TN 3104 Dika nut

Irvingia gabonensis (Aubry-Lecomte ex O'Rorke) Baill.

Filberts, see Hazelnuts, TN 0666

Corylus maxima Mill.

TN 3105 Ginkgo

Ginkgo biloba L

- **Guiana chestnut**, see Pachira nut, TN 0670

Pachira aquatica Aubl.

- **Heartnut**, see Walnuts, TN 0678

Juglans ailantifolia var. cordiformis (Makino) Rehder

TN 0666 Hazelnuts

Corylus avellana L.; C. maxima Mill.;

C.americana Marschall; C. californica (A. DC.) Rose

TN 0667 **Hickory nuts**

Carya ovata (Mill.) K. Koch.; C. glabra (Mill.) Sweet;

other sweet Carya species

TN 0668 **Japanese horse-chestnut**

Aesculus turbinata Blume;

- **Java almonds**, see Pili nuts, TN 0673

Canarium vulgare Leenh.; C indicum L.

TN 0669 Macadamia nuts Macadamia ternifolia F. Muell.; M. tetraphylla L.A.S. Johnson; M.intregifolia Maiden & Betche TN 3106 Mongongo Schinziophyton rautanenii Schinz) Radel.-Sm Monkey-pot, see Sapucaia nut, TN 0676 Lecythis pisonis Cambess. TN 3107 Oak nut Quercus spp. TN 3108 Okari nut Terminalia kaernbachii Warb. TN 0670 Pachira nut Pachira insignis Savigny; Pashira glabra Pasq.; Pachira aquatica Aubl. TN 0671 Paradise nut, see Sapucaia nut Lecythis zabucajo Aubl. TN 0672 Pecan Carya illinoensis (Wangenh.) K. Koch TN 3109 Pequi seed Caryocar brasiliense Cambess. Pignolia or Pignoli, see Pine nuts, TN 0673 TN 0674 Pili nuts Canarium ovatum Engl.; C. luzonicum A Gray; C. vulgare Leenh.; C indicum L. TN 0673 Pine nuts Mainly Pinus pinea L.; also P. cembra L.; P. edulis Engelm.; P. sibirica Du Tour; P. Koraiensis Siebold & Zucc.; P. Gerardiana Wall. Ex D. Don; P. Monophylla Torr & Frém. and other Pinus species Pinocchi, see Pine nuts, TN 0673 **Piñon nut**, see Pine nuts, TN 0673 TN 0675 Pistachio nut Pistachio vera L. Queensland nut, see Macadamia nut, TN 0669 TN 0676 Sapucaia nut Lecythis zabucajo Aubl.; L. minor Jacq.; L. ollaria Loefl..; L. pisonis Cambess TN 0677 **Tropical almond**

Terminalia catappa L.

TN 0678 Walnuts

Juglans regia L.; J. nigra L. J. hindsii Jeps. Ex R.E. Sm.; J. microcarpa

Berland var. microcarpa; Juglans ailantifolia var. cordiformis

(Makino) Rehder

- Walnut, Black, see Walnuts, TN 0789

Juglans nigra L.; J. hindsii Jeps. Ex R.E. Sm.; J. microcarpa Berland

var. microcarpa

Walnut, English; Walnut, Persian, see Walnuts, TN 0678

Juglans regia L.

<u>Herbs</u>

Class A

Type 5 Herbs and spices Group 027 Group Letter Code HH

Herbs consist of leaves, flowers, stems and roots from a variety of (herbaceous) plants, used in relatively small amounts as condiments to flavour foods or beverages. They are used either in fresh or naturally dried form. Herbs are fully exposed to pesticides applied during the growing season. Post-harvest treatments are often carried out on dried herbs.

Herbs are consumed as components of other foods in succulent and dried forms or as extracts of the succulent products.

The group Herbs is devided in two subgroups:

027A Herbs (herbaceous plants)

027B Leaves of woody plants (leaves of shrubs and trees)

<u>Portion of the commodity to which the MRL applies (and which is analysed):</u> Whole commodity as marketed, mainly in the fresh form.

Group 027 Herbs

Code No. Commodity

HH 0092 Herbs

(includes all commodities in this group)

Group 027A Herbs (herbaceous plants)

Code No.	Commodity
НН 2095	Herbs (herbaceous plants) (includes all commodities in this subgroup)
НН 0720	Angelica Angelica archangelica L.; A. sylvestris L.
HH 3190	Anise Pimpinella anisum L.

HH 0721	Balm leaves Melissa officinalis L.
НН 0722	Basil Ocimum basilicum L. Ocimum x citrodorum Vis.; O. minimum L.; O. americanum L.; O. gratissimum L.; O. tenuiflorum L.
НН 0724	Borage Borago officinalis L.
НН 3191	Borage, Indian Plectranthus amboinicus (Lour.) Spreng.
НН 0725	Burnet Sanguisorba officinalis L.; Sanguisorba minor Scop.
НН 3192	Calamint Calamintha grandiflora (L.) Moench; Calamintha nepeta (L.) Savi
НН 0737	Calendula Flowers [and leaves] Calendula officinalis L.
НН 3193	Carraway leaves Carum carvi L.
НН 0726	Catmint Nepeta cataria L.
-	Catnip, see Catmint, HH 0726
НН 0624	Celery leaves Apium graveolens L.; var. seccalinum (Alef) Mansf.
-	Chervil [, leaves and flowers], VL 0465, see Group 013: Leafy vegetables
HH 0727	Chives, VA 2605, see Group 009: Bulb vegetables
-	Cilantro, see Coriander leaves HH 3194
-	Clary, see Sage (and related Salvia species), HH 0743 Salvia sclarea L.
НН 3194	Coriander leaves Coriandrum sativum L.
НН 3195	Coriander, Bolivian Porophyllum ruderale (Jacq.) Cass.
НН 3196	Coriander, Vietnamese Persicaria odorata (Lour.) Sojak.
НН 0748	Costmary Tanacetum balsamita L.;
[HH XXXX	Cover fern Marsilea crenata]

НН 3197	Culantro Eryngium foetidum L.
HH 3198	Curry plant Helichrysum italicum (Roth.)G. Don
-	Daylily, see Group 009: Bulb vegetables, VA 2600
-	[Daylily flowers]
HH 0730	Dill Anethum graveolens L.
НН 3199	Edible flowers Varous edible flowers
HH 3200	Epazote Dysphania ambrosioides (L.) Mosyakin & Clemants
-	Estragon, see Tarragon, HH 0749
-	Fennel, Bulb, see Group 017: Stalk and Stem vegetables, VA 0380
HH 0731	Fennel leaves Foeniculum vulgare Mill.;
HH 3201	Fennel, Spanish <i>Nigella hispanica</i> L. and <i>Nigella damascena</i> L.
HH 3202	Fenugreek leaves Trigonella foenum-graecum L.
НН 3203	Geranium (lemon, rose) Pelargonium crispum (P.J. Bergius) L'Her and Pelargonium graveolens L'Her [Pelargonium tomentosum; chocolate mint Pelargonium quercifolium consider whether other species should be included.]
НН 0732	Horehound Marrubium vulgare L.
HH 0733	Hyssop Hyssopus officinalis L.
НН 3204	Hyssop, anise Agastache foeniculum (Pursh) Kuntze ; Agastache rugosa (Fisch. & C.A. Mey) Kuntze
HH 0734	Lavender Lavendula angustifolia Mill.;
НН 3205 [С.	Lemongrass Cymbopogon citratus (DC.) Stapf flexuosus]

HH 0735 Lovage Levisticum officinale Koch. HH 3206 Marigold Tagetes erecta L.; T. patula L.; T. lucida Cav.; T. tenuifolia Cav. HH 0736 Marjoram Origanum marjorana L.; O. vulgare L. O. onites L. HH 3207 Meadowsweet Filipendula ulmaria (L.) Maxim. HH 0738 **Mints** Several *Mentha* species and hybrids; (see also individual Mints) including Mentha spicata L.; M. x piperata L.; Mentha x gracilis Sole; M. aquatica L.; M. longifolia (L.) Huds.; M. arvensis L.; M. suaveolens Ehrh. [cordifolia] HH 3208 Mioga (shoots and flower buds) Zingiber mioga (Thunb.) Roscoe HH 3209 Monarda Monarda didyma L.; M. fistulosa L.; M punctata L. [M. citriodora; M. pectinata] Mugwort, see see Southernwood, HH 0754 Artemisia vulgaris L. Myrrh, see Sweet Cicely, HH 0747 HH 0739 Nasturtium, leaves Tropaeolum majus L.;T. minus L. HH 3210 Nettle Urtica dioica L. **Oregano**, see Marjoram, HH 0736 Origanum vulgare L.; O. onitus L. HH 3211 Oregano, Mexican Lippia graveolens Kunth; L. micromera Schauer HH 3212 **Pandan leaves** [Pandanus amaryllifolius Roxb. Consider whether other species should be included] HH 0740 **Parsley** Petroselinum crispum (Mill.) Nyman ex A. W. Hill; syn: P. sativum Hoffm.; P. hortense auct. P. crispum var. neapolitanum Danert HH 3213 **Pennywort** Centella asiatica (L.) Urb. Peppermint, see Mints, HH 0738 *Mentha x piperita* L. HH 3214 Perilla

HH 3218

Wasabi leaves

Wasabia japonica (Mig.) Matsum.

Perilla frutescens (L.) Britton var. crispa

[HH XXXX Phank ka yaeng Limnophila aromatica Merro] [HH XXXX Phak paen *Trichodesma indicum*] HH 3215 Rice paddy herb Limnophila chinensis (Osbeck) Merr. HH 0741 Rosemary Rosmarinus officinalis L. HH 0743 Sage and related Salvia species Salvia officinalis L.; S. sclarea L.; S. triloba L. HH 0745 Savory, Summer; Winter Satureja hortensis L.; S. montana L. HH 0746 **Sorrel, Common**, and related *Rumex* species among others Rumex acetosa L.; R. scutatus L.; R. patientia L. HH 0754 Southernwood Artemisia abrotanum L.; A. pontica L. **Spearmint**, see Mints, HH 0738 Mentha spicata L.; HH 3216 Stevia Stevia rebaudiana (Bertoni) Bertoni Stink weed, [or Stinking] see Culantro, HH 3197 Eryngium foetidum L. Swamp leaf, see Rice paddy herb, HH 3215 HH 0747 **Sweet Cicely** Myrrhis odorata (L.) Scop. HH 0749 **Tarragon** Artemisia dracunculus L. [A. drancunculoides; Tagetes lucida] HH 0750 **Thyme** Thymus vulgaris L.; T. serpyllum L.; T. citriodorus (Pers.) Schreb. and Thymus hybrids. Vietnamese mint, see Coriander, Vietnamese, HH 3196 Polygonum odoratum Lour. HH 3217 Violet Viola odorata L.: V. tricolor L.

Watercress, see Group 013: Leafy vegetables, VL 0473 HH 3219 Waterpepper, Japanese Persicaria hydropiper (L.) Delabre [HH XXXX Wild betle leaf bush *Piper sarmentosum*] HH 0751 Winter cress, Common; American Barbarea vulgaris W.T. Aiton.; B. verna (Mill.) Asch. HH 0752 Wintergreen leaves Gaultheria procumbens L. (not including herbs of the Wintergreen family (Pyrolaceae)) HH 3220 Yarrow Achillea millefolium L. HH 3221 Yomogi Artemisia indica Willd. var. maximowizii (Nakai) H. Hara

Group 027B Leaves of woody plants

HH 3235

Lemon myrtle

Cada Na	Commoditu
Code No.	Commodity
HH 2096	Leaves of woody plants (includes all commodities in this subgroup)
НН 3230	Aniseed myrtle Syzygium anisatum (Vickery) Craven & Biffen
-	Bay leaves, see Laurel leaves HH 0723
НН 3231	Boldo Peumus boldus Molina
НН 0729	Curry leaves Bergera koenigii L. [Murraya koenigii L Sprengel]
НН 3232	Eucalyptus [Eucalyptus spp. Consider whether commodities that are not strictly used for food should be included in the Classification.]
HH 3233	Japanese pepper leaves Zanthoxylum piperitum (L.) DC.
HH 3234	Kaffir lime leaves Citrus hystrix DC.
НН 0723	Laurel leaves Laurus nobilis L.

Backhousia citriodora F. Muell.

[- Malabar leaf, see Tejpat leaves, HH 0744]

- **Malabathrum**, see Tejpat leaves, HH 0744

HH 3236 Native mint

Prostanthera incise R. Br., *P. rotundifolia* R. Br.

HH 3237 **Pepper, leaves** *Piper spp.*

HH 3238 Pepperbush, leaves

Tasmiania lanceolata (Poir.) A.C. Sm.; T. stipitata (Vick.)

HH 0742 **Rue**

Ruta graveolens L.

HH 0744 Sassafras leaves

Sassafras albidum (Nutt.) Nees

HH 3239 **Tejpat leaves**

Cinnamomum tamala (Buch.-Ham) Nees & Eberm.

Spices

Class A

Type 5 Herbs and spices Group 028 Group Letter Code HS

Group 028. Spices consist of the aromatic seeds, buds, roots, rhizomes, bark, pods, flowers or parts thereof, berries or other fruits from a variety of plants, which are used in relatively small quantities to flavour foods.

Spices are exposed in varying degrees to pesticides applied during the growing season. Also post harvest treatment may be applied to spices in the dried form.

They are consumed primarily in the dried form as condiments.

<u>Portion of the commodity to which MRL applies (and which is analysed):</u> Unless specified, whole commodity as marketed, mainly in the dried form.

Group 028 Spices

Code No. Commodity

HS 0093 **Spices** (includes all commodities in this group)

Group 028A Seeds

Code No.	Commodity
HS 0190	Spices, seeds (includes all commodities in this subgroup)
HS 3280	Achiote seeds Bixa orellana L.

HS 3281	Ajwain
	Trachyspermum ammi (L.) Sprague ex Turrill [T. copticum]
HS 0720	Angelica seed Angelica archangelica L.; A. sylvestris L.
-	Aniseed, see Anise seed, HS 0771
HS 0771	Anise seed Pimpinella anisum L.
HS 0722	Basil seed Ocimum spp.
HS 3282	Black caraway Nigella sativa L.
HS 0774	Caraway seed Carum carvi L.
HS 0624	Celery seed Apium graveolens L.
HS 3283	Chia Salvia hispanica L.
HS 0779	Coriander, seed Coriandrum sativum L.
HS 3284	Culantro seed Eryngium foetidum L
HS 0780	Cumin seed Cuminum cyminum L.
HS 0730	Dill seed Anethum graveolens L.
HS 0731	Fennel, seed Foeniculum vulgare Mill.; syn: F. officinale All; F. capilaceum Gilib.
HS 0782	Fenugreek, seed Trigonella foenum-graecum L.; T. caerulea (L.) Ser.
HS 3285	Honewort seed Cryptotaenia japonica Hassk.
HS 0735	Lovage, seed Levisticum officinale Koch.
HS 3286	Mahaleb <i>Prunus mahaleb</i> L
HS 0789	Nutmeg

Seed of Myristica fragrans Houtt.

HS 0740	Parsley seed Petroselinum crispum (Mill.) Nyman ex A. W. Hill;
-	Poppy seed, SO 0495, see Group 023: Oilseed
-	Sesame seed, SO 01700, see Group 023: Oilseed
HS 3287	Wattle seed Acacia victoriae Bent. and other spp.

Group 028B Fruit or berry

Code No.	Commodity
HS 0191	Spices, fruit or berries (includes all commodities in this subgroup)
-	Allspice fruit, see Pimento, HS 0792
HS 0775	Cardamom Elettaria cardamomum (L.) Maton Amomum tsao-ko Crevost & Lemarié; A. subulatum Roxb.; A. compactum Sol.ex Maton
-	Cardamom, black, see Cardamom, HS 0775
HS 3290	Cumin, black Bunium persicum (Boiss.) B. Fedtsch.
HS 3291	Gardenia fruit Gardenia jasminoides J.Ellis
HS 0785	Grains of paradise Aframonum melegueta (Rosc.) K Schum.; syn: Amomum melegueta Rosc.
HS 3292	Grains of Selim Xylopia aethiopica (Dunal) A. Rich.
HS 0786	Juniper, berry Juniperis communis L.
HS 3293	Miracle fruit Synsepalum dulciferum (Scumach. & Thonn.) Daniell
HS 0739	Nasturtium pods Tropaeolum majus L.; T. Minus L.
HS 0790	Pepper, Black; White; Pink; Green (see Note) Piper nigrum L.
HS 3294	Pepper, Cubeb Piper cuceba L. f.
HS 0791	Pepper, Long

Piper longum L.; P. retrofractum Vahl.;

HS 3295	Pepper, Sichuan Zanthoxylum bungeanum Maxim.; Z. schinifolium Siebold & Zucc.; Z.simulans Hance; Z. piperitum (L.) DC
HS 3296	Peperbush berry Tasmannia lanceolata (Poir.) A.C. Sm. ;T. stipitata (Vick.) A.C. Smith
HS 3297	Peppertree Schinus terebinthifolius Raddi; S. molle L.
HS 0792	Pimento, fruit Pimenta dioica (L.) Merrill
HS 3298	Star anise Illicium verum Hook.f.
HS 0369	Tamarind , see also Group 006: Assorted tropical and sub-tropical fruits - inedible peel <i>Tamarindus indica</i> L., sour varieties
HS 0795	Vanilla, beans Vanilla planifolia Andrews

Group 028C Bark

Code No.	Commodity	
HS 0192	Spices, bark (includes all commodities in this subgroup)	
-	[Cassia bark, see Cinnamon bark (including Cinnamon, Chinese bark), HS 0777 Consider whether this commodity should have a separate entry for <i>Cinnamomum aromaticum</i> ; or include this species under Cinnamon bark HS 0777]	
HS 0777	Cinnamon bark (including Cinnamon, Chinese bark) Cinnamomum verum J. Presl; C. aromaticum Nees; C. burmannii (Nees & T. Nees) Blume; C. loureiroi Nees; C. tamala (BuchHam.) Nees & Eberm. [Cinnamomum zeylanicum]	
-	Tejpat, see Cinnamon bark (including Cinnamon, Chinese bark), HS 0777 <i>Cinnamomum tamala</i> (BuchHam.) Nees & Eberm.	
HS 3310	Mastic Pistacia lentiscus L.	
-	Quinine, see Red cinchona, HS 3311	
HS 3311	Red cinchona Cinchona pubescens Vahkl; C. officinalis L.	

Group 028D Root or rhizome

Code No.	Commodity
HS 0193	Spices, root or rhizome (includes all commodities in this subgroup)
-	Angelica, root, stem and leaves, see Group 027: Herbs, Angelica HH 0720
HS 3320	[Asafetida Consider whether the portion of the commodity to which an MRL would apply is correct. *Ferula foetida* (Bunge) Regel; F. assa-foetida* L.]
-	Coriander, root, see Group 027: Herbs, Cilantro, HH 3194 Coriandrum sativum L.
HS 0783	Galangal, rhizomes Languas galanga (L.) Stunz; syn: Alpinia galanga Sw.; Languas officinarum (Hance) Farwelll; syn: Alpinia officinarum Hance Kaempferia galanga L.
HS 0784	Ginger, rhizomese Zingiber officicinale Rosc.
-	Horseradish, see VR 0583, Group 016: Root and Tuber vegetables
[HS XXXX	Krachai <i>Buesenbergia pandurata</i> Holff.]
-	Licorice, see Liquorice, roots, HS 0787
HS 0787	Liquorice, roots Glycyrrhiza glabra L.
HS 0794	Turmeric, root Curcuma longa L. [C. mangga]
HS 3321	Zedoary Curcuma zedoaria (Cristm.) Roscoe

Group 028E Buds

Code No.	Commodity
HS 0194	Spices, buds (includes all commodities in this subgroup)
HS 0773	Caper buds [and berries] Capparis spinosa L.
HS 0776	Cassia buds Cinnamomum aromaticum (L.) Nees
HS 0778	Cloves, buds Syzygium aromaticum (L.) Merr. & Perr.; syn: Eugenia caryophyllus (Sprengel) Bullock & Harrison; E. aromatica Kuntze; E. caryophyllata Thunb.: Caryophyllus aromaticus L.

Group 028F Flower or stigma

Code No.CommodityHS 0195Spices, flower or stigma (includes all commodities in this subgroup)

HS 3340 **Saffron**

Crocus sativus L.

Group 028G Aril

Code No. Commodity
 HS 0196 Spices, aril (includes all commodities in this subgroup)
 HS 0788 Mace
 Dried aril of Myristica fragrans Houtt.

[Group 028H Citrus Peel]

Note:

Although white pepper is in principle a processed food belonging to Type 13: Derived products of plant origin, it is listed for convenience in Group 028 Spices. White pepper is prepared from Black pepper, Piper nigrum L.: The seeds are retted in water and dried after removal of the mesocarp. The resulting white pepper may or may not be ground into powder. The scientific name of green pepper and pink pepper is *Piper nigrum* L. Pink pepper is mature pepper. Green pepper is an immature stage of pink pepper.

APPENDIX XI

PROPOSED DRAFT PRINCIPLES AND GUIDANCE ON THE SELECTION OF REPRESENTATIVE COMMODITIES FOR THE EXTRAPOLATION OF MRLS TO COMMODITY GROUPS

(Recommended for Adoption at Step 5)

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION
GENERAL PRINCIPLES
PROCEDURES

Good Agricultural Practices (GAPs)
Alternative Representative Commodities
Precedence in Selection of Representative Commodities
Definition of Similar Residues
Use and Combination of Data Sets
Table 1. Examples of the Selection of Representative Commodities

INTRODUCTION

Residue extrapolation is the process by which the residue levels on representative commodities are utilized to estimate residue levels on related commodities in the same commodity group or subgroup for which trials have not been conducted. Representative commodities are chosen based on their commercial importance and the similarity of their morphology and residue characteristics to other related commodities in the group or subgroup. Ideally representative commodities are the most economically important commodities in production or consumption in a group or subgroup and have a greater dietary burden and have residue characteristics similar to other members of the group or subgroup. Residue extrapolation is a common consideration utilised by regulators internationally for ensuring that data requirements are only at a level that is scientifically justified in conducting risk assessment and to ensure the regulatory process does not become unnecessarily burdensome especially for minor crops.

The objective of this document is to (1) propose criteria for the selection of representative commodities; (2) propose example representative commodities and (3) provide a detailed justification for the selection of the representative commodities (Addendum I). Additional background information regarding the status of representative commodities is provided in Addendum II to this document.

GENERAL PRINCIPLES

Representative commodities within each Codex Classification commodity group and subgroup will be selected and proposed, based on consideration of all available information. The following principles will be used for the selection of representative commodities:

- A representative commodity is most likely to contain the highest residues.
- A representative commodity is likely to be major in terms of production and/or consumption.
- A representative commodity is most likely similar in morphology, growth habit, pest problems and edible
 portion to the related commodities within a group or subgroup.

To facilitate the global use of the commodity groups for MRLs, alternative representative commodities may be selected giving flexibility for use of residue research conducted in different countries or regions that may vary due to regional differences in dietary consumption and/or areas of production for certain commodities.

Table 1 in this document is provided to (1) separate the selection of representative commodities from the Codex Classification itself; (2) propose representative commodities in parallel with the respective Codex commodity grouping classification revisions; (3) provide flexibility on the selection of representative crops and (4) provide guidance not only to CCPR and CCPR members, but also to JMPR, product manufacturers and other data generators.

Addendum I to this document provides detailed background information (bulb vegetables and fruiting vegetables, other than Cucurbits) regarding production, consumption, MRLs and characteristics and justification for selection of the representative commodities according to the indicated principles. In all cases, it is assumed that all of the commodities covered by a commodity group MRL utilize a similar use pattern or GAP.

Addendum II to this document provides more detailed background information regarding residue extrapolations and history and use by JMPR.

PROCEDURES

As proposals for the revision of the Codex Classification are made and revised commodity groupings are developed and provided to the CCPR for their review, proposals on representative commodities will also be provided in parallel with the respective commodity grouping revisions and will advance through the CCPR step process for adoption by the CAC.

As comments are addressed on the revisions of the classification and the proposed representative commodities and these are approved by the CCPR and accepted by the CAC, two separate documents will be created and maintained: (1) the revised Codex Classification (without mention of representative commodities) and (2) principles and guidance on the selection of representative commodities.

The JMPR may be advised to use the representative commodities adopted by the CAC. However, JMPR may use other representative commodities (including those which may be specifically requested by member nations) on a case-by-case basis. The JMPR will be requested to provide to the CCPR justification for the use of any alternative representative commodities, based on all available data.

GOOD AGRICULTURAL PRACTICES (GAPS)

The application of the three principles in the selection of representative commodities is based on the assumption that all of the commodities, covered by the commodity group MRL, utilize a similar use pattern or GAP.

ALTERNATIVE REPRESENTATIVE COMMODITIES

To facilitate the global use of the commodity groups for MRLs, alternative representative commodities may be selected giving flexibility for use of residue research conducted in different countries or regions that may vary due to regional differences in dietary consumption and/or areas of production for certain commodities. Table 1 in this document proposes representative commodities for commodity groups. Depending on country or regional differences, alternative representative commodities may be proposed by a country. For example, leeks may be proposed as an alternative representative commodity for green onions in the green onion subgroup of Bulb Vegetables.

PRECEDENCE IN SELECTION OF REPRESENTATIVE COMMODITIES

In situations where a representative commodity does not meet all three of the above principles, a representative commodity should at least meet the first two principles (likely to contain the highest residues and also major in terms of production and consumption).

DEFINITION OF SIMILAR RESIDUES

When representative commodities are utilized to extrapolate to other members of a commodity group, it is based on the assumption that the representative commodities will have similar residues. "Similar residues" are difficult to define numerically, because this would require knowing actual residues for all commodities in a group. Rather, the expectation of similar residues is based upon consideration of all of the information provided in Addendum I of this document. This information will be prepared for each commodity group and will form the basis of the proposals for representative commodities.

USE AND COMBINATION OF DATA SETS

When representative commodities are utilized to extrapolate MRLs to other members of the commodity group, MRLs may be calculated as either the highest MRL calculated for any of the individual representative commodities or the residue data may be combined and the MRL calculated from the larger combined data set.

[TABLE 1. EXAMPLES OF THE SELECTION OF REPRESENTATIVE COMMODITIES

A representative commodity should meet at least the first two principles described above, i.e. likely to contain the highest residues and also major in terms of production and consumption. However, it may not always fit well with the growth habits, or pest problems, or morphology within one group or subgroup. In such situations, extrapolations beyond the members of a commodity group may be appropriate. These can be considered on a case-by-case basis when commodities (with similar GAPs) have similar size, shape and surface area. Examples of these possible wider extrapolations include (1) translation of certain stone or pome fruit MRLs to a tropical fruit; (2) where residues are all <LOQ for pre-emergent herbicide uses and (3) seed treatments for non-systemic pesticides.

Alternative representative commodities may be selected based on documented regional/country differences in dietary consumption and/or areas of production.

Codex Group / Subgroup	Examples of Representative Commodities ¹	Extrapolation to the following commodities
Group 009 Bulb Vegetables	(1) Bulb onion and (2) Spring Onion	Bulb vegetables (VA 0035): Chives; Chives, Chinese; Daylilly; Elegans hosta; Fritillaria (bulb); Fritillaria (green); Garlic; Garlic chives; Garlic, Great-headed; Garlic, Serpent; Kurrat; Lady's leek; Leek; Lily; Onion, Beltsville bunching; Onion, Bulb; Onion, Chinese; Onion, fresh; Onion macrostem; Onion, Pearl; Onion, potato; Onion, Welsh; Shallot; Silverskin onion; Spring onion; Tree onion; Wild leek
Subgroup 009A, Bulb Onions	Bulb onion	Bulb onions (VA 2031): Daylilly; Fritillaria (bulb); Garlic; Garlic, Great-headed; Garlic, Serpent; Lily; Onion, Bulb; Onion, Chinese; Shallot; Silverskin onion
Subgroup 009B, Green Onions	Spring onion (Leek may be an alternative)	Green Onions (VA 2032): Chives; Chives, Chinese; Elegans hosta; Fritillaria (green); Garlic chives; Kurrat; Lady's leek; Leek; Onion, Beltsville bunching; Onion, fresh; Onion macrostem; Onion, Pearl; Onion, potato; Onion, Welsh; Spring onion; Tree onion; Wild leek
Group 012 Fruiting vegetables, other than Cucurbits	(1) Tomato and (2) Sweet Pepper and (3) Chili Pepper or small variety of Eggplant	Fruiting vegetables, other than Cucurbits (VO0050): African eggplant; Bush tomato; Cherry tomato; Cocona; Currant tomato; Eggplant; Garden huckleberry; Goji berry; Ground cherries, Martynia; Okra; Pea eggplant; Pepino; Peppers, chilli; Peppers, sweet; Roselle; Scarlet eggplant; Sunberry; Tomatillo; Tomato; Thai eggplant
Group 012A, Tomatoes	Tomato	Tomatoes (VO 2045): Bush tomato; Cherry tomato; Cocona; Currant tomato; Garden huckleberry; Goji berry; Ground cherries; Sunberry; Tomatillo; Tomato
Group 012B, Pepper and pepper-like commodities	(1) Sweet Pepper and (2) one cultivar of chili pepper	Peppers (VO 0051): Martynia; Okra; Peppers, chili; Peppers, sweet; Roselle
Group 012C, Egg plant and egg plant-like commodities	(1) One cultivar of large variety eggplant and (2) one cultivar of small variety eggplant	Egg plants (VO 2046): African eggplant; Egg plant; Pea eggplant; Pepino; Scarlet eggplant; Thai eggplant

¹ See Addendum I to this document for detailed background information (bulb vegetables and fruiting vegetables, other than Cucurbits) regarding production, consumption, MRLs and characteristics and justification for selection of the representative commodities according to the indicated principles.]

APPENDIX XII

PRIORITY LIST OF CHEMICALS SCHEDULED FOR EVALAUTION AND RE-EVALUATION BY JMPR

The following is the final schedule for 2011 and the tentative schedules for 2012-2017 to be evaluated by the FAO/WHO Joint Meeting on Pesticide Residues.

2011 JMPR

TOXICOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS	RESIDUE EVALUATIONS
NEW COMPOUNDS	NEW COMPOUNDS
acetamiprid (Nippon Soda) - Japan	acetamiprid (Nippon Soda) – Japan – citrus, pome fruits, stone fruits, grape, strawberries, small fruits and berries, animal commodities (Pesticide Initiative Project – beans with pods)
chlorfenapyr (BASF) – Brazil – residue to 2012	
emamectin-benzoate (Syngenta) - USA – PRIORITY 1	emamectin-benzoate (Grapes, potatoes, pome & stone fruits, tomatoes, eggplants, cucurbits (cucumber, melon, watermelon), lettuce, spinach, pepper, beans & peas, brassicas)
flutriafol (Cheminova) – USA	flutriafol (Cheminova) - USA - apples, grapes, bananas, soybean, peanut, wheat, coffee
isopyrazam (Syngenta) - Switzerland	isopyrazam – (Wheat, barley, cereals, bananas)
MCPA (Nufarm) – USA	MCPA -Wheat grain, barley grain, peas

penthiopyrad (DuPont) - USA	penthiopyrad (Brassica (Cole) Leafy Vegetables – Broccoli Roccoli (Chinese, gailon), Broccoli Raab (rapini), Brussels Sprouts, Cabbage (Chinese, bok choy), Cabbage (Chinese, napa), Cabbage (Chinese mustard, gai choy), Cauliflower, Cavalo Broccolo, Collards, Kale, Kohlrabi, Mizuna, Mustard Greens, Mustard Spinach, Rape Greens, Turnip Greens, Bulb Vegetables – Chive, Chive (Chinese), Daylily, Elegans Hosta, Fritillaria, Garlic, Garlic (great-headed), Garlic (serpent), Kurrat, Lady's Leek, Leek, Leek (wild), Lily, Onion (Beltsville bunching), Onion (bulb), Onion (Chinese), Onion (fresh), Onion (green), Onion (macrostem), Onion (pearl), Onion (potato), Onion (tree), Onion (Welsh), Shallot, Oilseed – Canola, Sunflower, Cereal grains – Barley, Buckwheat, Corn (field), Corn (sweet), Millet (pearl), Millet (proso), Oats, Popcorn, Rye, Sorghum (milo), Sorghum ssp. (sudangrass and hybrids), Teosinte, Triticale, Wheat, Cotton, Cucurbit vegetables – Chayote, Chinese waxgourd, Citron melon, Cucumber, Gherkin, Gourd (edible; includes hyotan, ucuzza, hechima, Chinese okra), Momordica spp (includes balsam apple, balsam pear, bittermelon, Chinese cucumber), Muskmelon (includes cantaloupe), Pumpkin, Squash (summer), Squash (winter; includes butternut squash, calabaza, hubbard squash, acorn squash, spaghetti squash), Watermelon, Fruiting vegetables – Eggplant, Groundcherry, Pepino, Pepper (bell), Pepper (chili), Pepper (pimento), pepper (sweet), tomatillo, tomato, Grape, Leafy vegetables – Amaranth (Chinese spinach), Arugula (roquette), Cardoon, Celery, Celery (Chinese), Celtuce, Chervil, Chrysanthemum (edible-leaved), Chrysanthemum (garland), Corn salad, Cress (garden), Cress (upland), Dandelion, Dock (sorrel), Endive (escarole), Fennel (Florence), Lettuce (head), Lettuce (leaf), Orach, Parsley, Purslane (winter), Radicchio (red chicory), Rhubarb, Spinach, Spinach (New Zealand), Spinach (vine), Swiss chard, Legume vegetables (succulent and dried) – Bean (Lupinus; includes acque, Sughan, Soybean, Soybean, Sapraeus bean, teapry be
propylene oxide (Aberco) - USA	propylene oxide (Aberco) – USA - tree nuts, cacao, spices and dried fruit
saflufenacil (BASF) - USA	saflufenacil (BASF) - USA - soy bean, peas and beans, corn, sorghum, cereals, citrus, pome fruit, stone fruit, almonds, pecan, sunflower, cotton, grape, banana, mango, coffee, sugar cane, canola, animal products

sulfoxaflor (Dow AgroSciences)	sulfoxaflor (Dow AgroSciences) - cereal grains (wheat, barley, rice), soya bean, oilseed rape, cottonseed, pome fruits, stone fruits, citrus fruits, tree nuts, grapes, dried grapes, strawberries, leafy vegetables, fruiting vegetables, cucurbits, brassica vegetables, and bulb vegetables and animal products
PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS	PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS
dichlorvos (025) (AMVAC Chemical UK)	
dicofol (026) – (Dow AgroSciences) Toxicology information not available	dicofol (026) – not supported by the manufacturer – tea data package (India and Morocco)
etofenprox (184) (Mitsui Chemicals Inc)	etofenprox (184) – (awaiting advice on commodities)
	tebuconazole (189) – (Bayer CropScience) - artichoke, banana, barley, brassica vegetables, broad bean, citrus, carrot, coffee beans, cucumber, elderberries, garlic, grapes, hops, leek, lettuce head, maize, mango, melons, oats, onion, papaya, peach, peanut, peppers sweet, plums, pome fruit, prunes, rape seed, rice, rye, soya bean, summer squash, sweet corn, tomato, watermelon, wheat, tree nuts. (Pesticide Initiative Project – bean with pods, okra, papaya, passionfruit, snowpeas)
EVALUATIONS	EVALUATIONS
	acephate (95) – rice (China)
	azoxystrobin (229) (Ginseng and its products) (R of Korea), (Pesticide Initiative Project – okra, passionfruit, papaya),carambola (Malaysia)
	benalaxyl (155) (FMC) – onion, tomato, potato - EU
	cypermethrin (118) – (FMC-Agriphar) – tree nuts, citrus fruit, asparagus (Thailand) and tea, chilli (India, China)
	difenoconazole (224) (Syngenta) – ginseng and its products - Korea
	diflubenzuron (130) (Chemtura) - artichoke, cottonseed, grapefruit, orange, soybean, soybean hull, tangerine, barley (grain, hay, straw), wheat (forage, hay, straw, grain), brassica leafy greens, stone fruit (except cherry), tree nuts, peanut, pepper, pistachio, pummelo and turnip greens
	flutolanil (205) (Nihon Nohyaku) – leafy brassica, root vegetables, ginseng
glyphosate (158) (Dupont)	glyphosate (158) (Dupont) - maize grain and soya bean (dry)
	hexythiazox (176) (BASF)– hops and strawberries
	profenofos (171) – (Syngenta) chilli pepper, chilli pepper (dry), (Thailand) – note retain 4 year rule
	pyraclostrobin (210) – (BASF) – Germany - Citrus (grapefruit, orange, lemon, lime, mandarin), stone fruits (apricot, cherry, peach, plum), strawberry, cane fruits (blackberries, dewberries, raspberries), small berries (blueberry, cranberry, currants, gooseberry, rose hip, mulberry, azarole, elderberry), bulb vegetables (garlic, onion, shallot, spring onion), cucurbits - inedible peel (melon, pumpkin, watermelon), oilseeds, oat, sorghum, tropical fruits (e.g. mango, papaya, avocado)

spinosad (203) – (Dow AgroSciences) -USA - cranberry, hops, - revised GAP (blueberries; raspberries, red, black; onion, bulb; tree nuts) (Pesticide Initiative Project – beans with pods, okra, papaya, passionfruit, snowpeas)
spirotetramate (Bayer CropScience) – USA - edible podded bean, edible podded pea, succulent shelled bean, succulent shelled pea, dry bean seed, dries pea seed, soybean seed, tropical fruits, lychee, dried prunes, okra, pistachio, undelinted cotton seed, and onion bulb. If you also like to include a list all of the commodities in the tropical fruits, it includes avocado, birida, black sapote, canistel, cherimoya, custard apple, feijoa, jaboticaba, guava, Ilama, longan, mamey sapote, mango, papaya, passionfruit, persimmon, pulasan, rambutan, sapodilla, soursop, Spanish lime, star apple, starfruit, sugar apple, wax jambu, white sapote

TOXICOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS	RESIDUE EVALUATIONS
NEW COMPOUNDS	NEW COMPOUNDS
ametoctradin (BASF) – USA PRIORITY 1	ametoctradin - potato, cucumber, zucchini, melon, tomato, peppers, table and wine grapes, lettuce and lamb's lettuce, brassica vegetables, bulb vegetables and hops
	chlorfenapyr (cotton seed, beans, papaya, peppers, cabbage, tomato, garlic, onion, corn, melon, tea and potato.)
	toxicological evaluation in 2011
clopyralid (Dow AgroSciences) - USA – PRIORITY 1	clopyralid - Hops, pome fruits, stone fruits, cranberry, strawberry, spinach, sugar beets, barley, corn, oats, sorghum, wheat, linseed, rape seed, grass forage
cyantraniliprole (Dupont) – USA PRIORITY 1	cyantraniliprole - pome fruit, stone fruit, brassica vegetables, cucurbit vegetables, fruiting vegetables, leafy vegetables, bulb vegetables, green/long beans, grape, potato, sweet potato, rice, cotton, canola, citrus, tree nuts
dinotefuran (Mitsui Chemicals Agro) – Japan - PRIORITY 1	dinotefuran (apple, cabbage, chinese cabbage, citrus, cotton seeds, cruciferous vegetables, cucurbits, eggplant, grape, green soybeans, lettuce, mango, melon, okra, peach, pear, persimmon, potato, rice, soy bean, spinach, sweet peppers, tea, tomato, meat from mammals (other than marine mammals), edible offals (mammalian), milks,
fluxapyroxad (BASF) – USA PRIORITY 1	fluxapyroxad - Cereals (barley, corn, rice, sorghum and wheat), oilseeds (canola, sunflower, and cottonseed), root and tuber vegetables (potato, carrot, sugar beet), legume vegetables (dry and succulent peas, beans and soybean), Brassica stem and leafy vegetables (broccoli, cauliflower, cabbage), fruiting vegetables (peppers, tomatoes), pome fruit (apple and pear), citrus (orange, grapefruit, lemon), stone fruits (cherry, peach, plum), cucurbits (cucumber, melon, pumpkin, squash), bulb vegetables (onion, garlic), coffee, banana, grapes, mango, papaya and peanuts.

PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS	PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS
aldicarb (117) – Bayer CropScience)	
bentazone (172) (BASF)	bentazone (172) - beans (green and dried), peas (green and dried), cereals, maize, sorghum, onion, peanuts, potato, linseed, meat, milk, eggs.
	cycloxydim (179) (BASF) - Beans (green and dried), brassicae, carrot, grape, leek, lettuce (head and leafy), peas (fresh and dried), potato, rapeseed, strawberry, sugarbeet
	dichlorvos (025) – (AMVAC Chemical UK) - cattle (fat, meat, meat byproducts), egg, goat (fat, meat, meat byproducts), horse (fat, meat, meat byproducts), milk, mushroom, poultry (fat, meat, meat byproducts), raw agricultural commodities, nonperishable, bulk stored regardless of fat content, postharvest, raw agricultural commodities nonperishable, packaged or bagged, containing 6 percent fat or less, postharvest, raw agricultural commodities, nonperishable, packaged or bagged, containing more than 6 percent fat, postharvest, sheep (fat, meat, meat byproducts), tomato
diquat (031) (Syngenta)	diquat (031) – Cereals (including barley, wheat, maize, oats, rice, sorghum), Oilseeds (including linseed, oilseed rape, soya bean, sunflower, cotton, poppy), Legume vegetable group (including peas, beans, lentils), Head brassica group (including cabbage), Flowering brassica group, Leafy brassica group, Fruiting vegetable group (including tomato, pepper), Root and tuber group (including carrot, radish, beetroot, sugarbeet, potato), Stem vegetable group (including asparagus, celery, leek), Cucurbits (edible and inedible peel), Bulb vegetables (including onion), Citrus fruit, Lettuce group, spinach, canary, lupine, mustard, apple, banana, chicory witloof, coffee, sweet corn, grape, herbs (including parsley and sage), hop, kohlrabi, lucerne, olive, peach, strawberry, clover, grass, alfalfa, sugarcane,
	dithianon (028) (BASF) – pome fruit, cherry, grapes, hops, mandarin
fenbutatin oxide (109) (BASF)	fenbutatin oxide (109) - Tree nuts, pome fruit, banana, cherry, citrus fruit, cucumber, grapes, raisins, stone fruit, strawberry, tomato, meat, milk, eggs
fenpropathrin (185) (Sumitomo Chemical)	fenpropathrin (185) - cattle meat, cattle milk, cattle edible offal, cotton seed, cotton seed oil, eggplant, eggs, gherkin, grapes, chilli pepper, sweet pepper, pome fruits, poutry meat, poutry edible offal, tea, tomato
fenvalerate (119) – (Sumitomo Chemical) – support unknown	fenvalerate (119) – reviews are available from the USA
glufosinate-ammonium (175) – (Bayer CropScience)	glufosinate-ammonium (175) - Citrus fruits, Tree nuts, Almonds hulls, Pome fruits, Stone fruits, Berries and other small fruits (except currants), Currants (Black, Red, White), Banana, Assorted tropical and sub-tropical fruits - inedible peel, Potato, Carrot, Bulb onion, Corn salad, Common bean (pods and/or immature seeds), Asparagus, Broad bean (dry), Common bean (dry), Peas (dry), Rape seed and crude Rape seed oil, Crude, Soya bean (dry), Sunflower seed and crude Sunflower seed oil, Maize grain, Maize fodder, Sugar beet, Tea, Palm oil, Meat (from mammals other than marine mammals), Poultry meat, Edible offal (mammalian), Edible offal of Poultry, Eggs, Milks.

EVALUATIONS	EVALUATIONS
	buprofezin (173) (Nihon Nohyaku) – coffee (USA) – awaiting confirmation
	captan (7) (Arysta) - Pesticide Initiative Project - mango
	carbofuran (96) (FMC) – banana
	chlorpyrifos-methyl (090) (DOW)- alternative GAP for cereal commodities (wheat, barley, oat, sorghum, wheat germ, wheat bran – unprocessed – excluding maize)
	cyfluthrin (157) - (Bayer CropScience) soybean, cabbage
	cyromazine (169) (Syngenta) - Pesticide Initiative Project – beans with pods
	dithiocarbamates - mancozeb (105) (Dow) - Pesticide Initiative Project - mango, okra, papaya
	imidacloprid (206) (Bayer) - Pesticide Initiative Project - mango
	methoxyfenozide (209) (Dow AgroSciences) – New GAP for on spinach; alfalfa forage; alfalfa fodder; citrus fruits (Pesticide Initiative Project – beans with pods)
	oxamyl (126) (Dupont) – residue definitions, methods
	phorate (112) (AMVAC) – potato - awaiting confirmation)
	spinetoram (233) (Dow AgroSciences) – New GAP for stone fruits; cabbage, head; broccoli; citrus fruits; grapes; dried grapes; onion, bulb; leafy vegetables; broad bean; tree nuts
	thiacloprid (223) (Bayer) - Pesticide Initiative Project - beans with pods, papaya
	trifloxystrobin (213) (Bayer) - Pesticide Initiative Project – beans with pods, mango, papaya, passionfruit

TOXICOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS	RESIDUE EVALUATIONS
NEW COMPOUNDS	NEW COMPOUNDS
PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS	PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS
	aldicarb (117) – (Bayer CropScience) - citrus fruits
amitraz (122) – (Arysta Lifesciences)	amitraz (122) – (awaiting advice on commodities)
bromide ion (47) – no Croplife manufacturer responsible - support unknown	bromide ion (47) – support unknown
dichlofluanid (82) – (Bayer CropScience) - not supported by the manufacturer	dichlofluanid (82) – not supported by the manufacturer
dinocap (87) – (Dow AgroSciences) - not supported by the manufacturer	dinocap (87) – not supported by the manufacturer

disulfoton (74) – (Bayer CropScience) - support unknown	disulfoton (74) – reviews are available from the USA
metalaxyl (138) – (Syngenta) - no longer supported by the manufacturer	metalaxyl (138) (Syngenta)— no longer supported by the manufacturer - Field trials (Thailand), reviews are available from USA.
methidathion (51) (Syngenta)— no longer supported by the manufacturer	methidathion (51) (Syngenta)— no longer supported by the manufacturer
tecnazene (115) – (no croplife manufacturer listed as responsible - support unknown)	tecnazene (115) – support unknown
triforine (116) (Sumitomo Corp)	triforine (116) –(Sumitomo Corp) Apple, Blueberries, Brussels sprouts, Cereal grains, Cherries, Common bean, Currants(Black,Rd, White), Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits, Gooseberry, Peach, Plums(including prunes), Strawberry, Tomato
EVALUATIONS	EVALUATIONS

TOXICOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS	RESIDUE EVALUATIONS
NEW COMPOUNDS	NEW COMPOUNDS
PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS	PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS
	azinphos-methyl (002) – (Makhteshim – Agan) – support unknown - (awaiting advice on commodities)
bromopropylate (70) – (Syngenta) support unknown	bromopropylate (70) – support unknown
diazinon (22) – (Makhteshim – Agan)	diazinon (22) – (awaiting advice on commodities)
hydrogen phosphide (46) – no Croplife manufacturer responsible - support unknown	hydrogen phosphide (46) – support unknown -
myclobutanil (181) (Dow AgroSciences)	myclobutanil (181) - pome fruits, stone fruits, black currant, grapes, strawberry, banana, hops, tomato (<u>Pesticide Initiative Project – beans with pods</u>)

penconazole (182) (Syngenta)	penconazole (182) – Brassica Vegetables (Broccoli, Brussels sprouts, Cauliflower, Chinese cabbage), Pome Fruit, Fruiting Vegetables (Tomato, Pepper, Aubergine), Root and Tuber Vegetables (Carrot, Parsnip, Turnip), Cucurbit vegetables (Cucumber, Melon, Watermelon, Pumpkin, Zuchini), Berries (Blackberry, Blueberry, Blackcurrant, Gooseberry, Raspberry, Cranberry), Stone Fruit (Apricot, Cherry, Peach, Plum), Legume Vegetables (peas, beans), Nuts (Almond, Pecan, Cashew, Jujube, Pistachio, Hazelnut, Pine nut, Macadamia, Chestnut), Soya, Strawberry, Loganberry, Sugarbeet, Tobacco, Potato, Clementine, grapefruit, Nectarine, Cumquat, Mango, Gherkin, Loquat, Asparagus, Leek, Banana, Lambs Lettuce, Rocket, Chicory, Canola, Parsley, Mint, Papaya, Alfalfa, Barley, Rice, Wheat, Sweet Corn, Hops, Lentil, Persimmon, Avocado, Artichoke, Grapes, Onion, Fennel
phosalone (60) – (Cheminova) support unknown	phosalone (60) – support unknown
EVALUATIONS	EXALUATIONS
EVALUATIONS	EVALUATIONS

TOXICOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS	RESIDUE EVALUATIONS
NEW COMPOUNDS	NEW COMPOUNDS
PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS	PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS
abamectin (177) (Syngenta)	abamectin (177) – Pome fruits, cucurbits (edible and inedible peel), grapes, citrus fruits, stone fruits, strawberries, hops, leafy vegetables (lettuce, spinach, endive, celery), potato, almond, walnut, bean, coffee, cotton, Fruiting vegetables (tomato, aubergine, pepper, sweet pepper), avocado, papaya, mango, avocado, onion
chlormequat (15) (BASF)	chlormequat (15) - Cereals, cottonseed, maize, rapeseed, maize fodder, cereals fodder/straw, meat, milk, eggs
clethodim (187) (Arysta Lifescience) - USA	clethodim (187) - bean, broccoli, cabbage, carrot, cranberry, cucurbits, hops, lettuce, pea, strawberry
ethephon (106) – (Bayer CropScience)	ethephon (106) - Apple, Barley, Barley straw and fodder, Blueberries, Cantaloupe, Cherries, Chili peppers (dry), Cotton seed, Dried grapes, Figs, Grapes, Hazelnuts, Peppers, Pineapple, Rye, Rye straw and fodder, Tomato, Walnuts, Whest, Wheat straw and fodder, Chicken eggs, Edible offal of cattle, goats, horses, pigs & sheep, Meat of cattle, goats, horses, pigs & sheep, Milk of cattle, goats & sheep, Poultry meat, Poultry, edible offal.
fenpropimorph (188) – (BASF)	fenpropimorph (188) - banana, cereals, sugar beet, cereals fodder/straw, meat, milk, eggs
teflubenzuron (190) – (BASF)	teflubenzuron (190) – apple, orange, coffee, field corn, soybean, sugarcane, sunflower, tomato, melon, broccoli, cauliflower, grape, papaya

EVALUATIONS	EVALUATIONS

TOXICOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS	JMPR - RESIDUE EVALUATIONS
NEW COMPOUNDS	NEW COMPOUNDS
PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS	PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS
bioresmethrin (93) – (Sumitomo Chemical) - not supported by manufacturer	bioresmethrin (93) – not supported by the manufacturer
iprodione (111) (BASF)	iprodione (111) – (BASF) – tree nuts, cereals, beans, (dried), blackberry, broccoli, carrots, cheery, cucumber, grapes, kiwi, lettuce (head and leafy), onion, stone fruit, pome fruit, rapeseed, raspberry, sugar beet, sunflower, tomato, witloof.
permethrin (120) – (FMC) - not supported by the manufacturer	permethrin (120) – not supported by the manufacturer
tolclofos-methyl (191) – (Sumitomo Chemical)	tolclofos-methyl (191) – (Sumitomo Chemical) - (awaiting advice on commodities)
EVALUATIONS	EVALUATIONS

TOXICOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS	RESIDUE EVALUATIONS				
NEW COMPOUNDS	NEW COMPOUNDS				
PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS	PERIODIC RE-EVALUATIONS				
fenarimol (192) (Gowan)	fenarimol				
fenpyroximate (193) (Nihon Nohyaku)	fenpyroximate				
fenthion (39) (Bayer CropScience)	fenthion				
quintozene (64) (Crompton – AMVAC)	quintozene				
EVALUATIONS	EVALUATIONS				

APPENDIX XIII

PROPOSED DRAFT REVISION OF THE GUIDELINES ON THE ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY OF RESULTS FOR THE DETERMINATION OF PESTICIDE RESIDUES APPENDIX TO CAC/RCP 59-2006

(Returned to Step 3)

Introductory notes

At the 39th CCPR Meeting a discussion paper was prepared forming the basis for an addition to guidance document CAC/GL 59-2006, which was discussed at the 40th CCPR Meeting. It was decided to undertake new work to prepare an appendix to describe methods for estimating uncertainty based on method validations, quality control data, and proficiency testing.

This appendix supports the adoption of MU in laboratories dealing with pesticide residue analysis in foods, taking into account the complexity of pesticide residue analysis. The key considerations are:

- (a) elaboration of a practically oriented and straightforward guidance based on empirical top-down concepts;
- (b) allowing for simplified MU estimation for the ease of compliance with ISO Standard 17025²⁵.
- (c) uncertainty related to sampling is not subject of this appendix.

The determination of residues at trace levels (0.001-10 mg/kg) is subject to considerable analytical variability. To have a sound estimate of the quality of results, the expression of MU is extremely demanding. To minimize disputes resulting from demonstrating the equivalence of analytical results generated by different laboratories, it is impractical to calculate individual values for numerous commodity/pesticide combinations when applying the bottom-up approach.

OVERVIEW OF MU CONCEPTS

ISO/TS 21748:2004²⁶ provides additional mathematical concepts especially for estimating zones of acceptance and rejection around analytical values; straightforward top-down approaches are also discussed. One important statement in this context is that the reproducibility standard deviation obtained from collaborative studies is considered as a valid basis for MU evaluation. If accuracy (or trueness) data can be utilized, e.g., with respect to an established reference value based on (certified) reference material, then uncertainty associated with the estimated bias should be included in the MU budget, such as:

- (a) reproducibility and bias estimates from collaborative study;
- (b) laboratory bias and precision within that expected on the basis of collaborative studies;
- (c) laboratory bias and precision under control and effects appropriately combined to form a combined uncertainty estimate.

²⁵ See ISO/IEC Standard 17025, Para 5.10.3.1: In addition ... test reports shall ... include the following: "c) where applicable, a statement on the **estimated uncertainty** of measurement; information on uncertainty is needed in test reports when it is relevant to the validity of application of the test results, when a client's instruction so requires, or when the uncertainty affects compliance to a specification limit."

²⁶ Technical Specification ISO/TS 21748:2004: Guidance for the use of repeatability, reproducibility and trueness estimates in measurement uncertainty estimation, First edition 2004-03-15

Laboratories must be able to demonstrate that any uncertainty value is adequate to describe the performance of their analytical methods, through satisfactory participation in proficiency tests. The extrapolation of good performance for the analysis of one analyte/matrix combination to a broader scope of analysis should be based on the knowledge of the equivalence of the performance of the method within the considered scope of analysis.

PT BASED APPROACH

The emerging practice in the EU is to use a PT-based top-down estimation of $\pm 50\%$ MU for the determination of pesticides residues in food. This takes into account method validation data and PT results. A PT-based generalized $\pm 50\%$ MU approach should only be used by laboratories if the following analytical performance and quality criteria can be demonstrated (SANCO /10684/2009-Method Validation and Quality Control in Food and Feed).

- (a) Within-laboratory SD smaller than the between-laboratories SD.
 - (b) Successful participation in PT schemes (z-score \leq |2| for 95%, z-score \leq |3| for not more than 5% of the values).
 - (c) Small bias from method and/or laboratory recovery tests.
 - (d) Verification of analytical performance by regularly analysing suitable reference material, if available.

Generally applicable MU estimation approaches currently are not feasible due to the lack of universally available PT studies, Reference Materials (RMs) or suitable collaborative studies. This limits the opportunity to apply top-down approaches to estimate MU based on data from such studies for pesticide residue analysis. In many cases, laboratories will need to rely on data from analysis of spiked samples (either from validation studies or on-going QC) to estimate bias and the uncertainty of bias, plus intra-laboratory reproducibility data for a reasonable estimate of MU.

HORWITZ BASED APPROACH

MU may also be estimated using Horwitz formulas, which are based on inter-laboratory study data. This takes into account that expected MU values are dependent on the residue level, i.e., the higher the residue concentration, the lower the anticipated relative MU. The Horwitz approach is expressed by the following equation (equivalent approximations²⁷ exist):

$$RSD_R = 2^{1-0.5 \log c} = 2 * c^{-0.1505}$$

with:

 RSD_R = expected relative inter-laboratory standard deviation (%) c = concentration of the analyte (expressed as kg/kg, i.e., 0.01 mg/kg = 0.00000001 kg/kg)

Real figures to the above formulas concentration result in concentration dependent RSD_R:

 $\begin{array}{lll} 0.01 \text{ mg/kg} & \Rightarrow & 32.0 \% \\ 0.1 \text{ mg/kg} & \Rightarrow & 22.6 \% \\ 1 \text{ mg/kg} & \Rightarrow & 16.0 \% \end{array}$

 RSD_R values depending on the respective concentration levels can be transformed into MU by multiplying with an appropriate coverage factor, normally k=2, which represents 95% probability of being correct. Advantages of this concept²⁸ include the incorporation of laboratory bias because laboratory variability is also randomized. Deviations generated by different laboratories are included and the Horwitz equation was found to be widely applicable to all concentration, methods and analytes. When following the Horwitz

²⁷ M. Thompson and P. J. Lowthian: The Horwitz Function Revisited. JAOAC International, Vol. 80, No 3, 1997, 676-679. ²⁸ L. Alder et al.: Estimation of Measurement Uncertainty in Pesticide Residue Analysis. JAOAC International. Vol. 84, No 5, 2001, 1569-1577.

approach and taking into account concentration dependent RSD_R values, it is recommended to estimate the MU values for application at the Codex MRL

Note: Drawbacks associated with Horwitz approaches are that appropriate and sufficient data are used as the basis for the estimation of a valid relation between concentration and uncertainty since the data came from a highly diverse range of collaborative trials with concentrations ranging from $0.05~\mu g/kg$ to 600g/kg (60%), involving a large number of other compounds than pesticides. Prescribed methods were applied and PT data were not included. Ever since the establishment of the Horwitz equation, instrumentation technology has experienced significant advancements both in terms of sensitivity and selectivity, which may reduce the uncertainty contribution by the instrumental measurement process.

MU VALUES IN PESTICIDE RESIDUE ANALYSIS BASED ON LABORATORY DATA

Method validation data verify recovery values and variability of results and characterize analytical method performance. In practical terms inter- and intra-laboratory data can be utilized by laboratories to estimate MU from validation studies and/or verification experiments and adjusted by the use of long term intra-laboratory quality control data, such as recovery, repeatability, reproducibility, (im)precision and bias from a combination of studies:

- intra-laboratory QC plus results from proficiency studies;
- intra-laboratory QC plus results from analysis of a matrix RM;
- intra-laboratory QC plus recoveries from spiked samples;
- validation data, noting that allowance is necessary if precision is evaluated under repeatability conditions.

USE OF PT DATA TO EVALUATE MU

General Requirements

In SANCO document 10684/2009, "Method Validation and Quality Control Procedures for Pesticide Residues Analysis in Food and Feed", therein "Acceptability of analytical performance for routine recoveries", the following is required:

- Individual recovery result should normally be in the range of the mean recovery ±2 x %RSD.
- Addition of a spiked sample to each batch of analysis.
- Results may be used for quality control charts.

Long-term quality control

Suitable materials for long-term quality control are:

- Reference matrices.
- Remaining materials from proficiency tests.
- Spiked samples or incurred samples

These materials and their analytes are required to be stable.

Formulas and statistics for PT based estimation of MU

Within-laboratory reproducibility standard deviation is combined with estimates of the method and laboratory bias using PT data:

$$U' = k * u'$$
 and $u' = \sqrt{u'(R_W)^2 + u'(bias)^2}$

where:

$$u'(bias) = \sqrt{RMS'_{bias}^2 + u'(C_{ref})^2}$$

and:

$$RMS'_{bias} = \sqrt{\frac{\sum (bias'_i)^2}{m}}$$
 and: $u'(C_{ref}) = \frac{\sum_i \frac{S_{Ri}}{\sqrt{n_i}}}{m}$

where:

U' = expanded relative uncertainty

k = coverage factor

u' = combined relative standard uncertainty

u'(R_w) = intermediate precision relative standard uncertainty

u'(bias) = relative standard uncertainty component from method and laboratory bias,

based on PT data

RMS'_{bias} = root mean square of relative bias values

bias'_i = relative bias of PT_i [obtained result_i – assigned value_i]/assigned value_i]

 $u'(C_{ref})$ = average relative standard uncertainty of assigned values

 S'_{Ri} = interlaboratory relative standard deviation of PT_i

 n_i = number of participants in PT_i m total number of residues

Practical application using PT-based MU

- (1) Prerequisites for using an expanded relative standard uncertainty of +/-50%:
 - The laboratory has demonstrated its technical capability to generate reliable results at the required level of quality, i.e. by:
 - > validation data for the respective analytical method;
 - > acceptable quality control data, e.g., control charts for respective methods and compounds;
 - ➤ successful participation in PT schemes which fulfil PT quality criteria conducted according to the Harmonized Protocol²⁹, ISO Guide 43-1 etc.;
 - > evidence of the equivalence of the performance of the analytical method for selected analytes and commodities representing the entire scope of analysis.
- (2) Uncertainty evaluation using laboratory evaluation data:
 - identification of the main sources of uncertainty (weighing, calibration, purity, temperature, volumetric glassware, etc.);
 - evaluation of the order of magnitude of the uncertainty of basic laboratory operations in relation to the overall uncertainty of the procedure;
 - expected result:
 - > uncertainty of basic laboratory operations almost negligible;
 - random run-to-run variability as the principal source of MU;
 - estimation of overall bias and recoveries from in-house validation and quality control data (fortification, spiking, reference materials, etc.):
 - > the mean of the resulting relative standard deviation taken as relative uncertainty is associated with random variation;
 - > analyte mean recovery within 70-120%.
- (3) Comparison with PT results:

²⁹ M Thompson, S L R Ellison, R Wood; The International Harmonized Protocol for the proficiency testing of analytical chemistry laboratories (IUPAC Technical Report); Pure Appl. Chem. 78(1) 145-196 (2006)

- series of PT rounds with slightly varying concentrations and matrices;
- the relative standard deviation of valid data is comparable to the expected relative standard deviation (comparing PT results with real laboratory data).
- (4) Verification of uncertainty estimates:
 - checks using observed within-laboratory precision;
 - checks using certified reference materials or suitable test materials;
 - checks using reference methods;
 - checks based on the results of PT (including external QA data or measurement audits);
 - checks based on comparison of results with other laboratories;
 - comparison with other uncertainty estimates based on different approaches or different data (some approaches are expected to produce significantly different MU estimations).

Evaluation of uncertainty estimates against PT results

Checking the quality of uncertainty estimates may apply the zeta (ζ) score formula laid out in the Eurolab Report:

$$\zeta = \frac{x - x_a}{\sqrt{u(x)^2 + u(x_a)^2}}$$

where:

x = laboratory result

 x_a = assigned value

u(x) = standard uncertainty of laboratory results

 $u(x_a)$ = standard uncertainty of assigned values

Uncertainties are considered correct if $|\zeta|$ is in the range 0 to 2; underestimated if $|\zeta|$ is frequently over 2.

Limitations of the application of PT values

In general, proficiency tests are not carried out frequently enough to provide good estimates of the performance of an individual laboratory's implementation of a test method. However, in the special case where:

- the types of test items used in the scheme are appropriate to the types tested routinely
- the assigned values in each round are traceable to appropriate reference values
- the uncertainty associated with the assigned value is small compared with the observed spread of results;

The dispersion of the differences between reported and assigned values obtained from repeated rounds provides a basis for an evaluation of the uncertainty (see Eurolab and NORDTEST references).

A PT-based top-down approach is therefore applicable where PT data support this. Referring to EC-PT schemes this approach could be different for various matrices and pesticide/ matrix combinations.

Examples of calculations for MU

Case 1: Expanded relative standard uncertainty (U') using Horwitz formulas

This approach is concentration dependent on the respective pesticide residue levels. Therefore a range of values can be obtained. The formula is:

$$u' = 2^{1-0.5 \log c}$$

u' = relative inter-laboratory standard deviation c = concentration of analyte

e.g., for a concentration of c = 0.01 mg/kg the calculated values are: u' = 32%, and U' = 64%. Accordingly for c = 1.0 mg/kg it becomes u' = 16%, and U' = 32%.

This formula may be taken for calculating the expanded uncertainty. However, it was designed for analysis of any compound not just pesticides. Ever since the establishment of the Horwitz equation, instrumentation technology has experienced significant advancements both in terms of sensitivity and selectivity, which may reduce the uncertainty contribution by the instrumental measurement process. The resulting estimates of uncertainty accordingly are based on the distribution of between-laboratory standard deviations.

Case 2: Practical application of the top-down approach on MU estimation by utilizing PT and internal validation and quality assurance data.

Application example:

$$S_R = \sqrt{S_{ip}^2 + S_{bl}^2}$$

When each laboratory report the mean of n replicated measurements obtained within the laboratory in intermediate precision conditions (e.g. different days), the reproducibility of the method is reduced from s_R to $s_{R;n}$:

$$S_{R;n} = \sqrt{\frac{S_{ip}^2}{n} + S_{bl}^2}$$

Considering the reproducibility, $S_{R;2}$, of an analytical method estimated in a inter-laboratory trial where each participant reports the mean of two replicates obtained within a laboratory in intermediate precision conditions, equal to 0.2325 mg/kg (mean concentration of 0.93 mg/kg and RSD of 25 %):

$$S_{R;2} = 0.2325 = \sqrt{\frac{S_{ip}^2}{2} + S_{bl}^2}$$

If the relative intermediate precision standard deviation is 17 % (i.e. 0.1581 mg/kg), then:

$$S_{R;2} = 0.2325 = \sqrt{\frac{0.1581^2}{2} + S_{bl}^2}$$

Therefore:

$$S_{bl} = \sqrt{0.2325^2 - \frac{0.1581^2}{2}} = 0.2038 \, mg / kg$$

The reproducibility, s_R, associated with single measurements is:

$$S_R = \sqrt{S_{ip}^2 + S_{bl}^2} = \sqrt{0.1581^2 + 0.2038^2} = 0.2579 \, mg \, / \, kg$$

Therefore, it should be reported an expanded relative uncertainty associated with single measurements of 55 %.

In the last EUPTs a FFP RSD of 25% has been used demonstrating that a variability of 25% can be accepted as a noticeable representation of laboratory performances for MRM in pesticides residues in fruit and vegetables. Therefore it is a prerequisite to participate in PTs and to have a successful score in order to apply this type of uncertainty estimate, i.e., to use FFP and a RSD of 25%, resulting in a relative standard uncertainty of u'=25% and an expanded relative standard uncertainty of U'=50%, respectively, meaning acceptable variability of results of $\pm 50\%$ at 95% confidence level.

Note: There is a relation between the following precision values:

 s_{ip} – intermediate precision standard deviation;

s_{bl} – between laboratory precision standard deviation;

s_R – reproducibility standard deviation.

Laboratory A, using a GC multi residue method, participating in European Union Proficiency Testing Schemes (EUPT) 3 and 11, the above formulae resulted in the following:

Relative bias and average relative standard deviation calculus for EUPTs

relative blas and average rel	ative standard	a de viation e	Juicui	us for LOT	13		
EUPT 3	(bias')	(bias') ²		S'_{Ri}	n_i	$\sqrt{n_i}$	$S'_{Ri}/\sqrt{n_i}$
Deltamethrin	-0.406	0.1652		0.370	116	10.770	0.034
Diazinon	0.028	0.0008		0.220	116	10.770	0.020
Endosulfan	-0.086	0.0074		0.290	116	10.770	0.027
Metalaxyl	-0.175	0.0307		0.320	116	10.770	0.030
Permethrin	0.172	0.0296		0.300	116	10.770	0.028
Pirimiphos-methyl	0.184	0.0337		0.310	116	10.770	0.029
Vinclozolin	-0.174	0.0302		0.280	116	10.770	0.026
(EUPTs 4 – 10 not listed h	ere)						
EUPT 11							
Deltamethrin	-0.121	0.0146		0.250	151	12.288	0.020
Diazinon	-0.088	0.0077		0.260	151	12.288	0.021
Isofenphos-Methyl	-0.078	0.0060		0.240	151	12.288	0.020
Lambda-Cyhalothrin	-0.207	0.0428		0.240	151	12.288	0.020
Metalaxyl Sum	-0.011	0.0001		0.210	151	12.288	0.017
Parathion-Methyl Sum	-0.134	0.0181		0.240	151	12.288	0.020
Phosalone	0.041	0.0017		0.300	151	12.288	0.024
Procymidone	-0.038	0.0015		0.200	151	12.288	0.016
		•				•	•
	Sum	4.2552				Sum	1.5662

	m	68		m	68	
	RMS'bias	0.2501		$u'(C_{ref})$	0.0230	
	RMS' _{bias} ²	0.0626		$u'(C_{ref})^2$	0.00053	
$u'(bias) = \{(0.0626 + 0.000530)\}^{1/2} = 0.251212198$						

Going back to $u' = u' \{(R_W)^2 + u'(bias)^2\}^{1/2}$, $u'(R_W)$ becomes 0.11 (taken from intra-laboratory validation and/or QC data), $u' = \{(0.11)^2 + (0.251212198)\}^{1/2} = 0.27$, resulting in U' = 54%. (based on all data from EUPT 3 - 11).

Case 3: Uncertainty arising from run-to-run variability and in-house validation experiments

Known quantities of pesticide standards are added to representative matrices. These experiments provide three types of uncertainty, one arising from the estimation of the overall bias, one coming from recovery experiments and one derived from reference standards added to the test sample. They also include the effects of changes of sample type and change of pesticides.

The calculation of uncertainty within a laboratory based on reproducibility estimation is:

$$u_{c,rel} = \sqrt{\frac{RSD_R^2}{n_m} + u_{mr,rel}^2 + \frac{RSD_R^{'2}}{n_R}}$$

where:

 RSD_R^2 / n_m - relative standard deviation of five replicates at different calibration levels, where n_m is the number of replicates

u²_{mr, rel} - relative standard uncertainty derived from the use of reference material, volumetric calibration, weighing calibration, etc.; it is considered to lie between 1 and 2%.

 $RSD^{'2}_R/n_R$ – relative standard deviation of all recovery data, at different levels, different matrices and different pesticides, with n_R representing the number of data used. Normally laboratories not correcting for recovery do not need to apply this factor.

In a practical case:

$$u_{mr,rel} = \sqrt{0.05^2 + 0.01^2 + 0.11^2} \Rightarrow u' = 12\%; \qquad U' = 24\%$$

Case 4: Calculation example from validation studies provided by USA (USDA)

Commodit	Compoun	Mean	Std	Measur	N (data	N (labs)	Range of	Expected Inter-	Expected Inter-	Expected Inter-	Expected Inter-
y	d	Recover	Deviati	e-ment	points)	, ,	Spike Values	laboratory	laboratory	laboratory	laboratory
		y (%)	on of	Uncerta			(ppm)	(Minimum) or	(Maximum) %CV	(Minimum) or	(Maximum) Std
			Recover	inty				Intra-laboratory	based on Horwitz	Intra-laboratory	Deviation derived
			ies	(2*Std				%CV based on		Std Deviation	from expected
				Dev)				Horwitz		derived from	Horwitz values
										expected Horwitz	
										values	
		Average	Std	2 x	Number	Number	Range if 2	Inter-lab = $2^{(1-)}$	Inter-lab = $2^{(1)}$	Expected %CV x	[(Expected
		Calculat	Deviation	Standard	of	of Labs	Labs; Single	(0.5*logC): calculated	(0.5*logC): calculated	Mean (expressed	%CV)/100] x
		ed by	Calculate	Deviatio	Routine		Value if 1 Lab	based on higher	based on lower	numerically - e.g.,	Mean (expressed
			il by	n	Recover			spike level, which	spike level, which	110.1=1.101)	numerically - e.g.,
			Excel 1		ies Run			would give lower	would give higher		110.1=1.101)
					with			or minimum	or maximum value		
					Sample			value;			
					Sets			Intra-lab =			
								$0.67*2^{(1-0.5*\log C)}$:			
								calculated based			
								on single lab			
Asparagus	Diuron	110.1	12.6	25.2		2	0.040-0.072	23.8	26.0	26.2	28.6
Blueberrie	Boscalid	96.7	15.6	31.1	45	2	0.015-0.040	26.0	30.1	25.1	29.1
S											
Broccoli	Imidaclopr	83.0	15.4	30.7	36	1	0.002	27.2	NA	22.6	NA
	id										
Celery	Endosulfa	93.9	19.3	38.5	36	2	0.028-0.131	21.7	27.4	20.4	25.7
	n Sulfate										
Grape	Carbaryl	74.5	18.9	37.8	33	2	0.004-0.014	30.4	36.7	22.6	27.3
Juice											

Green	Acephate	68.3	6.4	12.8	26	2	0.014-0.030	27.1	30.4	18.5	20.8
Beans											
Greens	Azoxystro	105.0	18.4	36.8	27	2	0.003-0.004	36.7	38.4	38.5	40.3
(collard/	bin										
cale)											
Peaches	Myclobuta	106.9	15.7	31.3	25	2	0.0066-0.134	21.7	34.1	23.2	36.5
	nil										
Spinach	Chlorpyrip	109.5	9.5	18.9	28	2	0.014-0.025	27.9	30.4	30.6	33.3
	hos										
Strawberri	Metalaxyl	88.8	25.0	50.0	36	2	0.0197-0.066	24.1	28.9	21.4	25.7
es											
Summer	Bifenthrin	91.4	23.1	46.3	23	2	0.0266-0.066	24.1	27.6	22.0	25.2
Squash											

1. STDEV uses the following formula:

$$\sqrt{\frac{\sum (x - \bar{x})^2}{(n-1)}}$$

2. For Horwitz calculation, C = concentration, expressed such that 1 mg/kg would be 1 x 10^{-6}

.

Case 5: Comparison of MU estimation approaches

This example is for confirming that PT-based values of u' may be assumed as correct if |z| is in the range of 0-2. It is then compared with u' from Horwitz and FFP RSDs:

Laboratory example: pesticide bupirimate

Intra-laboratory	
X	0.959
X _a	0.79
Example 2 u'	0.27
Qn	0.25
u(x) = x u'	0.259
$u(x_a) = x_aQn$	0.198
zeta score	0.52

Horwitz-based					
X	0.959				
Xa	0.79				
Horwitz RSD	0.16				
Qn	0.25				
u(x) = x Horwitz	0.153				
u(x _a)	0.198				
zeta score	0.68				

PT-based	
X	0.959
X _a	0.79
FFP RSD	0.25
Qn	0.25
u(x) = x FFP	0.240
u(x _a)	0.198
zeta score	0.54

where:

x = laboratory result $x_a = assigned value$

u(x) = standard uncertainty of laboratory results